Public Document Pack

ey
o
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Council Meeting

Council Offices
White Cliffs Business Park
Dover

Wednesday, 30 January 2019

Summons and Agenda

Nadeem Aziz
Chief Executive






Democratic Services
White Cliffs Business Park

ey
DOVER ngfrCTw 3PJ

DISTRICT Telephone: (01304) 821199
COUNCIL Fax: (01304) 872452
DX: 6312
_ Minicom:  (01304) 820115
Website: www.dover.gov.uk
e-mail: democraticservices

@dover.gov.uk

22 January 2019

To the Members of the Council,

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the COUNCIL to be held in the Council
Chamber - Council Offices at these Offices on Wednesday 30 January 2019 at 6.00 pm for
the transaction of the business set in the Agenda.

hief Executive

Members of the Council:

S S Chandler (Chairman) N Dixon S M Le Chevalier
D Hannent (Vice-Chairman) M R Eddy S C Manion

J S Back A Friend K Mills

S F Bannister R J Frost K E Morris

T J Bartlett B Gardner D P Murphy

P M Beresford B J Glayzer A M Napier

T A Bond P J Hawkins M J Ovenden

P M Brivio P G Heath A S Pollitt

B W Butcher J M Heron G Rapley

P | Carter M J Holloway N A G Richards
N J Collor S J Jones M Rose

M D Conolly P D Jull D A Sargent

M | Cosin L A Keen F J W Scales
G Cowan N S Kenton P Walker

D G Cronk P S Le Chevalier P M Wallace
AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 MINUTES (Pages 7 - 24)




To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 31 October 2018 and 12 December
2018 (to follow).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Page 25)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be
transacted on the agenda.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader, Members of the
Cabinet or Head of Paid Service.

LEADER'S TIME

To receive an oral report at the meeting from the Leader (and Cabinet) on the
business of the Executive or on any topic or subject that it is felt should be brought
to the attention of the Council.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (Leader’s Time):

(a) The Leader (and Cabinet) shall have up to 15 minutes to make within this
report any statements that they wish on any topic or subject that they feel
should be drawn to the attention of the Council.

(b) The Leader (or their nominee) of the Major Opposition Group (Labour
Group) shall be allowed up to 10 minutes to respond.

(c) The Leader (or their nominee) of the Other Opposition Group (Progressive
Group) shall be allowed up to 5 minutes to respond.

(d) The Leader of the Council shall be allowed up to 5 minutes to exercise a
right of reply (or 25% of the time given to the Opposition Group Leaders,
whichever is the greatest).

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (Page 26)

To receive answers in respect of questions from the public to Members of the
Executive asked in accordance with Rule 11 of the Council Procedure Rules.

Questions from the Public

(1) A question was received from Ms S Gleave (E.U. Thinking Deal and Dover)
within the notice period and is set out in the agenda papers.

BREXIT UPDATE

To receive an update from the Leader of the Council.

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING STATIONS (Pages 27 - 126)

To consider the attached report of the Chief Executive.

REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS (Pages 127 - 148)

To consider the joint report of the Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer (to follow).



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2019/20 (Pages 149 - 155)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Governance.

MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2019/20 (Pages 156 - 174)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Governance.

The recommendations of the East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel will
be circulated separately.

COUNCIL TAX BASE 2019-20 (Pages 175 - 184)

To consider the attached report of the Strategic Director (Corporate Resources).

In accordance with Procedure Rule 18.6 (voting on budget decisions) a
recorded vote will be held in respect of this item.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT - QUARTER 2 REPORT 2018/19 (Pages 185 - 201)

To consider the attached report of the Strategic Director (Corporate Resources).

REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 2018 - SENIOR MANAGEMENT
RESTRUCTURE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019 (Pages 202 - 206)

To consider the attached report of the Solicitor to the Council.

Due to the size of the appendix, this is provided as an electronic link:
https.://moderngov.dover.gov.uk/documents/s29224/Constitution%20V2%20Draft%2
027%20Nov%202018%202.pdf

FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT OF A CHIEF OFFICER (Pages 207 - 214)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Governance.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS (Pages 215 - 217)

Up to 60 minutes is allowed for this part of the meeting unless extended by the
Chairman of Council on a motion moved, duly seconded and approved by the
Council. Members may ask one supplementary question in addition to their original
question.

Members may ask one supplementary question in addition to their original question.
The questions received are set out in the agenda papers.

MOTIONS (Page 218)

Motions for which notice has been given are listed on the agenda in the order in
which notice was received, unless the Member giving notice states, in writing, that
they propose to move it at a later meeting or withdraw it.

If a Motion set out in the agenda is not moved by the Member who gave notice


https://moderngov.dover.gov.uk/documents/s29224/Constitution%20V2%20Draft%2027%20Nov%202018%202.pdf
https://moderngov.dover.gov.uk/documents/s29224/Constitution%20V2%20Draft%2027%20Nov%202018%202.pdf

18

thereof it shall, unless postponed by consent of the Council, be treated as
withdrawn and shall not be moved without fresh notice.

A Motion must be about matters for which the Council has powers or duties or which
affects the District.

The motions received are set out in the agenda papers

URGENT BUSINESS TIME

To consider any other items deemed by the Chairman of the Council to be urgent in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.

Access to Meetings and Information

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its
Committees and Sub-Committees. You may remain present throughout them except
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.

All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on
the front page of the agenda. There is disabled access via the Council Chamber
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer. In addition, there is a PA
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.

Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from
our website www.dover.gov.uk. Minutes will be published on our website as soon as
practicably possible after each meeting. All agenda papers and minutes are
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.

If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Rebecca Brough,
Democratic  Services Manager, telephone: (01304) 872304 or email:
democraticservices@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.




30

31

32

33

Public Document Pack Agenda Item No 2

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

At the meeting of the Council for the District of Dover held at the Council Offices,
Whitfield on Wednesday, 31 October 2018 at 6.00 pm.

Present:
Chairman: Councillor S S Chandler
Councillors:
J S Back A Friend S M Le Chevalier
S F Bannister R J Frost S C Manion
T J Bartlett B Gardner K Mills
P M Beresford B J Glayzer K E Morris
P M Brivio D Hannent D P Murphy
B W Butcher P J Hawkins A M Napier
P | Carter P G Heath M J Ovenden
N J Collor J M Heron A S Pollitt
M D Conolly M J Holloway G Rapley
M I Cosin S J Jones M Rose
G Cowan P D Jull P M Wallace
D G Cronk L A Keen
M R Eddy P S Le Chevalier
Officers: Chief Executive
Director (Environment and Corporate Assets)
Solicitor to the Council
Democratic Services Manager
APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D A Sargent and P Walker.
MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018 were approved as a correct record
and signed by the Chairman.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman of the Council, Councillor S S Chandler, made the following
announcements:

(a) That a slide show had been set up in the HMS Brave Room highlighting the
work of the Inspire Fund. Since its launch in February 2016, the Inspire Fund
had received 899 referrals and worked with 43 delivery partners.

(b) The Chairman had presented Discovery Awards to eleven young people as
part of the John Muir Awards scheme.



34

35

(c) The White Cliffs Branch of the Royal British Legion had presented the
Council with a plaque. The Council supported all the Royal British Legion
branches in the district where it could and it was pleasing that this had been
recognised with the approach of Remembrance Day.

(d) To announce the death of Councillor C J Meredith, who had been a Liberal
Democrat member for the Whitfield Ward between 2003-2011. The
Chairman praised his commitment to his community and offered
condolences to his friends and colleagues.

The Chairman invited other members of the Council to share their memories
of Councillor Meredith.

The Council stood in silence for one minute as a mark of respect.

DOVER DISTRICT LEISURE CENTRE PRESENTATION

The Council received a presentation from Hadron Consulting, GT3 Architects and
Places Leisure in respect of the new Dover District Leisure Centre.

Following the presentation, members discussed the following points:

e The social enterprise nature of Places Leisure, with all profits reinvested into
the business.

e To welcome the accessibility improvements in the new leisure centre.

e To enquire about the progress of the travel plan for the new leisure centre
and what public transport arrangements would be in place when it opened.
It was stated that the travel plan would be published before the new leisure
centre opened.

¢ The importance of ensuring the accessibility to the new leisure centre for
rural communities.

e The environmental standards of the building including its target of achieving
a BREAAM rating of very good.

¢ The importance of ensuring that the pricing for the new leisure centre was
suitable for the local market so as to not discourage use.

The Portfolio Holder for Property Management and Environmental Health,
Councillor T J Bartlett, emphasised the unique nature of the facility in the Kent and
thanked everyone involved in the project.

LEADER'S TIME

The Leader of the Council, Councillor K E Morris, included the following matters in
his report:

(a) BREXIT Impact
That the global media had taken up the issue of BREXIT and Dover had
become a focus of interest for the impact of BREXIT on day one of leaving
the European Union. He thanked the media team for their handling of
enquiries and Councillor N J Collor for undertaking some of the media
interviews. A roundtable event on BREXIT had been organised by the LGA
and DDC.




That a letter had been sent to the Secretary of State for Transport, Chris
Grayling MP, emphasising the importance of the short straits route.

That the Prime Minister and President Macron of France had agreed to
support the economic development of the Dover-Calais area.

That the BREXIT Task Force papers were available on the Council's
website.

(b) Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)
That the Kent and Medway LEP had responded to the government in
respect of LEPs to advise that it did not want any change to the current
arrangements.

(c) East Kent Spatial Development Company
That £700,000 had been awarded for Albert Road, Deal.

(d) Business Rates
That the Kent Leaders Group had agreed to apply to be part of the 2019/20
Business Rate Retention Pilot. This followed Kent being part of the 2018/19
pilot.

(e) Electoral Review of the Dover District
That the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE)
had published its final proposal for the new wards to be used from May
2019. A consultation on polling districts was currently underway.

(f) High Streets
The rise in online shopping was continuing to impact on high streets

nationwide. The Council through its grant scheme was investing in Dover’s
High Street and it was hoped to see the first new shop open soon as a
result.

(g) St James
The development was now 90% let or in legal discussions to let and the
feedback received was that business was brisk. There were plans for further
improvements to the surrounding area in addition to those for Flying Horse
Lane.

(h) Local Authority Borrowing Cap
It had been announced that this would be lifted but the Council was waiting
to see the details.

(i) Housing
The Council had purchased 15 former council houses and was in the
process of purchasing an additional 11 former council houses. The Council’s
work to tackle homelessness remained a priority.

() Cinema in Deal
The Council was working with the Astor Theatre to provide an interim
cinema in Deal until the planning application for the Regent Cinema was
submitted.

(k) Deal Pier



The works on the pier were progressing well and the café tenants were
planning for the fit out.

(I) Dover District Lottery

The Council currently provided funding to the voluntary sector through the
oversubscribed community grants scheme. The Cabinet had agreed to set
up a lottery to provide an additional funding stream for the voluntary sector
and similar lotteries were already operated in Thanet District Council,
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council and Tunbridge Wells Borough
Council. It was expected that this would add an additional £40,000 in funding
and would not affect the grants currently in place.

The lottery would contribute 60 pence in every £1 generated and would be
launched in 2019.

(m)Armed Forces Bronze Award
The Council had been recognised for its support of the armed forces,
including existing or prospective employees who are members of the
community, with a bronze award. It was intended that the Council would
apply for the silver award in 2019 and the gold award in 2020

(n) ‘There but not there’
To highlight the ‘there but not there’ figures in the silhouette of World War
One soldiers in the Council Chamber. These were a wonderful act of
remembrance in light of the approaching centenary of the end of the First
World War.

The Leader of the Main Opposition Labour Group, Councillor M R Eddy, included
the following matters in his report:

(a) To welcome the news of the second meeting of the BREXIT Task Force
group and to emphasise that the Port of Dover was also a cruise terminal
and that it was important to understand what impact BREXIT would have on
the cruise business.

(b) The urgency for the work on the Lower Thames Crossing to begin.

(c) That the scheme for Albert Road, Deal was not what was needed as the
road plans were insufficient.

(d) To agree on the need to contribute to the polling district review.

(e) To welcome the High Street grant scheme but emphasise the need to do
more with s215 notices to improve buildings in the town centre.

(f) To question whether operating a local lottery was innovative given that
similar schemes were already operated by 26 other local authorities.

(g) To recognise the service of current and ex-service personnel and emphasise
the need to do more to support their return into civilian life.

(h) To point out that the small business relief in the budget would not commence
until April 2019 and would run for three years.



36

37

38

In response, the Leader of the Council raised the following matters in his right to

reply:

(a) That the Port of Dover represented the cruise terminal at the BREXIT

meetings.

(b) That s215 notices were being pursued as vigorously as the scheme allowed.

(c) That it was estimated that 400 additional businesses in the district would
qualify for business rate relief. Local Authorities would be fully compensated
for any losses.

(d) That, subject to seeing further details, the Council was interested in
participating in the Future High Streets Fund.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were no questions received from members of the public within the notice

period.

AUTHORISED ABSENCE

It was moved by Councillor M R Eddy, duly seconded by Councillor B Gardner and

RESOLVED: That the non-attendance of Councillor N A G Richards’ at meetings
of the authority be approved on ill health grounds for the period
commencing 16 May 2018 pursuant to the provisions of section
85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.

REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS

The Director of Governance presented the Review of Allocation of Seats to Political

Groups.

It was moved by Councillor K E Morris, duly seconded by Councillor M R Eddy and

RESOLVED: (a)

(c)

That the Dover Joint Transportation Board and the 2 Overview
and Scrutiny Committees be considered as Ordinary
Committees for the purposes of calculating the allocation of
seats for political groups.

That a Licensing Committee be appointed with 15 seats and,
whilst noting the duty to ensure political proportionality does not
apply to the Licensing Committee, its seats be allocated to
reflect the overall proportionality of the Council.

That, having noted the allocation of seats calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989, the Council Committees be constituted as
indicated below for the remainder of the municipal year and the
Boards and Forums be constituted with the membership,
Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Spokespersons as shown:

DOVER JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

11



(CON) J S Back Chairman (appointed by Cabinet)
(CON) A Friend

(CON) P D Jull

(CON) M J Ovenden

(LAB) P M Brivio

(LAB) D G Cronk

(LAB) P M Wallace

In addition, there are 7 KCC members, 2 KALC representatives and 3
fown council representatives.

NO AR WN -

EAST KENT SERVICES COMMITTEE
1 (CON) K E Morris Executive Member
2 (CON) MD Conolly Executive Member

EAST KENT SERVICES COMMITTEE NAMED SUBSTITUTES
1 (CON) N J Collor Executive Member
2 (CON) T JBartlett Executive Member

ELECTORAL MATTERS COMMITTEE

1 (CON) K E Morris Chairman

2 (CON) S S Chandler Vice-Chairman
3 (CON) F JW Scales

4 (LAB) M R Eddy

5 (LAB) B Gardner

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

1 (CON) S M Le Chevalier Chairman
2 (CON) M D Conolly Vice-Chairman
3 (CON) D P Murphy

4 (LAB) M R Eddy

5 (LAB) B Gardner

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

1 (CON) P GHeath Chairman

2 (CON) D Hannent Vice-Chairman
3 (CON) B W Butcher
4 (CON) P I Carter
5
6
7

(LAB) S F Bannister
(LAB) M Cosin
(LAB) M R Eddy

JOINT STAFF CONSULTATIVE FORUM
1 (CON) M D Conolly

2 (CON) P G Heath

3 (CON) S M Le Chevalier

4

5

(LAB) M Cosin
(LAB) K Mills
In addition, there are 5 staff representatives appointed to the Forum.

JOINT HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE CONSULTATIVE
FORUM

1 (CON) M D Conolly

2 (CON) P G Heath

3 (CON) S M Le Chevalier

12



4 (LAB) M Cosin
5 (LAB) K Mills
In addition, there are 5 staff representatives appointed to the Forum.

The Joint Staff Consultative Forum and Joint Health, Safety and
Welfare Forum are responsible for electing a Chairman and Vice-
Chairman.

LICENSING COMMITTEE

1 (CON) B W Butcher

2 (CON) A Friend

3 (CON) D Hannent

4 (CON) P D Jull

5 (CON) P S Le Chevalier
6 (CON) S M Le Chevalier
7 (CON) D P Murphy

8 (CON) M J Ovenden

9 (CON) M Rose

10 (LAB) S F Bannister

11 (LAB) P M Brivio

12 (LAB) MR Eddy

13 (LAB) B Gardner

14 (LAB) A M Napier

15 (LAB) D G Cronk

The Licensing Committee elects its own Chairman and Vice-
Chairman.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

(CON) F J W Scales Chairman
(CON) B W Butcher Vice-Chairman
(CON) P M Beresford
(CON) T ABond
(CON) D P Murphy
(CON) M J Ovenden
(

(

(

(

LAB) B Gardner Spokesperson
) D G Cronk

LAB) M R Eddy

LAB)

2 OCOONOOOAAPR,WN -

0 P M Wallace

EGULATORY COMMITTEE
(CON) B W Butcher Chairman
(CON) P S Le Chevalier Vice-Chairman
(CON) D P Murphy
(LAB) P M Brivio
(LAB) B Gardner

R
1

2
3
4
5

CRUTINY (COMMUNITY & REGENERATION) COMMITTEE
(LAB) L A Keen Chairman
(LAB) G Cowan Vice-Chairman
(LAB) P J Hawkins
(LAB) P M Brivio
(CON) T ABond Spokesperson
(
(

CON) M J Ovenden Deputy Spokesperson

S
1
2
3
4
5
6
7 CON) P | Carter

13



39

40

41

8 (CON) N Dixon
9 (CON) S C Manion
10 (CON) P D Jull

SCRUTINY (POLICY AND PERFORMANCE) COMMITTEE
(LAB) K Mills Chairman

(LAB) M Cosin Vice-Chairman
(LAB) J M Heron

(LAB) D A Sargent

(CON) S C Manion  Spokesperson
(CON) P D Jull
(
(
(
(

CON) T A Bond Deputy Spokesperson
CON) P | Carter

CON) M J Ovenden

CON) M Rose

2 OONOOOAAPRWN -

0

SEAT ALLOCATION AND GROUP APPOINTMENTS

Councillor M R Eddy advised that Councillor J M Heron would replace Councillor P
Walker as the Shadow Portfolio Holder for Community Services.

RESOLVED: That it be noted that Councillor J M Heron had been appointed as the
Shadow Portfolio Holder for Community Services.

CHANGES TO THE CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE

The Chief Executive introduced the report on the proposed changes to the Chief
Officer Structure.

Members thanked the Director of Governance for his work.

It was moved by Councillor M D Conolly, duly seconded by Councillor P G Heath
and

RESOLVED: (a) That the reduction of Chief Officers from the Corporate
Management Team to the Chief Executive and two Strategic
Directors be approved with effect from 1 January 2019.

(b) That the re-distribution of functions between the Chief Officers
who form the Council's Corporate Management Team be
approved with effect from 1 January 2019.

(c) That Mr Harvey Rudd be designated as the Council’'s Monitoring
Officer with effect from 1 January 2019.

(The Solicitor to the Council, Mr H Rudd, withdrew from the meeting for the
consideration of this item of business.)

REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 2018 - COUNCIL QUESTIONS AND
ANSWERS

The Director of Governance presented the Review of the Constitution 2018 —
Council Questions and Answers.

It was moved by Councillor P G Heath, duly seconded by Councillor M R Eddy and

14



42

RESOLVED: (a) That Council Procedure Rule 12 of the Constitution of the

Council be amended to include the addition of a new rule 12.5 as
follows:

“12.5 A Member raising a question under Council Procedure
Rule 12.1 will be provided at the closure of the Council meeting
with the written information prepared by officers as background
to the relevant member of the executive’s verbal answer to the
question. This written information will be made available to all
other Members of the Council alongside the following week’s
edition of the Members’ Weekly News.”

(b) That it be agreed the amendment take place with immediate
effect so as to enable its application at the meeting of the full
Council to be held on 31 October 2018.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS

In accordance with Rule 12(1) of the Council Procedure Rules, Members of the
Cabinet responded to the following questions:

(1)

Councillor P J Hawkins asked the Portfolio Holder for Property
Management and Environmental Health, Councillor T J Bartlett:

“What action has this council taken on the Regent Cinema since the legal
planning notice deadline passed on 31st August?”

In response, the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Waste and Health,
Councillor N S Kenton, advised that he supported Deal having a cinema
and the Council would pursue a s.215 notice through the proper processes
if the exterior of the Regent was not up to requirements.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.5, Councillor P J Hawkins
exercised her right to ask one supplementary question.

Councillor M R Eddy asked the Portfolio Holder for Property Management
and Environmental Health, Councillor T J Bartlett:

“Is the Portfolio Holder for Property Management and Environmental Health
happy with the current condition of Deal Pier, after the lengthy closure of
the landmark for its refurbishment and Diamond anniversary?”

In response, Councillor T J Bartlett advised that in broad terms he was
content with the current condition, which was improving daily, as work
continued on both the installation of the replacement seating and the storm
damage repairs. He was pleased that the Council was replacing the
damaged timber on the lower deck with metal grilles, which are infinitely
less likely to be damaged by future storms and high seas.

The gas supply pipe, which caused the closure, had been replaced. While
the pier stem was a building site, the opportunity was taken to bring
forward work to reline the pumped sewage tank to prolong its life and to cut
in maintenance access panels to make future routine maintenance easier.
Hand rails were also repainted along the length of the pier whilst there was

15



no chance that members of the public could have possessions damaged
through contact with wet paint.

The asphalting on the pier stem was substantially re-laid while the pier was
closed however, following remedial work required by Council officers, the
pier stem surface had weathered to an acceptable standard.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.5, Councillor M R Eddy
exercised his right to ask one supplementary question.

Councillor P M Brivio asked the Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Homelessness, Councillor P M Beresford:

‘Following the announcement by the Prime Minister that the HRA
borrowing cap will be scrapped, will this council take advantage of this
decision by building more much-needed council houses when the
legislation is passed?”

In response, the Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources and
Performance, Councillor M D Conolly, stated that prior to the scrapping of
the HRA borrowing cap the Council's HRA had a cap of £92m, and
borrowing of circa £78m, so there was £14m of borrowing headroom. The
scrapping the cap would mean that the headroom became unlimited.
However, the Council would only borrow where there was a sound
business case to do so and if the borrowing met the requirements of the
Prudential Code.

It was not the Council’s policy to burden tenants, who finance the HRA,
with unsustainable borrowing costs, or to borrow against uncertain rent
income and assets.

In the immediate future the Council’s considerable housing development
plans would be financed primarily by Right to Buy receipts and the Housing
Investment Reserve, although this did not rule out borrowing should the
need arise and the plans be prudent.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.5, Councillor P M Brivio
exercised her right to ask one supplementary question.

Councillor P M Brivio asked the Leader of the Council, Councillor K E
Morris:

“When is the next meeting of the Brexit Taskforce due to take place?”
In response Councillor K E Morris advised that two meetings of the Brexit
Taskforce had taken place on the 15th June and the 19th October, with a

third meeting due to take place in November/December 2018.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.5, Councillor P M Brivio
exercised her right to ask one supplementary question.

Councillor M R Eddy asked the Leader of the Council, Councillor K E
Morris:

16



“Will the Leader join with me in congratulating Dover and Deal Town
Councils in retaining their fair trade status and will he commit to making this
district a ‘Fair Trade Community’?”

In response Councillor K E Morris congratulated Dover and Deal on
retaining Fairtrade status and advised that the Mayor of Sandwich had
confirmed that Sandwich Town Council would also work towards for
Fairtrade status. The Leader would look into what was required for Dover
District Council to also achieve Fairtrade status.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.5, Councillor M R Eddy
exercised his right to ask one supplementary question.

Councillor P M Wallace asked the Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Homelessness, Councillor P M Beresford:

“Is the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Homelessness confident that this
council has robust and rigorous procedures in place to check the works
and billing undertaken by contractors and sub-contractors?”

In response, it was stated that this is more properly a question for the
Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources and Performance, who was
responsible for the financial systems and processes adopted by the
Council. The works contracts managed by the Council were mainly
administered by the Property Services team. The officers responsible
managed both pre and post works inspections, as required and based on
the contract, the type of works and experience of the contractor. Billing
checks follow a similar risk based approach. On this basis the Portfolio
Holder was satisfied that the procedures in place are appropriate and
proportionate.

Councillor P M Wallace did not ask a supplementary question.

Councillor S F Bannister asked the Portfolio Holder for Access and
Licensing, Councillor N J Collor:

“Will the Portfolio Holder for Access and Licensing join me in condemning
the Government's mishandling of the Brexit negotiations, that is resulting in
the probable wasting of millions of pounds of public money on lorry parks
being constructed on our motorways, in case we don't agree a sensible
deal in time for the March deadline.”

In response, Councillor N J Collor stated that he was not party to any
discussions between the United Kingdom and the European Union so was
not in a position to answer the question.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.5, Councillor S F Bannister
exercised his right to ask one supplementary question.

Councillor P M Wallace asked the Leader of the Council, Councillor K E
Morris:

“Can | be shown a copy of the council’s strategic plan to support Dover
town centre, from London Road to the St James development?”

17



43

44

In response, Councillor K E Morris stated that he could. The emerging
proposals for possible improvements in Dover town centre were first tabled
at a Project Advisory Group in May 2017. This was further developed by
the Town Team in their bid for Coastal Community Funding in 2017, which
had subsequently been taken forward by the Council and referred to in the
report to Cabinet in January 2018.

In addition to this, it should be noted that, for planning purposes, the
northern boundary of Dover town centre currently terminated at Ladywell.
London Road, while fulfilling a local role, did not sit within the town centre.
Currently, there was more shopping floor space available in the town
centre than the demand to support it. Consequently, the future Local Plan
might need to take a more discerning view on where the town centre was
defined.”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.5, Councillor P M Wallace
exercised his right to ask one supplementary question.

MOTIONS

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13, Councillor M R Eddy moved the
Motion of which he had given notice as follows:

“This council notes the Prime Minister's announcement that austerity is over,
congratulates her on the adoption of Labour party policy and looks forward to the
additional funding needed to fund existing services and additional pressures.”

The Motion was duly seconded by Councillor P M Wallace.

Councillor K E Morris moved an AMENDMENT, duly seconded by Councillor J S
Back, as followed:

“This council notes and welcomes the Prime Minister's announcement that austerity
is over, congratulates her on the management of the economy during difficult times,
and looks forward to a brighter future for local authority funding.”

On being put to the meeting the AMENDMENT was CARRIED.

On being put to the meeting the SUBSTANTIVE Motion was CARRIED and it was

RESOLVED: This council notes and welcomes the Prime Minister's
announcement that austerity is over, congratulates her on the
management of the economy during difficult times, and looks

forward to a brighter future for local authority funding.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was moved by Councillor D Hannent, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the
business on the grounds that the items to be considered involved
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph
3 of Part | of Schedule 12A of the Act.

18



45

46

REDEVELOPMENT OF WILLIAM MUGE AND SNELGROVE SITES

It was moved by Councillor P M Beresford, duly seconded by Councillor F J W
Scales and

RESOLVED: That the Budget and Policy Framework be amended to include the
redevelopment of the William Muge and Snelgrove Sites in the
capital programme.

URGENT BUSINESS TIME

There were no items of urgent business for consideration.

The meeting ended at 8.32 pm

19



47

48

49

50

51

Public Document Pack

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

At the meeting of the Council for the District of Dover held at the Council Offices,
Whitfield on Wednesday, 12 December 2018 at 6.00 pm.

Present:
Chairman: Councillor S S Chandler
Councillors:
T J Bartlett B J Glayzer K Mills
P M Beresford D Hannent K E Morris
T A Bond P J Hawkins D P Murphy
P M Brivio P G Heath M J Ovenden
B W Butcher J M Heron A S Pollitt
N J Collor M J Holloway G Rapley
M D Conolly S J Jones M Rose
M | Cosin P D Jull D A Sargent
G Cowan L A Keen F J W Scales
D G Cronk N S Kenton P Walker
M R Eddy P S Le Chevalier P M Wallace
R J Frost S M Le Chevalier
Officers: Chief Executive
Director (Environment and Corporate Assets)
Director (Finance, Housing and Community)
Director of Governance
Democratic Services Manager
APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Gardner, P | Carter, N
Dixon, A Friend, B Gardner and A M Napier.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made by Members.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman of the Council, Councillor S S Chandler, announced that she had met
with 10 primary school children who had designed signs to discourage people from
smoking at their school gates.

SEAT ALLOCATION AND GROUP APPOINTMENTS - SHADOW CABINET

Councillor K Mills advised that he had been elected as the leader of the Labour
Group.

REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS

The Director of Governance presented the Review of Allocation of Seats to Political
Groups.

20



It was moved by Councillor K E Morris, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: (a) That the Dover Joint Transportation Board and the 2 Overview
and Scrutiny Committees be considered as Ordinary Committees
for the purposes of calculating the allocation of seats for political
groups.

(b) That a Licensing Committee be appointed with 15 seats and,
whilst noting the duty to ensure political proportionality does not
apply to the Licensing Committee, its seats be allocated to reflect
the overall proportionality of the Council.

(c) That the Council Committees be appointed with the sizes and
allocation of seats between political groups as set out below.

(d) That the seats on the committees to give effect to the
nominations of the political groups leaders be appointed as set
out below.

(e) That the allocation of seats to non-aligned members of the
Council be determined as set out below.

(f) That the appointments to the allocated seats for non-aligned
members of the Council be determined as set out below.

DOVER JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD (7 seats)

Conservative (4) Labour (2) Progressive (0) ugrr:é\ggsn(e%
1 | J S Back (Chairman) | P M Brivio G Rapley
2 | A Friend D G Cronk
3 | PDJull
4 | M J Ovenden

The Chairman of the Dover Joint Transportation Board is appointed by the Cabinet.
In addition, there are 7 KCC members, 2 KALC representatives and 3 town council
representatives on the Board.

EAST KENT SERVICES COMMITTEE (2 seats)

Conservative (2) Labour (0) Progressive (0) ugrr;'s‘grgsn(e(?)
1 | KE Morris
2 | M D Conolly

EAST KENT SERVICES COMMITTEE NAMED SUBSTITUTES

Non-Aligned

Conservative (2) Labour (0) Progressive (0) Members (0)

1 | N J Collor
2 | T J Bartlett




ELECTORAL MATTERS COMMITTEE (5 seats)

Conservative (3) Labour (2) | Progressive (0) I\l\/llgrrlr;ﬁleigsnza:)
1 | K E Morris (Chairman) B Gardner
2 | S S Chandler (Vice-Chairman) | K Mills
3 | FJW Scales
GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE (5 seats)
Conservative (3) Labour (2) | Progressive (0) ugrr:ﬁ‘g?sn(e(%
1 | S M Le Chevalier (Chairman) B Gardner
2 | M D Conolly (Vice-Chairman) K Mills
3 | D P Murphy
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (7 seats)
Conservative (4) Labour (2) Progressive (0) I\[\/llzrr]r;ﬁggsnad)
1 | P G Heath (Chairman) Sannister F R J Frost
2 | D Hannent (Vice-Chairman) | M| Cosin
3 | B W Butcher
4 | P | Carter
JOINT STAFF CONSULTATIVE FORUM (5 seats + 5 staff member seats)
Conservative (3) Labour (2) Progressive (0) ug:;’g‘ggsn(e;)
1 | M D Conolly M | Cosin
2 | P G Heath A S Pollitt
3 | S M Le Chevalier

The Forum is responsible for electing its own Chairman and Vice-Chairman.

JOINT HEALTH, SAFETY & WELFARE CONSULTATIVE FORUM
(5 seats + 5 staff member seats)

Non-Aligned

Conservative (3) Labour (2) Progressive (0) Members (0)
1 | M D Conolly M | Cosin
2 | P G Heath A S Pollitt
3 | S M Le Chevalier

The Forum is responsible for electing its own Chairman and Vice-Chairman.

22



LICENSING COMMITTEE (15 seats)

Conservative (8) Labour (5) Progressive (1) ug;:@ggsn(e%
1 | B W Butcher B Gardner P Walker B Glayzer
2 | A Friend S F Bannister
3 | PD Jull P M Brivio
4 | P S Le Chevalier | D G Cronk
5 | S M Le Chevalier | A M Napier
6 | D P Murphy
7 | M J Ovenden
8 | M Rose

The Licensing Committee is responsible for electing its own Chairman and Vice-

Chairman.

PLANNING COMMITTEE (10 seats)

Non-Aligned
Conservative (5) Labour (4) Progressive (1) Members
(0)
. B Gardner
1 | FJ W Scales (Chairman) (Spokesperson) M R Eddy
B W Butcher
2 (Vice-Chairman) D G Cronk
3 | P M Beresford P J Hawkins
4 | T ABond P M Wallace
5 | M J Ovenden
REGULATORY COMMITTEE (5 seats)
Non-Aligned
Conservative (3) Labour (2) | Progressive (0) Members
(0)
1 | B W Butcher (Chairman) P M Brivio
P S Le Chevalier
2 (Vice-Chairman) B Gardner
3 | D P Murphy

23



52

SCRUTINY (COMMUNITY & REGENERATION) COMMITTEE (10 seats)

Non-Aligned
Conservative (5) Labour (3) Progressive (1) Members
(1)
1 | T ABond L A Keen (Chairman) P Walker R J Frost
(Spokesperson)
M J Ovenden G Cowan
2 | (Deputy (Vice-Chairman)
Spokesperson)
P | Carter P M Brivio
4 | N Dixon
5 | P D Jull

SCRUTINY (POLICY & PERFORMANCE) COMMITTEE (10 seats)

Non-Aligned
Conservative (4) Labour (4) Progressive (1) Members
(1)
1| T A Bond |y cosin (Chairman) M R Eddy R J Frost
(Spokesperson)
M J Ovenden | o pawkins
2 | (Deputy (Vice-Chairman)
Spokesperson)
P D Jull D A Sargent
4 | M Rose J M Heron

URGENT BUSINESS TIME

There were no items of urgent business for consideration.

The meeting ended at 6.12 pm

24



Agenda Item No 3
Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must
disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance
that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The
Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any
matter in which they have declared a DPI| and must not participate in any discussion of, or
vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to
do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a
DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the
commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and
must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been
granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are
permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving
evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the
same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote
taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's

procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for
transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter
under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code:

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside
bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person
involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would
affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her
financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a
Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member,
relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in

some cases a DPI.

25



(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

Agenda Item No 6

COUNCIL - 30 January 2019

Questions Raised on Notice by Members of the Public

Questions will be asked in the order in which notice of them was received,
except that the Chairman may group together similar questions.

The period for questions by the public shall be limited so that no further
questions shall be put after the elapse of 15 minutes from the commencement
of the first question.

A maximum of three minutes is allowed for the each question to be read.

A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one
supplementary question without notice to the member who has replied to his
or her original question. A supplementary question must arise directly out of
the original question or the reply.

Afterwards, any other Member at the Chairman's discretion may speak for up
to two minutes on a question or reply.

Question(s)

In accordance with Rule 11 of the Council Procedure Rules, notice was given by a
member of the public to ask the following question:

(1)

Ms S Gleave (E.U. Thinking Deal and Dover) will ask the Leader of the
Council:

“Will the Leader of DDC be defending the interests of Dover district
communities by calling for a second referendum like Damian Collins MP and
Birmingham, Warrington and other City councils have done, as the only way
to cut through parliamentary gridlock and avoid the NO-DEAL Brexit that DDC
Brexit Impact assessments advise strongly against?”

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 11.8, a questioner who has put a
qguestion in person may also put one supplementary question without notice to the
member who has replied to his or her original question. A supplementary question
must arise directly out of the original question or the reply.

26



Agenda Item No 8

Subject: REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING STATIONS
Meeting and Date: Electoral Matters Committee — 22 January 2019
Council - 30 January 2019
Report of: Nadeem Aziz — (Acting) Returning Officer
Decision Type: Non-Executive
Classification: Unrestricted

Purpose of the report: The Council started its statutory review of Polling Districts, Places

and Stations on 15 October 2018. This report details the
recommendations in relation to the responses received during the
consultation and seeks agreement to amend the current scheme
to one of the options listed.

Recommendation: Electoral Matters Committee:

(a) To consider the proposed Polling District, Polling Places and
Polling Stations Scheme and make recommendations to
Council.

Council:

(a) To approve the recommended proposals for the Polling
District, Polling Places and Polling Stations Scheme

1.1

1.2.

1.3

Summary

Section 16 of the Electoral Administration Act 2006, which came into force on
1 January 2007, introduced a number of changes to the Representation of the
People Act 1983 in respect of the way in which reviews of polling districts and polling
places must be undertaken.

In compliance with the Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary
Elections) Regulations 2006, every Council in England and Wales must have
undertaken and completed a review of all of the polling districts and polling places in
its area by 31 January 2020.

As the local boundary review has just taken place, it is imperative that the review is
concluded with a view to allowing enough time for the Electoral Registration Officer to
republish the Register of Electors prior to the start of the Nomination Period for the
2019 local elections. The Electoral Matters Committee has considered the existing
scheme and determined whether any changes should be proposed prior to consulting
on the scheme. Following the consultation process the Council will determine the
Polling District Scheme to be used for Parliamentary and Local Government
Elections and Referendum. The Electoral Registration Officer will make any changes
agreed and publish the register reflecting the changes.

Introduction and Background

Designating Polling Districts




2.1

2.2

23

24.

2.5

2.6

2.7.

2.8

29

2.10

211

212

A Polling District is the geographical sub-division of an electoral area, eg UK
Parliamentary constituency, a European Parliamentary electoral region, a ward or an
electoral division.

The Council is responsible for dividing its area into polling districts for UK
Parliamentary elections and for keeping the polling districts under review.

Although there is no requirement to sub-divide local government electoral wards into
polling districts, it is recognised good practice to do so. When doing so, every effort
must be made to ensure that the polling district scheme for Local Government
elections mirrors as closely as possible that agreed for Parliamentary elections.

When designating polling districts, the Council must seek to ensure that all the
electors in the Constituency have such reasonable facilities for voting as are
practicable in the circumstances.

In addition, and unless there are special circumstances that lead the Council to
determine otherwise, each parish must be in a separate polling district.

The Council must designate a polling place for every polling district in the District,
unless the size or other circumstances of the polling district are such that the
situation of the polling stations does not materially affect the convenience of the
electorate.

The Council must keep the polling places under review.
The Council must:

(a) seek to ensure that all the electors in the constituency have such reasonable
facilities for voting as are practicable in the circumstances; and

(b) seek to ensure that so far as is reasonable and practicable, the polling places
they are responsible for are accessible to all electors, including those who are
disabled, and when considering the designation of a polling place, must have
regard to the accessibility needs of disabled persons.

In addition, the polling place for a polling district must be within the area of the district
unless special circumstances make it desirable to designate an area either wholly or
partly outside of the polling district.

A copy of the current Polling Districts Scheme including Parliamentary Electorate
figures in force at the start of the consultation is included at Appendix 1 together with
the maps depicting current and proposed Polling Districts Scheme at Appendices 2
and 3.

Polling Places

A polling place is the building or area in which polling stations will be selected by the
(Acting) Returning Officer. A polling place within a polling district must be designated
so that polling stations are within easy reach of all electors from across the polling
district.

The current Scheme designates the Polling Place as the Polling District. Where no
suitable Polling Station is available the (Acting) Retuning Officer is authorised to
designate an adjoining Polling District for that Polling Place.

28



213

214

2.15

2.16

217

3.1

3.2

3.3.

Polling Stations

A Polling Station is the actual area where the process of voting takes place, and must
be located within the polling place designated for the particular polling district. This
function is the responsibility of the (Acting) Returning Officer.

Consultation Process

The review commenced on 15 October 2018. Notice of the review was published on
the website and at Area Offices inviting views. Notice was sent to the statutory
consultees — the (Acting) Returning Officer for the Dover Parliamentary Constituency,
the (Acting) Returning Officer for the South Thanet Parliamentary Constituency and
disability groups.

In addition, notice of the review was circulated to District Councillors, Members of
Parliament for Dover and South Thanet, Parish Clerks and local political parties for
both constituencies.

In accordance with the statutory requirements, the responses from the statutory
consultees were published.

All representations submitted as part of the consultation process are attached at
Appendix 4.

Results of Consultation
General

Attached at Appendix 4 is a schedule of the responses received to the consultation
process. A few of the representations received are in connection with matters that
cannot be considered as part of this review. Specific comments relating to Polling
Stations are a matter for the (Acting) Returning Officer and any suggestions received
will be considered.

Statutory Consultee Responses

The (Acting) Returning Officer for the South Thanet Constituency has responded with
no comment.

The (Acting) Returning Officer for the Dover Constituency has requested that
consideration be given to the following:

The majority of the proposed changes are to keep in line with the recently completed
Local Government Boundary Review and the maps for the proposed polling districts
can be viewed online at https://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--
Democracy/Elections/Polling-District-Review-2018.aspx

Buckland District Ward and Whitfield District Ward

Proposed Change: 1. Creation of a new Polling District to cover the
Rokesley area of Buckland.
2. Amendment of boundary to Buckland South.
3. To amend the current polling districts for Whitfield to
divide North and South rather than East and West..

Rationale behind proposal: 1. The Local Government Boundary Commission for
England (LGBCE) has moved the Rokesley area from

29


https://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--Democracy/Elections/Polling-District-Review-2018.aspx
https://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--Democracy/Elections/Polling-District-Review-2018.aspx

Proposed Polling Stations:

Buckland District Ward into Whitfield District Ward. It
will remain in Buckland Town Ward for town council
elections.

2. The LGBCE review amended the boundary to
include part of St Radigund’s East Polling District.

3. Currently over 800 electors have to cross the A2 in
order to vote. By amending the polling districts to
divide North & South instead of East and West we can
place a new polling station on the South side of the A2
which could serve both the Rokesley area and Whitfield
South. This also allows for expected future growth of
the electorate in Whitfield North which would continue
to use the current polling station at Whitfield Village
Hall.

Christchurch  Academy, Melbourne Avenue for
Rokesley and Whitfield South — room available has its
own external sloped entrance so can be used without
closing the school. Whitfield Village Hall for Whitfield
North

Maxton and Elms Vale District Ward and Town and Castle District Ward

Proposed Change:

Rationale behind proposal:

Proposed Polling Stations:

Priory Polling District has amended boundaries and is
now included in Town and Castle District Ward.
Maxton & Elms Vale also has its shared boundaries
with Tower Hamlets and Priory amended.

In line with the LGBCE Boundary Review changes.

No change to current polling stations used for these
areas.

St Radigund's District Ward

Proposed Change:

Rationale behind proposal:

Proposed Polling Stations:

1. Amendment of boundary to St Radigund’s East
Polling District.

2. Creation of new polling district to cover part of Tower
Hamlet’'s District Ward which has been moved into St
Radigund’s District Ward.

In line with the LGBCE Boundary Review changes.
1. Barton CP School, Barton Road, with Dover Working

Man’s Club as an alternative during school renovations
2. Baptist Church, Maison Dieu Road

Tower Hamlet’s District Ward

Proposed Change:

Rationale behind proposal:

Change of the boundary of Tower Hamlets West to
include part of the Tower Hamlets East Polling District.
We propose splitting this new larger Polling District in
two, with the top part of the polling district voting at The
Ark and the bottom part of the polling district voting in
Curzon Hall (See Appendix 5)

In line with LGBCE Boundary Review changes and the
topography of the area.. The increased electorate

30



Proposed Polling Stations:

Eastry Rural District Ward

Proposed Change:

Rationale behind proposal:

Proposed Polling Stations:

Middle Deal District Ward

Proposed Change:

Rationale behind proposal:

Proposed Polling Stations:

North Deal District Ward

Proposed Change:

Rationale behind proposal:

Proposed Polling Stations:

means that two polling stations are required and
Curzon Hall is not large enough to accommodate both
stations

Curzon Hall, Curzon Road and The Ark, Noah’s Ark
Road

1. To split Sholden Parish into 3 new Polling Districts,
one of which will vote in Sholden Parish and Eastry
Rural District Ward.

2. To split Worth into 2 new Polling Districts, one of
which will vote in Worth Parish and Eastry Rural District
Ward.

In line with LGBCE Boundary Review changes

Scout HQ, The Street, Sholden and Worth Parish Hall,
The Street, Worth

To split Sholden Parish into 3 new Polling Districts, one
of which will vote in Sholden Parish and Middle Deal
District Ward

In line with LGBCE Boundary Review changes

As there is no potential polling station in this new
polling district, a second polling station will be added to
the station currently allocated to another Middle Deal
Polling District, Warden House Primary School,
Birdwood Avenue.

1. Amendment of boundaries to the Polling District of
Walmer, Gladstone Ward which falls within North Deal
District Ward.
2. To split Sholden Parish into 3 new Polling Districts,
one of which will vote in Sholden Parish and North Deal
District Ward.

In line with LGBCE Boundary Review changes

1. Walmer Sea Scout’s Hall, Marine Road

2. There is no suitable polling station within the polling
district and the parliamentary electorate for this polling
district is currently less than 100 so it makes sense to
join them with an already established polling station.
The closest suitable polling station in the North Deal
District Ward is the Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road.
The residents in the newly created Tenants Hill Polling
District would have had to pass the Golf Road Centre in
order to vote at their previous station of the Scout HQ,

31



4.1

Sholden so it would effectively mean travelling a
shorter distance to vote.

Sandwich District Ward

Proposed Change: To split Worth Parish into 2 new Polling Districts, one of

which would vote in Worth Parish and Sandwich District
Ward elections.

Rationale behind proposal: In line with LGBCE Boundary Review changes

Proposed Polling Stations:  As there are no suitable polling stations within the

newly created polling district, the best option is a joint
polling station with Sandwich North Polling District at
the Guildhall, Cattle Market, Sandwich.

Eythorne & Shepherdswell District Ward

Proposed Change: To divide the polling district of Eythorne into 2 polling

districts, Eythorne and Elvington, each with their own
polling stations. (See Appendix 5)

Rationale behind proposal: Representation received requesting the change

because there is no easy access for residents in
Elvington without cars to get to the current polling
station in Eythorne. There is a suitable polling station
within Elvington that can be used therefore the ARO
has no objection to this request.

Proposed Polling Stations: Resource Centre, Barfrestone Road, Eythorne and

Elvington Community Centre, Elvington.

A summary list of the proposed Polling Districts and Polling Stations is attached at
Appendix 6

Identification of Options

Option 1:

(@)

(b)

(c)

That the current scheme be amended to incorporate all of the
recommendations of the (Acting) Returning Officer for the Dover
Parliamentary Constituency (as set out in section 3.3 of this report).

Each Polling District be designated as the Polling Place. Where no suitable
Polling Station is available the (Acting) Returning Officer be authorised to
designate an adjoining Polling District for that Polling Place.

The Parliamentary Polling Districts and Polling Places be designated as the
Polling Districts and Polling Places for Local Government Elections.

Option 1 is the recommended option.

32



4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

Option 2:

(@) To amend the current scheme in some way to be determined by the
Committee.

(b) Each Polling District be designated as the Polling Place. Where no suitable
Polling Station is available the (Acting) Returning Officer be authorised to
designate an adjoining Polling District for that Polling Place.

(c) The Parliamentary Polling Districts and Polling Places be designated as the
Polling Districts and Polling Places for Local Government Elections.

Evaluation of Options

Option 1 is the recommended option as both statutory and non-statutory consultees
have had the opportunity to comment on the proposals. It also allows sufficient time
for preparations prior to the start of the Nomination period for the forthcoming District
and Parish Council elections.

Option 2 is not recommended as any changes proposed wold not have been
included in the consultation process and therefore would have prevented the
statutory and non-statutory consultees from commenting on the changes.

Resource Implications

There are no financial implications in designating the Polling Districts however the
cost of elections will be affected by the number of Polling Stations used.

Background Papers

Electoral Administration Act 2006.

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections)
Regulations 2006.

Notice of Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places.

Local Government Boundary Review (http://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/south-
east/kent/dover)

Attachments

Appendix 1 — Parliamentary Electorate based on Proposed Wards and Polling
Districts

Appendix 2 — Proposed Polling District Maps

Appendix 3 — Unchanged Polling District Maps

Appendix 4 — Responses received as part of the consultation

Appendix 5 — Maps of proposed Polling Districts for Tower Hamlets and Elvington
Appendix 6 — Summary of proposed Polling Districts and Polling Stations.

33


http://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/south-east/kent/dover
http://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/south-east/kent/dover

Dover District Council
Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Polling Districts

Parliamentary

Constituency New District Wards Parish/Parish Ward Polling Place/Current Polling Stations Electorate Estimate
New or Amended Ward Totals
Dover Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Alkham Parish PAK Alkham Alkham Village Hall, Hogbrook Hill 593
Dover Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Capel-le-Ferne Parish PCF Capel-le-Ferne Capel-Le-Ferne Village Hall (Small Hall), Lancaster Avenue, Capel-Le-Ferne 1630
Dover Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne Hougham Without Parish PHM Hougham Without West Hougham Parish Hall, West Hougham, Dover 409 2632
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne and Shepherdswell Aylesham Parish PAY Aylesham Aylesham Baptist Church, Dorman Avenue South, Aylesham 3651
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne and Shepherdswell Nonington Parish PNN Nonington Nonington Village Hall, Easole Street 691
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne and Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/Eythorne Ward PEX1 Eythorne Resource Centre, Barfrestone Road, Eythorne 1906
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne and Shepherdswell Eythorne Parish/ Barfrestone Ward PEX2 Barfrestone Resource Centre, Barfrestone Road, Eythorne 41
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne and Shepherdswell Shepherdswell with Coldred Parish/Shepherdswell Ward PSL1 Shepherdswell Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell 1332
Dover Aylesham, Eythorne and Shepherdswell Shepherdswell with Coldred Parish/Coldred Ward PSL2 Coldred Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell 139 7760
Dover Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC1 Buckland North Buckland Community Centre, Roosevelt Road, Dover 2661
Dover Buckland Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC2 Buckland South Shatterlocks C P Infants School, Heathfield Avenue 2491 5152
Dover Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDD Denton Denton Village Hall, The Street 139
Dover Dover Downs & River Denton with Wootton Parish PDW Wootton Wootton Village Hall, Wootton Lane 161
Dover Dover Downs & River Lydden Parish PLN Lydden Lydden Village Hall, 83 Canterbury Road, Lydden 586
Dover Dover Downs & River Temple Ewell Parish PTE Temple Ewell Temple Ewell Village Hall, 187 London Road, Temple Ewell 1348
Dover Dover Downs & River River Parish PRV River River Village Hall, Common Lane, River 3129 5363
Dover Eastry Rural Eastry Parish PEA Eastry Eastry Village Hall, High Street, Eastry 1933
Dover Eastry Rural Northbourne Parish PNR Northbourne Northbourne Parish Hall, The Drove, Northbourne 690
Dover Eastry Rural Sutton Parish PSU Sutton Sutton Parish Community Centre, Downs Road, East Studdal 632
Dover Eastry Rural Tilmanstone Parish PTI Tilmanstone Tilmanstone Village Hall, Chapel Road 290
Dover Eastry Rural Sholden Parish/ Sholden Ward PSHE Eastry Rural, Sholden Scout H.Q., The Street, Sholden 847
South Thanet [Eastry Rural Worth Parish/Village Ward TWR1 Eastry Rural, Worth Village  [Worth Parish Hall, The Street, Worth 612 5004
Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Great Mongeham Parish PGM Great Mongeham Great Mongeham Parish Hall, 170 Mongeham Road 584
Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Guston Parish PGS Guston Burgoyne Heights Community Centre, Burgoyne Heights, Guston 617
Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Langdon Parish PLG Langdon East Langdon Parish Hall, The Street 467
Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRG Ringwould Ringwould Village Hall, Dover Road, Ringwould 319
Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish PRK Kingsdown Kingsdown C P School, Glen Road 1327
Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Ripple Parish PRP Ripple Ripple Village Hall, Sutton Road 309
Dover Guston, Kingsdown & St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret's-at-Cliffe Parish PSM St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret's-At-Cliffe Village Hall, Reach Road, St Margaret's -At- Cliffe 2097 5720
Dover Maxton and Elms Vale Dover Town /Maxton and Elms Vale Ward BME Maxton and Elms Vale St Martin’s Church Hall, Church Road, Dover 2936 2936
Dover Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD1 Middle Deal, Manor Deal Christian Fellowship Hall, Sutherland Road, Deal 1909
Dover Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD2 Middle Deal, Park Linwood Youth Centre, Mill Road, Deal 1676
Dover Middle Deal Deal Town/Middle Deal Ward AMD3 Middle Deal, Upper Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal 1363
Dover Middle Deal Sholden Parish/Hyton Ward PSHM Middle Deal, Hyton TBC during review 666 5614
Dover Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH1 Mill Hill, South Deal Pentecostal Church, 69 Mill Hill 2318
Dover Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH2 Mill Hill, North The Godric Centre, Rear of St John's R C Church, St Richard's Road 1434
Dover Mill Hill Deal Town/Mill Hill Ward AMH3 Mill Hill, West The Sports Centre, Off Cavell Square, Deal 2260 6012
Dover North Deal Walmer Parish/Gladstone Ward AW4N North Deal, Gladstone TBC during review 806
Dover North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN1 North Deal, Sandown The Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road, Deal 1922
Dover North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN2 North Deal, St Andrew's Cleary Hall, Landmark Centre, 129 High Street 1826
Dover North Deal Deal Town/North Deal Ward AN3 North Deal, Victoria Baptist Hall, Stanley Road, Deal 1143
Dover North Deal Sholden Parish/ Tenants Hill Ward PSHN North Deal, Tenants Hill TBC during review 98 5795
Dover St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR1 St Radigund's, West Triangles Community Centre, Poulton Close 1604
Dover St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR2 St Radigund's, East Barton C P School, Barton Road, Dover 1773
Dover St Radigund's Dover Town/St Radigund's Ward BR3 St Radigund's, Town Dover Baptist Church Hall, 27-32 Maison Dieu Road, Dover 1195 4572
Dover Tower Hamlets Dover Town/Tower Hamlets Ward BTH Tower Hamlets TBC during review 2713 2713
Dover Town and Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT1 Town and Castle, Priory Clarendon and Westbury Community Centre, Belgrave Road, Dover 2223
Dover Town and Castle DoverTown /Town and Castle Ward BT2 Town and Castle, Castle St Mary's Parish Centre, Dieu Stone Lane, Dover 1681
Dover Town and Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT3 Town and Castle, Aycliffe Aycliffe Church Centre, Old Folkestone Road 891
Dover Town and Castle Dover Town/Town and Castle Ward BT4 Town and Castle, Redoubt St John Ambulance Brigade Hall, North Military Road, Dover 544 5339
Dover Walmer Walmer Parish/Upper Walmer Ward AW1 Walmer, Upper Walmer Walmer Chapel (Rear Hall), 30 Station Road, Walmer 2070
Dover Walmer Walmer Parish/Wellington Ward AW2 Walmer, Wellington Walmer Parish Hall, Dover Road, Walmer, Deal 2458
Dover Walmer Walmer Parish/St Saviour's Ward AW3 Walmer, St Saviour's St Saviour's Church, The Strand, Walmer 1229 5757

e




Polling Districts

Parliamentary

Constituency New District Wards Parish/Parish Ward Polling Place/Current Polling Stations Electorate Estimate
New or Amended Ward Totals

Dover Whitfield Whitfield Parish PWH1 Whitfield North Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield 3400

Dover Whitfield Whitfield Parish PWH2 Whitfield South TBC during review 820

Dover Whitfield Dover Town/Buckland Ward BC1W Whitfield, Rokesley TBC during review 336 4556
Total 74925

South Thanet [Little Stour and Ashstone Ash Parish TAS Ash Ash Village Hall (Library), Queens Road, Ash 2557

South Thanet |Little Stour and Ashstone Goodnestone Parish TGD Goodnestone Goodnestone Village Hall, The Street 294

South Thanet [Little Stour and Ashstone Preston Parish TPR Preston Preston Village Hall, Mill Lane, Preston 587

South Thanet [Little Stour and Ashstone Staple Parish TSP Staple Staple Village Hall, Mill Road, Staple 458

South Thanet [Little Stour and Ashstone Stourmouth Parish TST Stourmouth The Rising Sun Inn, (Double Door Entrance), The Street 231

South Thanet [Little Stour and Ashstone Wingham Parish TWG Wingham Wingham Village Hall, School Lane, Wingham 1378 5505

South Thanet [Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich North Ward TSA Sandwich North Meeting Room, Guildhall, Cattle Market 2079

South Thanet [Sandwich Sandwich Town/Sandwich South Ward TSB Sandwich South The Phoenix Centre, Jubilee Road 1894

South Thanet [Sandwich Woodnesborough Parish TWN Woodnesborough Woodnesborough Village Hall, The Street, Woodnesborough 970

South Thanet [Sandwich Worth Parish/Sandwich Bay Ward TWR2 Sandwich, Sandwich Bay TBC during review 176 5555
Total 10624

GE




Constituency

Current District Ward

Dover District Council

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006

Polling Districts

Polling Place/Current Polling Stations

Dover Aylesham PAY Aylesham Aylesham Baptist Church, Dorman Avenue South, Aylesham
Dover Aylesham PNN Nonington Nonington Village Hall, Easole Street

Dover Buckland BC1 Buckland North Buckland Community Centre, Roosevelt Road, Dover

Dover Buckland BC2 Buckland South Shatterlocks C P Infants School, Heathfield Avenue

Dover Capel le Ferne PCF Capel-le-Ferne Capel-Le-Ferne Village Hall (Small Hall), Lancaster Avenue, Capel-Le-Ferne
Dover Capel le Ferne PHM Hougham Without West Hougham Parish Hall, West Hougham, Dover

Dover Castle BD Castle St Mary's Parish Centre, Dieu Stone Lane, Dover

Dover Eastry PEA Eastry Eastry Village Hall, High Street, Eastry

Dover Eastry PGM Great Mongeham Great Mongeham Parish Hall, 170 Mongeham Road

Dover Eastry PNR Northbourne Northbourne Parish Hall, The Drove, Northbourne

Dover Eastry PSU Sutton Sutton Parish Community Centre, Downs Road, East Studdal
Dover Eastry PTI Tilmanstone Tilmanstone Village Hall, Chapel Road

Dover Eythorne and Shepherdswell PDD Denton Denton Village Hall, The Street

Dover Eythorne and Shepherdswell PDW Wootton Wootton Village Hall, Wootton Lane

Dover Eythorne and Shepherdswell PEX1 Eythorne Resource Centre, Barfrestone Road, Eythorne

Dover Eythorne and Shepherdswell PEX2 Barfrestone Resource Centre, Barfrestone Road, Eythorne

Dover Eythorne and Shepherdswell PSL1 Shepherdswell Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell

Dover Eythorne and Shepherdswell PSL2 Coldred Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell

Dover Lydden and Temple Ewell PLN Lydden Lydden Village Hall, 83 Canterbury Road, Lydden

Dover Lydden and Temple Ewell PTE Temple Ewell Temple Ewell Village Hall, 187 London Road, Temple Ewell
Dover Maxton, Elms Vale and Priory BE Maxton and Elms Vale St Martin's Church Hall, Church Road, Dover

Dover Maxton, Elms Vale and Priory BF Priory Clarendon and Westbury Community Centre, Belgrave Road, Dover
Dover Middle Deal and Sholden AB1 Middle Deal, Manor Deal Christian Fellowship Hall, Sutherland Road, Deal

Dover Middle Deal and Sholden AB2 Middle Deal, Park Linwood Youth Centre, Mill Road, Deal

Dover Middle Deal and Sholden AB3 Middle Deal, Upper Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal

Dover Middle Deal and Sholden PSH Sholden Scout H.Q., The Street, Sholden

Dover Mill Hill AC1 Mill Hill, South Deal Pentecostal Church, 69 Mill Hill

Dover Mill Hill AC2 Mill Hill, North The Godric Centre, Rear of St John's R C Church, St Richard's Road
Dover Mill Hill AC3 Mill Hill, West The Sports Centre, Off Cavell Square, Deal

Dover North Deal AA4 North Deal, Gladstone Baptist Hall, Stanley Road, Deal

Dover North Deal AD1 North Deal, Sandown The Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road, Deal

Dover North Deal AD2 North Deal, St Andrew's Cleary Hall, Landmark Centre, 129 High Street

Dover North Deal AD3 North Deal, Victoria Baptist Hall, Stanley Road, Deal

Dover Ringwould PRG Ringwould, Ringwould Ringwould Village Hall, Dover Road, Ringwould

Dover Ringwould PRK Ringwould, Kingsdown Kingsdown C P School, Glen Road

Dover River PAK Alkham Alkham Village Hall, Hogbrook Hill

Dover River PRV River River Village Hall, Common Lane, River

Dover St Margarets at Cliffe PGS Guston Burgoyne Heights Community Centre, Burgoyne Heights, Guston
Dover St Margarets at Cliffe PLG Langdon East Langdon Parish Hall, The Street

Dover St Margarets at Cliffe PRP Ripple Ripple Village Hall, Sutton Road

Dover St Margarets at Cliffe PSM St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret's-At-Cliffe Village Hall, Reach Road, St Margaret's -At- Cliffe
Dover St Radigund's BG1 St Radigund's, West Triangles Community Centre, Poulton Close

Dover St Radigund's BG2 St Radigund's, East Barton C P School, Barton Road, Dover

Dover Tower Hamlets BH1 Tower Hamlets, West Curzon Hall, Curzon Road, Dover

Dover Tower Hamlets BH2 Tower Hamlets, East Dover Baptist Church Hall, 27-32 Maison Dieu Road, Dover
Dover Town and Pier BJ1 Town and Pier, West Aycliffe Church Centre, Old Folkestone Road

Dover Town and Pier BJ2 Town and Pier, East St John Ambulance Brigade Hall, North Military Road, Dover
Dover Walmer AA1 Upper Walmer Walmer Chapel (Rear Hall), 30 Station Road, Walmer

Dover Walmer AA2 Lower Walmer, Wellington Walmer Parish Hall, Dover Road, Walmer, Deal

Dover Walmer AA3 Lower Walmer, St Saviour's St Saviour's Church, The Strand, Walmer

Dover Whitfield PWH Whitfield, East Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield

Dover Whitfield PWT Whitfield, West Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield

South Thanet Little Stour and Ashstone TAS Ash Ash Village Hall (Library), Queens Road, Ash

South Thanet Little Stour and Ashstone TGD Goodnestone Goodnestone Village Hall, The Street

South Thanet Little Stour and Ashstone TPR Preston Preston Village Hall, Mill Lane, Preston

South Thanet Little Stour and Ashstone TSP Staple Staple Village Hall, Mill Road, Staple

South Thanet Little Stour and Ashstone TST Stourmouth The Rising Sun Inn, (Double Door Entrance), The Street
South Thanet Little Stour and Ashstone TWG Wingham Wingham Village Hall, School Lane, Wingham

South Thanet Sandwich TSA Sandwich, North Meeting Room, Guildhall, Cattle Market

South Thanet Sandwich TSB Sandwich, South The Phoenix Centre, Jubilee Road

South Thanet Sandwich TWN Woodnesborough Woodnesborough Village Hall, The Street, Woodnesborough
South Thanet Sandwich TWR Worth Worth Parish Hall, The Street, Worth

36



Dover District Council

L
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Polling District Review 2018

Proposed Polling District Maps



Contents

AW3 —Walmer, St SavIoUr's ... 3
AWA4N — North Deal, Gladstone.......cccoovvvvviiiiniinn... 4

BC1 — Buckland North
BC1W — Whitfield, Rokesley ..., 6

BC2 — Buckland South ..., 7
BME — Maxtonand EImsVale .............ccooeiuiii ... 8
BR2 — St Radigunds, East ..., 9

BR3 — St Radigunds, TOWN .........ccooiiiiiiiiiiie e, 10

BT1 — Town and Castle, Priory ..............ocoieieennn. . 11
BTH —Tower Hamlets ..., 12
PSHE — Eastry Rural, Sholden ............................. 13
PSHM — Middle Deal, Hyton ..., 14
PSHN — North Deal, Tenants Hill ........................... 15
PWH1 — Whitfield North ..., 16
PWH2 — Whitfield South ..., 17
TWR1 — Eastry Rural, Worth Village ....................... 18
TWR2 — Sandwich, Sandwich Bay ......................... 19

38



Leisure
Centre

Playing
Figld

-,

P, g
2 g
— ™

:StiSavigu

L
9 i

S

—
1

!

Hov3g IHL

Marke Wood
Recreation
Ground

‘SBURY _ROADZ

ghts 2018 Ofdnance Survey 100019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: AW3 - Walmer, St Saviour's

. Dover District Council
Scale 1:5,000 Honeywood Close s
White Cliffs Business Park Bg&%&
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield

COUNCIL

DOVER 39
3 CT16 3PJ —



4

= e Promenade Pier E

,n
o i, b
LN

%,

X/
‘\ o
g,

]
& e
%R

A9

i’
EACH ST B
ﬁﬁﬂ--’
Azsa —rz

DEAL

SONDES ROA

S

B aatranea
NLEY |

2 .ﬁig
— =N omlE ]
frt:1 |” RANELAGH RD

el

2
gh Water, 1 8,7

i

i

Mean Low Water

-~ Mean Hi

7T
I
g U —

PTT—
e
|
e

: 1'—1'-,'-.\’%}\ s

24805 g S
<K \ﬂ _‘i\ % 77 e g
NVANEINGT Deal

Playing
Figld

Hov3ag JHL

;["’a'ﬁd d.éft'a}ba?e rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780
LN, 18

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: AWA4N - North Deal, Gladstone

Scale 1:5,000

Dover District Council —
Honeywood Close 5?%

White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Whitfield QIS TRICT

DOVER
CT16 3PJ

COUNCIL

ll 4



SPIDWICH o <

%m Hill

= P
s
j= Jor NN
N % >3
< PIRG & 122m
& K N .
" T T A (’/
AYFE E D R 2\
] Bl & % > 2\
PO. 2 2 % N
& 27

~Whitfigld
“Roul nga’bda

OldRark>
o Wood” o

¥y ¥,

- \@ :
7S

Zr i seses

w/ ‘-‘““sz'ﬁ’ S &
\QQ{ * ,z

Athletic
Ground

42
. _Pavilions /% <
S i

"
W

¥,

Chombe D‘own\_\

¥,

e
’
_____ R
Q
I RS
g7 i 3“\\"‘. X5
S
h//o Zrl .7..‘;/ 'g‘},{ﬁ \,‘{?}“
|;|3|v|ll S (%‘2“‘\,, e
S

e, v
Hospital¥. _
rd

Zoi5n3

T Bugkian

'B_?idge

¥,

s
S
<

R -
w  White 9|iffS

\Busings$ Park
b =

Christ Church Academy

Light Hill

Dover

and Aspen 2 Unlt 4

(foasmon) AVOA NVIWOT

¥, kg ¥,
Green Park
.Community
Primary_School

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: BC1 - Buckland North

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

e

1\
ST
2 R,

53 Tl &'
5 as LE ARG
ZSEIRR
(SOm00
D

A
HEI S NN
My }—w o
Danie 7 \ 9
% AN\YS
“%

W, >
e
\

3 Hor,
T !

N lI:Sandwith

g
2

s D
R
‘\“ gy

AP
rn

AT

S

ce:Survey’
ST E Y PG

y Hole
Whiting ST
Farm™ /f ||
|
Egerton I |
House, | |
o,
at. RS /7
¥, LongHill /// / >
bl /7 S
" [Playing /7
g o\ Field Y Y "
- K} "
¥\~ o o
Y /4 o>l
SR 0¥ .,
o A
b s 7 4 The Danes
0 " (Recreation Ground)
WY, , 5
4 ' Pavilion %
4 7
st SN /\( av, ¥ v,
Loty War / ¥, ¥, ¥
Meml g
Allot Gdns P ',' B2 ¥ "
S P 4
a7 i Cemetery ¢ o g wér d b
Depot e P &% Left
g 5 «w¥ Caponigr

123m
¥,

Left Flank,y,

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

l



wn“'w“
Posts. o’
‘-—"-’A
-
IIIII rk
\'*‘ir*
7/
&ﬁe‘e N
!| £/
,jl’
o 9,
| éjl i) ] )
; hL | 0 | m
s L L

T OIS

T -Jﬂlr A

=1

1\

0 <7

Dover Christ Church Academy
and Aspen 2 Unit

/

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: BC1W - Whitfield, Rokesley

Scale 1:2,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Dover District Council

Honeywood Close - \
White Cliffs Business Park Bg}{&ﬁ:
Whitfield COUNCIL

DOVER 42
CT16 3PJ _



= T 7
gls /1
®
é /1
/1
/1
11/
g
. ) I
.
5 d 7
3
\¥ ol
Wk oW ¥ v A= j t/
5 A
¥, ¥, ¥, ¥, ! l T
Green Park K |
;Community ¥, y |
Primary School g 121m ] l
¥, ¥ b |
¥ N :'
¥, X% i N
\\\ ! | |
a¥.|  Green Lang" AN p
, Hil S N
a¥. o, T
~ I§andwiph
¥, ¥, o ;;Zm Hole [
0 o Whiting [
¥, ¥, wé, “é, ¥, ¥, ¥, ¥, ¥, - Farm /F | |
|
|
[
: [
Egerton I
\2 House,
=il [
= S ¥, ¥,
g ' ¥ o /7
S . LongHill , ~ /// /
g £
‘?}%’ d ¥, g 2 Y // “
. v alaving ‘ /// / )
v, o \-
8 . \ ././
Allot Gdns e Ey ) Mast N AV
OBART CRE SOt/ & ok e2m ) 7" The Da
= % V2 83

(Recreation {

“Grabbl R G Allot Gdns
Grabble | Crabble W ) NN\
S Athletic | Athletic N ¢ VAR NREE% .
Weround | Ground e . : 2 v uth N ‘s Depot
A S0 Jm) . SN _
" ) Y S Bucklana ~¢ 117 A ARl ~ Mest
st/ [ Sy K\ L T i T
Football > = { St
' ground T Buckland
& 74 -
RN . iﬂ,,’Brlqge@
/ S5
f ¥, s/ Mast &
¥ Y .
, ¥, .
¥, wé,
: ¥,
¥, e

€6ombe Down

RADIGUND 5_ROAD
R mns

L I g

&R

¥ & M’“TERR
SR I
® v
2 4
(0 K ¥, -
N ) pPs 2
- =
£y Av, R P
& s et
’ P .

N ogoitalv.
‘Hospital¥. |l

’—\\n_ 3
) =
s Dyl

R Tower [ & b
) Hamlets  \gehool [~£~
. Aot
il :
ields = ) 5 > / A - 7 .
Playing L e W Wtks A ¥ N e T LA Y 4 %Q?’ 0 \ED Y
Field : : T ¥ © Crown copyright: e rights:2018,0rdnance,Surveyx100019780
- e U S ] C YWy ZBNE A A KX\ PW A K EN ONNENNANEN R N 1]

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: BC2 - Buckland South

Scale 1:8,000 Dover District Council —
o Honeywood Close "

White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
DISTRICT

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield COUNCIL

DOVER 43
7 CT16 3PJ _



House

Hollow
Wood

Industrial \
Estate

LR
Tk
! Long. d
"ng

e Wood -
& Sl

GOl

Ca¥e T

0~ za Mount'Elm:
2 ,% Farm

LN

a¥

PR W =

oA \'AllolGdls_)/ ==l d
b 3 .= Pavilion Fs

. QQ,, \ s =S

Recreation Ground 5

R an AL oy
TR

5
@m‘ﬂ ofs 3 sEﬂ:‘
ROUGH ROz 5oaf

P i,
TR
s ol
0 &5
I

5

UFOY 3 \ o

"‘Lfﬁé%“ﬁ\&‘
J| S

] fEE

| = b

T 5 AN "'}\"“"’\
5 3
5 D
<

> S
BT o NS SN

g

e

“EhChilverton

o= =, Elms

2l
Elms:

b ST gy

o

.{7—‘_ TS
e S
S

ar1i,n§ [
- Woody: 1=

= ’.«ﬁ-%;c\‘

Farthingloe
-\ Close

Broomfield, %

Wood

N
[T\

WaSte Water
Treatment\Works

ey S
b Chy 2

Wogd

. ~Lunnons
A7 W0
s e

M

s

E.--Maxton ahd El

X

B I

: 'Sfe‘.'“in‘ Down = T
0ping Down

s

s

¥ Ly
- Fox Burrow:”
Sy
urch - .63
food " v

— &

L (=
v ;- Visitor, o

; o
Centre ™ . -,
3 N
\ Saniohi
2Dy samp Ire//

Jowsr

fa“ -
@?Air Shaft

Round Down

Channel Tunnel
Ventilation Facility

A el 2 d
: R ‘\V it
PR M
‘%f\\}\:}“@%‘?
SR

N
o AN
sy

4 NP o~
&

P

S
Gt 4
& xé&%‘ *
3¢ /‘5@

P>

R il
3,

g

© Crown copyright and databaS(la rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Proposed Polling District: BME - Maxton and EIms Vale

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el 4



Long Hill ,y,
i

S Nty
"%i\‘i"lﬁimi"i’la 58—

TN
\Bu,ckl,and
AR
< \ / "‘\\\Gm% B"_\
NN «.-T Buckland NSy
' W, [Bridge &
= A

% el mﬂ
\ R

RN

) W A J
100019780

g3 -

ce Sur

==

own-copyright'and dat dnar

A

r
=

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: BR2 - St Radigunds, East

Scale 1:5,000 Dover District Council =

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield couNeiL

DOVER 45
CT16 3PJ I



Pavilion %/

R
LN

/22

v,
v,

R A 2 el £
S N s
v - A ‘—",h'.o#-ﬁ@ o

.#' p X ‘K\w .;';-ig, 4}9 3

&7

XN _-@;'&; {3

0%
&
4y
A

%
@,
)

. A \zh g
- " A5 £y
. A Y N A
© Crown;copyright
LA .+ I W i

nd\datab‘ase,rlgh s!2018'Ordnance Survey-100019780-
: TN N\ NN o ) N ABINA

i
a
W ooz 8\ ™) " e AV ©

-

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: BR3 - St Radigunds, Town

. Dover District Council =4
Scale 1:5,000 Honeywood Close 5?%
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield couNeiL
DOVER _ 46

10 CT16 3PJ



SR e

) N
- Ay

Tower . b=l ( S5 w0 ¢
Hamlets  \gehool [P ¢

Playing ‘:

Fields =

Playing L
Field

<cel

rop Redoubt ¥ :

. (disused)
~ |

NN
DS

-

Playin
Fit‘a’ldg

-
4 - e

=, <~ Détached , \= 1

;-7 \\Bastion \ JE

Marina

g

/| » (2
\, D ey = o) 7 Pontoons
N Ry W e Weliidgton
4 ) E—u Dock
-t Ty o 3 _’ _
N _—— ] [
- =——t‘; R e i “\ E UNJON —
‘i‘a“il"‘l("‘l.‘?az:’ 11‘\“\“ 9 ; ST GI‘I'I
R~ = m A3 el Sports Ui — > s
v Ground Hhiop Quay - -
B i i Wellingtony
- - Bridge =
T ] 4
-t Pontgans Marina '.1
Custom 1y
House -]Pontoons !
= |
Quay Marina
L ekl - Dolphin 3
Imekiin Jetty (%
. Rbt - o \
Granville Tidal Basin {
Cock Pontoons

o R e,. I DAY

> ZSites n fic o

S /”’,’ r-:\, ;:‘ ,/,./ \‘\3;6 / N
Pf{) e c% : \“. . wﬁdatébe\lse rights 2018 OwnceSur\EL-lpoowmo
DDC Polling District Review 2018

Proposed Polling District: BT1 - Town and Castle, Priory
Scale 1:6,000 Dover District Council 5?%

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park Bg‘g&&
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield COUNCIL

DOVER 47
11 CT16 3PJ —



-
-
-

Playing “_

Fields -

Playing TTTL G
Field

~

/.\ -
P ;":3 \"!r!"’
;j‘ v :,&:\ & o
; e *

pping
own

N -
—-:-—th
Pa ‘ P
» 2
_‘_;ni_x_;l_nlli‘_‘_:l‘“?”‘(

Sy

- -~
T [
-

.

'Y /.’Sgi\\Agf g - /\

M“m K{«‘:

N>

— éﬁ? E:L’Qv\(nh,%opy\gght and databas%lght§,. 018'qunance,§urvey 100019780

e~ A//\ ¥

-
-~
.
4 - B
£ - Detached
”~ -~

\L VA

o/

“4

\

%
"I 3 iefs’/tﬂ

XN Pav A

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: BTH - Tower Hamlets

Scale 1:6,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
12

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ml



Greenacr
Farm

ﬁ;«:"._
& "Hacklin
’ .
\ Vg

ang;?r” !
Iliegy” |/

K
o

.
S
g ~~

astry Rural,

('% ~n
No- ;’n‘

o
o

ONALr &
e

o \ F A E
Betteshanger Frrea

Park

~~~~~~~~~

L

56

. \ )
SN b
s .., o "'. LL

------‘ :--------------'J‘“h-’"-"“

3 =3 8 LA
o »
\ / V8 — /Z" i
X g - N .

\‘-1._-‘- I ) " : L

\ ¢
. ¥
17 /5 Sparrow o N
r, %a\ “\Co.u r£ M o nge,h

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: PSHE - Eastry Rural, Sholden

Scale 1:12,500

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

and'datapaseéright*z180rdr1n

RN NN AN A IR

R 39,

13

» >'Sh_o'1den
8 Farm

b WSS

-, e G
7 T

3

Cc

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

e Survey;100019780x
3 - S

e
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ml *°



nnn

L4

ssssss

&
v“"«)

uuuuuu

. X, “o‘"i g
/(‘9\%{93’1’\” (iopyrlg\rlt \algd\databa\?e \gghgs/;ZO;igrgna\che S\urvq}\nl*09019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: PSHM - Middle Deal, Hyton

Scale 1:2,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
14

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

)
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el ~°



&S

WY, ’ Garavan

Park

~ Royal Cing| Ue Ports
. N, Golf Lirl1ks

\
L
ks\_

Sandhills 4

Caravan Park

i

n
i [Pig
| S

mdf

B
3

T aee®

=
<

__uein 3
B
K

'

X .
ii % ' Royal Golf Links
£ Cinque Ports

Golf Club

3 &
W > a5
AP o ok

e

: ‘14||“A

SRl
SUPNEY 2

?@Q:\‘\\:::h\/;’:; ‘;yf’”’o VI '7\ 0&. %iy 7 “a?f'O”S\c
O, / }[;7\ - © Crown copyright and database rights'20
DY i \'f' - /——4’3} s AD & i ,g &/ o I-..%g r<alliyy,

Kennelx 2

Farm

“-_
Gaag]
fi=at

\3

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Proposed Polling District: PSHN - North Deal, Tenants Hill

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

15

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

Drain / -‘ und:g;:z o(;)astle
0 \
SN

Sandwich Bay

5!

Vel

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el !



\ | a /| Ly / ._u"_,’« A !

\ h:ier“es:?’oJ . / | Y/ . £ % /i i .@ ! 2
B g A Ny / Y %) VicarageS5iy A2
\ ] : / / o = a8 | Fgrm ﬁ”“”) .V'
—. | / f = / 4 / ’ / / o | 7 1 o -‘.‘-: 7 )

OLDREL CP > A / ¢ Sk Y B S
e ] - Pl Napchest;er ; pchester- :  Fostall@

ry | ¢ / Q 1 — Farm / : b, '
et l/ oy Y. bar s % B P A
< / Frdedi 1 ] X ) 4 Y- QG West _
e X 7y o | 4 : S/ ile | f fe—=7 ¥’/ Langdon
o o / F - | J _
H\x\ s Na;::cheste_r NG :
4 S o / arm | %/ [ / V
¢ A i =
\ ei/,/ /S o/ S,-' M
¥ F /lo/'St Margaret’s.
7 J P N/ Farm
\ /g
‘r\\le.\;gsole
arm
(e F
o )
;’ o

\
4( q:*."‘ff.‘ .'-':" ()Q
\ .Captain’s

' ‘\‘ o Voed /
/N Xter /

|
" F
-. %
S
L= 4 3

Thornslf \Vadl -" ; )
' 27 Singledge

XX R\ ATTEAEL DS
SingledgefN " | 7 0z1c B )
SN 5P 22

“a, - 6.:
e Parsonage %\

L é"

Farm &

fN orth

R
7T ":f ~d
1o R L
17=2Whi
e pe
sy

P
Sy
XIS
0 T

==/
=%

SBustonco
7 Farm

ane

~

A

B fom sumog ion

<

o T/
“ak ﬁ

f!!!

& 7
':,; _.;fﬁf ‘:,-‘-:‘q.‘f o
é.’ PRl :ri{ ;5',-_ ' ST BN 'v',_Jf;/{
ase, nghtsSOrdnncg‘{:_‘. vey‘~1990197\8\9<q

il " S

andd

NI

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: PWH1 - Whitfield North

Scale 1:15,000 Dover District Council o=y

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield couNeiL

DOVER 52
16 CT16 3PJ —



g !.) [enaére Woi:ndt)‘r

¥- Pavilions

Playing Field

{@'_‘ P

%

&

5

W

2

32
X%
Y

\lO

d
S B
5 '
NG

G

AL

&
<

1

¢
S

A

RN

/0
or 4

S

2
%
LY

&

!

-~

y/4 K
AR

Za

iz

o)

~J &7

R, ; ,Q‘:r’ P 4«@ 2

Longfield ‘?%Q
Farm N

PO\ oD
I\
N

AN
2

! L)
‘ \‘ 'A‘V
&0
&
38

o\

i
=\

&

!

i

WL
¥

e
28
il

gﬂ?

o
s
O
i

House

D

o

Ko

&

b

P
=
:
Efl

V“ > / *:*»<’€

W
:

D

¢

O

S
S
)

&

i

i

.
I

4
3B

3

i
.
i

A
TR,

\
i
ni -

B
s

P

i

i
o

;

iln

H

58]
|

e
B

Light Hill

avod NVIWOE

o
&N
I

ﬁ

[T

S
HENEVWO>

—F3

Light Hill

!

St
%
ARG, &
0, Z>

\A’. QQ’"‘O # & . “‘"’ T
DS
\% ) ,é,Sw &

0; ",’%

-

%
m AN \ % O
%7/ X S 3 2,
’i‘“”ilﬂ'~'a;>@@* &5
AE S aley S, (PRI ARN

>
RSP R
\"‘:" Vs S

9%
oy
Wy

2

: uv iiF.ﬂl

£

o,
e
o,

LiT
&G
R3S

> Z0.” KX ¢
SRRSO \_st’, R G
NN Lt
SO @"'y ,'.‘
5 g

£
% £
‘t—a"’/ %
s

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: PWH2 - Whitfield South

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

A

O
ot v‘.'!. o, f
o I

g ez

8
Dover E \?/
Christ Church Academy i
and Aspen 2 Unit Ky g /
<
= o I
g I
£ 11
s 11
S 11
[
e
i
I
I
t/
11
Il
Il
o Thistiey o I
w¥, Hill
R I
Green Lane'. I
I“SandwiLJ‘
r2m Hole

N & d v, v,
7 ‘ oy ;
g‘ % ¥, Long Hill
* ‘ﬁ/ 7V ¥ g 2

)
‘.94‘?:\‘
Q)

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park

Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

VeyRP0

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

l ~c



-bone HiIL_

fssCrtider
1 S

"". Little Pou’l/dérs

Ston

: O',"‘/ Al
« 2% Buckland
Dy Farm

-

.

8 & 7
1 /0N, Farmo 24
N A

}”.‘ \\!‘\5 3 {i-.;'.. P ;‘:

; . S _t\Burtboi:)lr1c' - s 3
w5 . Poulders /ﬁ “hosgital S A

. % Gardens ‘/ | \
w T s & \\
: b / E By .

W 2 \

./, -
" West Sereet”

SchB=g

¥

a O . s
G2y

Y

N

P:eed b;ook\ A%
Wood

A
?

Farm *

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: TWR1 - Eastry Rural, Worth Village

Scale 1:15,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

= ittle
Temptye =
T Brew
ouse &"12 Bridg
=

y Co eld

o

X

O\)
N o owsAercer's < o\ U - 5\

N QN Farm

- “

S e

1, Blue Pigeo S
sl Farm h\
& h \

. N K
|, "'Worth )\

database rights, 2018 Ord
y X e R

ir

o

-y

nance Sur
LN N

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

s
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el >



= TESToTT ]
Traditional srtfo! the _..., A ey
Landlr{gs‘; :hc Saxans (449,34 L $o
Pegwell Bay
|
W i 2 ' =
o o g
M"eatherlees\ . é/ /
N ) e _._..——'/ -
= oo
s
Mud & Sand
Sandwich Flats
Castl f
ferouh Caate 37 38
ROMAN FORT
Iremains of} :
Sandwich Bay
£ fnguL: trPo ulders._h
| -~ i
- . f IS8 8 3 g
( Mary- [ooia Hill o=z,
AT
N
/ By | The L
Manior 'X h ! - {= ‘TEKtIe =
W) e o : -- . q emprye o
s 1§ [ € ' Temp(;}g) q;::ﬁ; IueF::f:on'
g ’, PE g b armhouse o Bridg¢ ./
wwu;::z«:d
A\
eﬁ":‘.urvey 100019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling District: TWR2 - Sandwich, Sandwich Bay

Scale 1:25,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
19

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

E—

White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el



Dover District Council

L
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Polling District Review 2018

Unchanged Polling Districts Maps



Contents

AMD1 — Middle Deal, Manor ...............cccciiiiiienn, 5
AMD2 — Middle Deal, Park ............cccoiiiiiiiiinns, 6
AMD3 — Middle Deal, Upper .....cccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiee, 7
AMHI1 —Mill Hill, South ... 38
AMHZ2 —Mill Hill, North ... 9
AMH3 —=Mill Hill, West ... 10
AN1 — North Deal, Sandown ................c.coiieenn . 11
ANZ2 — North Deal, StAndrew’s ...........cooviiiiineenn. 12
AN3 — North Deal, Victoria .............cccoveiiiiiiiinnne, 13
AW1 — Walmer, Upper Walmer ..., 14
AW2 — Walmer, Wellington ..., 15
BR1 — St Radigunds, West ..., 16
BT2 — Town and Castle, Castle .....................ool. 17
BT3 — Town and Castle, Aycliffe .........................l. 18
BT4 — Town and Castle, Redoubt ........................... 19
PAK —Alkham ... 20
PAY — Aylesham ... 21
PCF — Capel-le-Ferne ..., 22
PDD —Denton ..., 23
PDW —Wootton ... 24
PEA —EAStrY ..o 25

57



PEX1 & PEX2 — Eythorne and Barfrestone ............... 26

PGM — Great Mongeham ..............cccoiiiiiii e, 27
PGS — GUSION ..o 28
PHM — Hougham Without ...t 29
PLG —Langdon ... e 30
PLN —Lydden ..., 31
PNN — NONINGION ... e e, 32
PNR — Northbourne ..., 33
PRG —RIingwould ..., 34
PRK —KINgsdown ..., 35
PRP —RIpple .., 36
PRV — RIVEI . e e, 37
PSL1 & PSL2 — Shepherdswell and Coldred ............ 38
PSM — St Margaret’s-at-Cliffe .........cocovviiioi, 39
PSU — SUON . 40
PTE—-Temple Ewell .........ccoo i 41
PTI—TiHmanstone ..., 42
TAS — ASh Lo 43
TGD — GoodnNestoNe .......ooviiiiiiiiiii e 44

TPR —Preston ..., 45
TSA —Sandwich North ... 46
TSB — Sandwich South ... 47
TSP —Staple ... 48

58



ST —Stourmouth ... e, 49

'WG — Wingham

"WN — Woodnesborough ...,

59



Tenants Hills

Sandhils | ) I -
Caravan Park] ! 53
Draj e
rain K REDHOUSE WALL

m

Little

Lc
LY T Track . “
< pratn ¥ T

Drain

Redhouse
Wall R Bams
'EE' Farm 2. Close
£ 5

X Track

KennelK :‘

.
s a2 p Farm
[SaRM

-

untry Park

North Deal
Playing Field
£

& /// 1 X & O,b,é
dle dDe,aI, Manoried
Industrial,

Estatg,

&7

B (o
AMD1 - Mid N

SRFY v
Churchfield
g Farm i

S SOV N .
% \HARLE&,? 3% A
S5
% k)
STYUEN X
Football 7
Ground Pav

% War

& 4%

R/ Mem| 7
2
S S

it 50 4 39|

DL .

A ¢S Cemetery,

%

18y
2e

-
~
pV4
P

I

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AMD1 - Middle Deal, Manor

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

\,‘— U ~farar . 7
‘database rlghts/

Sandwich Bay

"\ Sandown Castle
(site of)

20N
L \{‘,\‘h

i
=)
=]

Mean Low Water

Promenade Pier

AL

&
A

2018 Ordns

GO

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

gl ©°



v ) W" .-‘. ' 7] ——figgu!s Lgf.. . Py
\_%_g,l @*@%«g@( '.'57 Hy 5@@@@ TR

Playing S Tt @'"@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfm
" / ” o 3 l.l,&.’éf/l

0 L K
N i s .

SN o) St
%)

D) f@@g,' \

> W PR 5%
."‘_ //‘}"%e\ 4

1% \/’\ s
//,,Aw,/ &
S =

Y SR
Y LEALS

e

>
&

s
s . %&@; oS
AN ‘%0% “ ¢ /_. ?%Q J« ofF - ;\

P DY s}

/ S NG
Football 3

andd

T

) i # b Ly . "
4874, NOX SNES ) A XY ¥©_Crown copyri
i ':fﬁk&-& 20505525, IR XE OOA d \# AT A

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AMD2 - Middle Deal, Park

Scale 1:5,000 Dover District Council =

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield couNeiL

DOVER 61
6 CT16 3PJ I



~ i%4

>IAVD3LM

W

4
D
S

5
S
RO
&L
Qr

B
&

S
4%,

Sports
Ground

W,

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AMD3 - Middle Deal, Upper

Scale 1:5,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

I EN
A .
em {7

)

L o ’ '
‘Ordnance’ Survey:1000197

8 'E A P58 & & ‘§<‘g,‘
- . 0% 7 \’g“% _ & {‘g’

OREAL
RO

}‘\ s

S TL AT 7

%
%v’v’ P O ¥ ‘ '.".

Y

&

XL

22 N
N

l

7
50

)

|

jiosas
\!!4'

NV

Ry

< o |

~&7V

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ol ©°



G A RGOV NS L=
> A@%&@?@ R - -4
PN VY 7
SR TP
y ‘«’\‘f ‘ 3 @ [&‘

l D
-ﬁ% )
v ’/“v

Leisure
Centre

W

-
&
%

&2

Sports
Ground

%
South

ZA WY SO
SR =
SRR Y N
g, \*
%04 ,'{ ‘\\ < ) / 4 &/
O o 2 L o,b
&/ ‘%’ b
NS SN € YIS
/ & Y Elps SOLS ) “"_Q,l‘[é‘.) . D
@/ &"‘g L0 & '\, N ?j’fz‘g B 04 2 _f“:aﬁ?@ & N 05
S ’ & 2 \’4"9.‘ 3’ % / /,ﬁ\»\ 45 /"'! A o ,?' AONG N ; { A
-- K PR LXK KRR 7,
' 7 BN Y SINGANE: i
; i PR S O > , _ 1) 48 \) ;
N N e LN S SN\
VR =
i

,,,,,
W)
2
4

, b/, !ré-* 1"*" \
N A oA ~; .@u' N

%
e AUF
A\
2

Ay

a%‘
Wb

/',9

3 \ o,
fe
0

25

"‘:{t{{/ ' ’
b
Gy
é«»«?
L/

yaN
.% %

£, L
= NI N
N \\ft 7NN,
- NN RN
<E %f" DY
29m Yo X

w

Walmer

,, o ence COI %ﬁ%%—ﬁ?
4 .
55 i

\ LS ? 9) N
) SO e s D pperWal e

_&' l',w &= Yraim, o4 N X : > SN, éj“‘"":faﬁg : :,
l B BT R g i 21 0 e S 0003

A e

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AMH1 - Mill Hill, South

Scale 1:5,000 Dover District Council =

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield couNeiL

DOVER 63
8 CT16 3PJ I



The

baﬂ]

Sports
Ground

S

Church

@/é@%
X &

N, S2EK LR
SR ‘OIA

(™3

H ""i
‘gmum E’I-
avod SSOM0

2 "4:_,'\\ N
v O

¢ ,‘i\ d

% 2

0. “ ANty ) &5
@ ‘é’ ()

‘*”{g &
£ >\

SRS
Qs%\ G

% K Settlement

AEN //’I)‘\% &
O WIN Y
R 4
SIS ‘%4’?5; #1%&3:\ %}\\‘ &
WSS
% ‘1‘%\
Hy NN

£,
RN /S
NN f‘-"’
e 5 4

N
AL

LR

Q(‘? .

S/

Walnm|
Science (

I
el

5 =
'r-‘m”‘%

o
N

L7

S L3
Ty
s %{{'l?}'ifh

.t’“aﬁn

yati
L]
5 i,
o Centre o ) ) "'_s!%
a L]
D A
1)
/w\ \ o <L
~¥ - .'
W 5
SR \ o (4,
N Q
Coldblow ‘N g5 Phe
Farm N ‘-’ e
s/ .Cold Blow
'4 ~, Crossing
™S p(%
P

MW/l
B o 2 L

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AMH2 - Mill Hill, North

Scale 1:6,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el %



Chalk Pit Cottages
l'_h //
RY: * \

Sholden Downs

7 Hillside
~ 1.y Fam

Easterleigh

i

iﬁ:? &K )

R Ripple QQ' %
VieW\ b2
N\ DN

%% %%
(XX

2 &5
(DXL,

Q b,
]

%% %%
GRRAAS

>

IS

0. 0.0 0“000"‘.‘ W0’
4

o e
TR Y
#
RIS
SIRRREREKS
ERIRARS,
RKE 72,
K2,
DNSA
Al
P 4/ 2
Zz

B
-

o

urchfield
Farm

Sports
Ground

AR

© Crown copyright

Net\,

G

o
QQQO'II sy
NEY

HoON NS

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AMH3 - Mill Hill, West

Scale 1:7,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

10

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

D
KA
Sl

é *»
e Survey.l

Path  7m
‘} RS ST

N

X [y
1000197805
L5 XN Yoy 5

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el ©°



7 FH T REDHOUSE waLL L& Cinque Ports
— -""“— = f " = _—Sz\,é' Golf Club
\ Litle syl A _
Acre : y i, Sandown Castle

rack =

A = ’ !

T

Drain / Redhouse

- Wall
3 Farm

Kennels‘* 9 N/

Farm

=
LS
=T
| ) & -
s litwale
ﬁﬁhi!igg §a===§§ B
=] Sen
ek §=§§5\ ﬁ%ﬁ% ,.,E-"-
..i §=E-EJ
sl s = i
YT ""—_’5 §=.-_%.!
] %ﬂm"% T
ATHE S Al
| 2o 44,‘5:' T T
SRR e
Hi =]
% ti-“‘.;_
W= LS

NON STREE

SR =70 \
o Eﬂ%\ll-h'-?.\“\%

CAN

AN .L‘ ey b li
o e e

North Deal
Playing Field

5ouholO

.
Vs &y Recycling ¢
- A Centre_/ /

>\ Court Marsh! .
Farm

s =

o —

SESTD

s,20,18':"‘o‘r :
N I

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AN1 - North Deal, Sandown

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

Scale 1:5,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
11

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ol ©°



Kennels
Farm

é}(\

i

LC

)
A
by
.

XS
i
$

Q
)
?

N

%,

/,
4/ Sandfield
Farm

SENAY -
0 < %~ r-ROA
(S b >
; ] = o
APE
g = ¥
Sy
A
b : p or X
L/_, ¥ /RWAY

T

B
Court Marsh‘_

Farm

B 1

O
%

1Y)
2 I3 %

i U e

e

S rzﬂwA LCHERE =

North Deal

Playing Field
/

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AN2 - North Deal, St Andrew's

Scale 1:5,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

!

%

3

.

1l
i

=1

s

)

g
[l

]
]

-

if

s

i

]

Lo

1]
i

RS

I

I

i

7

5 B
T
o B f

’i

ST

|

\

Alalt:

Al

A0
&l [

¥

ek
gaukoio

Il

OO

ERERS

L1

i

£

e
B

[

RN

=]
"
B

it

L

1

it

TR

il
s,

© ';:; X -
R
Y BB I
11 DEAL
il 2R I
OAD &

nd.databas 5I|glhts !'20.“18 Ordnance Survey 100019780

Promenade Pier

TR

Ml = I

Dover District Council

Honeywood Close ‘ Q
White Cliffs Business Park Bg&%&
Whitfield COUNCIL

DOVER 67
CT16 3PJ _



BOLPHIN

i

Promenade Pier E

DEAL

ety W s ;
e 1 .“:'_.: z s ? - ~ :' - — ' ) R S - N w

NLE

e T 5 5 =
o I e 55 20
]
P RANE LAGH RD

lean High Water. - ¢
Mean Low Water

DeaI-: ,' "‘”". . . y  .‘ ;

(-

Victoria Park ;, )

Fl
v

127~ "~ 7 }’/ )
LAY S A )

P

e T4y T BN
A W
4 5t ec Mo > 4 h

LT R
#@%{ P

v,

N

R

CHERITON

&

> '/'%‘.‘

,__A..__*.

aNvH1Se JHI

1
& 31111‘”
3.4~

sz [ A aEl
e A PRt ]

i =,

'l
o,

SELL ROAD _
=

-

% / 1 - g
/‘/I;*’i%m A2, ST 2> ﬁﬁ-@, own ¢ h?.an-.d q'f;}tapase rights 20}8 Ordnance Survey 100019780

=

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AN3 - North Deal, Victoria

Scale 1:5,000 Dover District Council =

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield couNeiL

DOVER 68
13 CT16 3PJ _



o ST
77
&

&

COLDBLOW

A

/7
‘%

nye

2 -/
< é? -7 II AN
@ > / f~rrvap
0, ?0,
g X J AW1r- W
O - .- ,’Cl
\ o e 1 / ] 5 7
o & - 7 ’
3 (/ ,Cold Blow I
5 %, Crossing !
S VN [
S, A ’
g ‘ ‘965 ;
ahet I/
SRR ’
P 5 Path
sty
Yoo
o
¥
St
B
g
g
@
i':.ia-
1
BR

Reservoir
(covered)

Claytons Hill

4
Marke Wood /&
Recreation

OCL ROAD____
lIH $XmeH

LIVERR

oo Comm

N Hawksii
n

War Meml

4]

/

I'
7
w4

Org

§

5
Q

9
§ s
SI il‘f‘,“_

| 2 L IE S L
© C/rown copyrllght _ap%databgggnn’ght/s 2018 (C)\)/(rdvna

avod N39O

s

5
2% nc

N AN

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AW1 - Walmer, Upper Walmer

Scale 1:6,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
14

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el ©°



ENCED AN 7 Son ST Ty ALY A
X% P N, k/ oL //#/f ,',,/)i i
°€H LAY L S Nl
Y SN £sen /P N (TR B
*N\% e N L S
A Mill Hill>{ . Lower & e
TN s
SP e - Walmer /¢
, NG g@\'ﬁs:
l @'( N
SONLE | e B
0,” I?:‘
S

168 sy DI
N N5 5 Y
' \ 0 ’%\,@g,"%@

> ff&@» /r ‘
V57 7 Pl

78

&2 “\\/\ %,
///x i% 4 %w\%
!”i é Ly X
V&"é =\
QA0

R

RN

AONKS

&‘5’%' D
Ly 5

/4

,,'/\If*

.,,
ROHT

o
H—
B
!
AUR

22
;OG
,/\‘
2D
5
/{L

Marke Wood
Recreation

A
,// 3N
&/

7%

Y,
)

o
NS
%,
I

B

T

_Jmmc-g
Walmer SALI5BURY RO
. 3
Science College : au
&

il
e

&
N
"

6
d

DL L
KL

oL
e
' )

X %
K&
N L

w\*‘?
o,
R

/7
'~ ée

&
/N
«s{
3

PSRN
. K N
" Caravan,

|
/7Park B

I
/ . 2
‘ 2 z
ol @
n::," E
=k =
ol if+
Ol by
i
>
| "
§ o Hawks’lll
i Commén

LW
Ly, B 31m

eservoir w
u_Path

fovered)

War Meml

- Hay\’ikshill
A .- - . = JI,Act|_v|ty;Gentre
A~ P _Path_ _ -~ “ &
~ - I
94} el -

Claytons Hill

1018 MO ueaiN

soufoiD

%;}2918 Ordnance Survey 100019780

tabase right
o5 GaEapasyiont

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: AW2 - Walmer, Wellington

. Dover District Council
Scale 1:8,000 Honeywood Close s
White Cliffs Business Park Bg&%&
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield

COUNCIL

DOVER 20
15 CT16 3PJ —



Y
)
piad

&

**CoxhilMount

y
e

B2 &

River Down
Wood

P r il
S River,B%tptor'n Wood |

e T e b

a
¥ abe b
&L 20K ¥, B2 ¥,
! Gorse Hill
A b, ¥, kg ¥
/ o o at
121m o T )
131 \ agscy roAD S i)
Py B
e &)
- \ ’ Fermrybridge
" @5 A House
Abbey Manar R B L. K
House g’\’ ai\: o

2‘7 ON

Hollow

Industrial \
Estate

wé w

) ¥ ¥ 2 T '
) 4
a | a¥ ¥, W,
:
" ¥, ¥ el ¥, ¥, .
¥ ¥ T ¥ o @v‘\\,
= e =

<h
- ¢

iy

it

¥ b Cdombe Down

1EStRadigunds:

A
' 4
s
Crabble Crabble
Athletic | ahjetic
wG(qund Ground

Football
¥, Ri% Ground

Cogmbe
Down

¥y ¥, ¥, ¥,

w¥, \N(.*ﬂ'. / 3

ST_RADIGITND 'S _ROAD

5> a4 %
B P oL o, Eov 1 .
t "Lph/ Y0 R | BEAY
2 UEOY 1 & &
AT < i

wé

n¥, ¥,

b

Long Wood
b

i) ) o

= oo Harbour
\d o School

¥, ¥,
albe, )
¥y Rig Elms Wood

House

Ingudtrial Estie

n¥, ¥,

wé

ki Path

-7\ 5
vAliot Gdﬁj,’ &
\ - Pavilion

,QC’][\ -

Recreation Ground :

i

P

o ElmsVale
I e

Rty S
; "’ﬁi?;'z:;«"@
i oy B «‘ ’d/

‘?a

L

Field

S QEIm‘s~\;\[oqd', Qv
el e
& o

ik,
Chilverton Elms
Cottages

;Luﬁnp&hysrf )
Woad..:
]

West Down

R R R
.\ Stepping Down. -
Nt pp*g;'a‘f’r :
o

Pav Playing
Field

, Y 4
/ . S

Playing

Playing P
Fields
Tevty g

LT, 98%
NIL--Gll ERAN

~EL N
[
re. (.

el .‘_‘” 9 - \\\/ L . Y /J\»’\’;\'"v' “_” - W\ 4
© Crown copyright and database, rights, 2018,Ordnance Survey 100019780
RS RN g At S e MBI L e TANVAL AN AT

Ay

Clarendon

wé

Gréen Lane'.
Hill

¥, by

.

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Polling District: BR1 - St Radigunds, West

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

16

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el



Copthome

(foasanas) AVOUN Vi

Parade
Ground

3 i,

3
Sa ndwi!ch

" Holé |

Whiting =
Farm /2 1
|

&

Recreation Ground

The Danes

& Community
(Recreation Ground)} ~

Centrs

Broadle:

Pavilion/, /

’ 3
& E -7 “Centre
¥, f ¥, =l ,‘ﬁ‘_“__f»" orr Cépgnier ”
Left Pt ,ff\'—\ \, Fort Burgoyne i
¥ Caponiér |, ?"‘:_:“:——-!2 {Casemated Barracks)
m | (g ST N
¥, ) " ““‘h ~,_Recreation

Left Flank,y, N L ;’, Ground

A
«

Qonnaughl& ;
Barracksy;
X P %

<
oS
2 ~

3

Bleriot
*”-Memarial

L

= %Avéranches or ¥,
Horse Shoe Bastion
PRty
A

Wireless ”
Station

Fox Hill
Down Reservoir

v

Wik,

3 ~
AENNT g,

520 = id
. Masts | Gun Site)

4

%
W
gL

(\3\\ oo
=

S / Bounda
G2 % Groyne

- v \
=<Drop Reidou
'\ N (disused)

Ship Farry
_<Términal
{Vehicular),

-~

Eastern Docks

South Jetty

wiy wesed

RN MO

. Princs OFWalés bt *
PN T 7/

© Crown cop|>yright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 10001978011

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: BT2 - Town and Castle, Castle

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
17

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

l



, Chi

; /Radl

o
/ 98

St
gund

. Y
LT Ny

iThe,

38

© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019789

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: BT3 - Town and Castle, Aycliffe

Scale 1:15,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

18

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ml



X
0

QOO 3
N\ NS
NN

5

S Y~
\\‘ %:’9.\ NS
\§§§~ Vo ‘\ Sl
N ‘\’g‘ N
S So :

A NG
) “?”-i.%”: AL
5
0’7 4

9 el isavéranchis of o7,
& ’,' % ¥,

8

&

MO’ & o .
& o2 <2y L &S
R '\‘ 7 Ay "» A \ Do A BERN , HbfseqShopjiastlon' T
AKQ.QG- «f&?‘ & EENI 4 )19 & . R
R T SRt e
AN | 0,7 y . oo

A
%

5
S !
A 4 O S 2
r;;;ﬁij 5N DRI
R yil A
R
) *A“\\“‘\ A
D ‘\\\}g ST

b 0f ““\

S
ﬁﬁ‘: ‘\

o 2

ROAD
()
<,
o
5 )

Playing‘-_
Fields -
Tever g

B
‘ reseh
= o

WG

7
HELSEA ]
Ats
\,l}“‘}:\‘

\
PR v \
! = Drop Redoubt ¥ "
b NN (disused)

Ne !

SR

<,

RS

K
X

$ \\\\\\\ Aot Gans 2 L
S P
8 B’

X
o “H
Détachad \ B T4

A\
2ol "
S Tevsa ﬁf“““‘m”ﬁ ﬁf““\ =" 7
S\ ¥ Py
"’ﬁ?y A5 }"’ 47 \\Bastion /\ \/
e /) - g L O\

3 N
s «"\\‘\1‘%\\\\

LA AR
“":‘(ﬁ\’\}}«\*‘

¥ s L -3(1 4
Town:and-Castlex

. R / Marina < g
7/ e
a8 /'/ %Pontoons </ 7/{ sy
o .

- _ < |
A Wellington i
7%(Dock _ 7 /<

S0
SNy ‘&t‘!’.:ga: Z_
RN ek
Lo

Wellingtun' A .
Bridge

Western Docks

N

T AN

¥ \”m)‘/' AN A:f.
o RIS

e ‘\' ¥, by
Pras X T 1% VB . T\ AL Ho
- . e L W ! Y )
- @; e !L'ﬁ-.m!l!!-nq D R
At ean Veslimmmb o oSl
“‘\, % .~f“ | < .V"ﬂ-
= % vy £ G ST
N \:/,»/ G 7 el g W%s(errEHE_iglti R High‘Nﬂie'u ;
\ X N oundaboul ‘Mgﬂn, s ter
\\}}‘ tf"‘ . # thean LoW wal
“”— Bulwark
Rock

Inner Harbour QuterHarbour

MH and MLW 577:!’ L Ho

or Admiralty Pier Extension

@S‘Cro\v:v'n chyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 10001|9780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: BT4 - Town and Castle, Redoubt

Scale 1:10,000 Dover District Council =

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park Bg}/}%ﬁ
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield

COUNCIL

DOVER 74
19 CT16 3PJ _



Ghost |~
= Hill =

Tumulys -"'
X Ahe™

‘ \ | Minnis _.=2¢
4 s
A, i, g :

vingfield
Mii%nis

e

27 River Hir)_nl's %

r l".‘liilr.!i'rs_- ==
Farm

.

A "‘:""(~ kot - . Lot
B " ‘\ -------- -I‘sz-ﬁadigund-'s " . 4 Bnd's

Abbey Farm. %
I

]
rensian
153]

= A
R
S

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PAK - Alkham

Scale 1:25,000 Dover District Council o=y

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfeld couNeiL e
20 CT16 3PJ _



LoYEe Lane

Corner

Kyles
2P

ry
4 P
-

Estate /

.

NG "%'c_izﬁlolt

| Nood > |

yles\ﬁam : : Py = Stub T
Corner i / : ;

———

old

s
i

f

3
i
ol

I

Utfin gtonD@f b

+ Court

PV

Hodse

BofAnington-
Farm

neston'

1wy Old Cou/ré 3

. > |
Cony, /
~Wood
~_ 29

) A £ ool n AN RE e
Crown ggpyrlght }a}ng e rlgybts 21018)\(\2r(1!na[1ce S

xne%)fg?ogd“;{ Py,

~

= 2

A7
urve
A

(= S 1 o
y 100019380"|

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PAY - Aylesham

Scale 1:12,500

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

l



A

v I 777 7

AR Lg% Denehole i
WL SPAN TN
9¢

\ o A

‘_ Moorlands

-~
o, S

":j = o 3

Great.Cauldhani
~ Faem_ 5

=, 7o
| i) 2
b
<, ; 5
e
¥ y

G

e

-_yﬂf_l__: "

et

g Aougham, —
- Wﬁitg/ “-_fl__ \ =
N S . X Uil ez
PERIME GH ‘ B
Vo o ‘--"“““ o ? m’"""‘mn 4 4 :
et ,\.ﬂnn T Lo i L‘u_q g
/1aAETSERS JUY e —
Al !z%‘\ | CDHoI,IJﬁgBu‘:j .»~f"
| PCR*%* Capel:lie:Ferne’ _.-Capel'House
' e S 6 R

muz:’_"«'-e;d

Withrpey,
lliipagasene - . .

East Wear Bay

© Crown copyright and daltabase rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 1(|)0019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PCF - Capel-le-Ferne

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

Scale 1:15,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
22

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el



; De
- e (:30 _r", ?
Wi The " 5. 4/ /Tapgin *no
; ! 3 &
& W L) Qe Kool /R Hallll Xy
Bunkershill 78ull Ve o | ;
:" Farrn "H [ | AL (]
V5 o "-‘.-- 4 7‘ ________ -‘ OOO
Wingate al ol S [
s Farm =W | | BHT7 T4
= ' - L RSB T A /
ls: @zerﬁdge
i i ' ] | I.-'I
: o= a y J .’,- g 4T ‘\ f I‘.
la “"'-'fﬂc, /// .'II \¥ ‘Summer
o Roxborough!/ s [ X ": H
e ® Woeod , , B ) Q
B ‘e O { - \ /
- ,”Baker’s & aa oD '| ,
+*  Close B 2
N o ltw /
a2 i
o : : -
s Beam End ?, )
4 b ( 4
[ I}
g3 /
¥ ‘| / 4 {
1 1 i d
! - e {
] \ / 0
i H , .{‘ff) D -'\ | ‘_”" \ \ | [\
l 1 ‘ﬂ 3 4 \ = \ '.I | A\ \
§ e il o Bphnstan ) Selsted |° v\
"a“ 4 / WL / | Qm
-~ - “ ‘l "I \ ] \\0
s) '\ / . % Selsted
™ R S xsFarm | '
Henbury Butcher’s _ .
Manor .
- S 4 ]
f =

= . ) 'il,.,,
1/ 4L ' FisEziaazloazy, G
S ras
Y {,a O ~“" 7 Walderchaln
Wy ' y d
‘\l. / Wa -
v/ /
v, I
‘ Y
' L
'.z..'-.,"
j:r'an'i —
Barham nGate ., 9
f — M
-Business Vood E\‘:’
N Park C) J r'.f
A
N\ Sl bhal
w Holl
\ W & ¥
\ 6| ;
N ||1 't #"
B\l ‘: “:‘- '.f
711 ) 0
\ g Lodge ’ : &
Vol Lees L°d3/e o
7 W,h—r/ehors - ' Farm / Leés :
; (i} 38 f ’ -
Wood L" - I £ B
b -
B L = A
F] s iy qj?
F 5 '\ r: *&
S .
. Y/
1 Th
e
Cottage
-
Snodehill,’
Farm ¢
’
A F]
;"I ‘, o,
:;;'" ' -'f '
= ‘. / 5
! - - - rl / f
| ?y o ,/’f Z
4 .I y & - / - I|’ {
/ - a - /
- i N AN
) Osferground /1% _o";--//
/ +/ Wood [ LY
i 134

Newl d:s

-
© Crown copyrlght and database nghts 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780

o N7 SRS

~—f
1
A

.'

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PDD - Denton

Scale 1:12,500

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

23

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ml ©



Farm

Shelyin /=%

’
White
| Walls o
" A M
reome Qu
N House®
RS
™,
P,
r'/;
II -
Al fl \\\
il 5

~ i ™ ,q e’
_ T ) Oaks 7
: N Farm 8 P i
¥ YN E
0. LZ2 = g 124 7 \ f,) g
A A | o # A
% ¥ \ o a 5, H o A
g‘ ‘\\ J' 'I o z e QA i ;
% Y od-| [ | N \ < r cncil .
N1/ /VieR ) AW . ’ g
1193/ il | O \ = Lyddenhill ) ’
[ \laa/ /afH R < > Wood. A G
1 a4 St Martin's NV A0 | N
\ =720 ¥ | |Place \ - S S
v | o Yo na"l
- g - . A < = [
Street . "" : b S/ \_I
Farm Y/ X 2= ¢ Flo
\* Y \T\ ey \ b=
H - b f / P \ i @Y Round | y
| LY ‘\ fln_ Wood e o
ad 3 4 5 K;_.-'r A ’!-:‘0
\ \ ! (/B ; T gy -
I'-\ » : ,“_ I H Lu fl:.’ & o fnf i LI RoP el
N\ A RN ke \
3 W\ & A ] L
ﬂ " | l. L4 :_..--‘ e
| | I\ A KL ~0h /
N-THAY | 4
Ay -~I | 5 ’:.
fa AR i v . 4". ~
L \\\ ? s Pagi Side”
' \ N\ gbar s West Lees
\\"J iy A Park Side L
| \!“‘-‘;'\ NF b
(23 \ Bl “
k A\ \ a“ “‘;.
I W |. W A
136 5 QL \Park £
/& Wood .
4 Ik 1
P\
' Prg 1 | Y A
5 2 \ ok 3
Bpenstany, W7\ Selsted { =y A
4 % WA = N 14 _ Swanton %
/ THGH Selsted VO e Court
SR sFarm N N Farm
S A | o AN N
,'?":_./ = Seh (&) 0 eV - “..\‘\ 3
% _.'.: ' N /.;. \ s toc k:!})am
Newlandjs rar
Farm /
s Little l
mezzel / ~ -
[ Fafmn | f 4% N
I v ¥ 7 1 3 | F 4
° A L
2 ==
- %\ : 'l: f 1 Chupel 5 .[ f (NS
e l/ ; St Johns (rems of} /111775
134% A Farm 3 A /) /’: / ¢ i
! g Y/ A 4 /( E
2Saa ) § /\ \\ -. ©\(Erown copyrlgnB and database nghts 2018 Ordnance SurveyJ00019780\
\ g i 1 ya ~ i Yy v

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PDW - Wootton

Scale 1:15,000
Map Dated: 10/10/2018

24

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el



Sum mer,frei 4

= -@%’"ﬁ

i
‘i’ l:i?m reat Se}sun

Hamrnili A / Farrn

arm

M dle
. Heron en. rm. /

! Heranden”

Flrm_;; g
o %)

=5l Mahorials
Shingleton /% Eurlbmrlss

e’tonden o

: Klumgton
Puddlng Cottages

ation

tingto
Farm

54

\

131

\ North Cour
Pla nzg’o

© Crown copyrlght and database rlghts 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780’

T aBnbioaxods |

el
i

L

ir{.)‘_\""‘:
|
[ g
1 I"Iary -ldbone H:I, b
Grq;t Pou]r!ers,l
g f Fary;

Little Pou'l?érs‘
Earm

clr@o

= POI.IR?‘JEI'S ‘.Nl\\iurlbalo:n:w %
2,

Gardens
/{\:lu rsery,

~ Stone Cross
e

d

Bosgital

Lo lohn's

- Buc kland v
*., Farm

Feld erlan nd
Farmy

=~ Feld
Bowes

]
Brighton
|Bungalow:
Farm j

Jhite. Cliffs

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PEA - Eastry

Scale 1:24,000
Map Dated: 10/10/2018

25

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

e
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ol



Thornton \

ﬁ’s&.Farm \:0 %

& ’ Z” Kittington A
Brown Pudding’ ' CO“‘*SES
Plantation 2
\
.//_
g
r 4
2
| / G 1 :
) Bech [ /oo ) iRegn P ' S
Plantation ™™ “ 4 / b 3 =7
; | / .
. 72°%\ /-7 ) S of & ‘4
£ SO ! ‘_) a"'_\_“‘ Beechese"{ ‘9 e " I;f
}rﬁmerhguse s A/ (\ e = Farm/ s e i 4 F&/
Plantgtion ) / 4 \o - s, .
D“ ; — G e / p
A Si— _
J'v;x - .
s 7 .
: > 7d ! = /
E T ! 3 o IR /
= '
74 5 ‘ F I-” SV =/
o A /’ > [ X :
v Ve 10 | b .
: 7 I8 . H
o PN SN 28
imekiln i : /R N 25
Plantation 4 ' / /e IR R N
Q PR A ‘%, 3y

oF Y 7
’a(-.; ‘o
v
\ '.‘ 5%
l’\
Y
'y W
g
#
A,
7,
G i
/R 30 ot
\/ s 0 y 2
r o . \ d A
/ & DA 4 . Y
! by & = 2 2y
T f ¥ [
5 L |
H’\ . T e yd / /A I/

PEX:L&PEXZ Eythorne’ano_l A=
/ffow W ) S

ny)) rney,

;afﬁands o = Ne=rt ]
Wood T / / /,/
(ol B Eythorne. (= AWk j
L L ourt > VN T ~ /
= M s f] 75
_..\"_ / \" 3 = ™ // \
Brlrnlsdz‘fe ; A ' s U ™ ' P
4 E)’}h’orne T an \ Ve
AT o / J ki
= VAL il Vi (. — I/
’ A f A o — /
b o by J L { a2 6 .I l‘
Long/Lan S . R e . [ /7
7\ y \ | A D v
Farm /| & \ A \iﬁ ) Jo OGP PN
[ .’/ » | Ch:_k J /i) { ;o / o “\ “
(')0 / |Ir W, : £ The’ i f) "
A / — X IS WKenn DR
Sl / P A 5 47 B3 £ OC !}fa[rp'ams /
! A AN ) e / =hif O N
i@ [ 7 A y 1 2 o / W:eod a2
KO/~ . 7 \ 2
] 0 o 2 oa\.
~B4 . . / Y4y AL N
%9, ¢ Canterbiy A S &
0% 44 _ Lodg ' s Y Ja
7). 2 Lo cgoznzs D0/
.b_q-' T goYin
- & Waldef®hare /-
: oy "yHQ_g._S'E"
825 7o PEYS
. ox] / "'IO.
TEERG aLders are’ NS,
7 ..‘.:.:.‘ _I‘Par *2 J S / !
) o2 s ﬁ;*? n/ ;
~ o / .r’; | [ Ly
Y Th / ;
~ \ Wl,der ess 04’5 /
-'. [ [ "&O { o J,l' / 3
nn-
i i
3. TH C@L REU cp
Y ’.
o & | R n
A
Loie © Crown copyrlght and database nghts 2018 Ordnance Survey /100019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling Districts: PEX1 & PEX2 - Eythorne and Barfrestone

Scale 1:15,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

26

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

AV

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el G



‘ Northbourne Court
¢ 1
)

&

The Lodge

Sholden Downs

e N N =
T ol V.
NS N Yoy
’ RSN a X
: ;
v B

v‘

& :
I, 18m  Banner's Hill
lewside’
L Yo Rk

&,/

Rose Garden
éDIB(:n_neF's

‘ Field
J Y
¥/ unnurs
? Paddock

4

‘

K%
o8 Ny S

PGM - Great:Mon

Mongeha\m\ 5’}3;/!

@e I’ik
w:// ‘ !
vﬁ%\ &

/L’g‘:

Great Mong_ehagn/)

. . Farmy et DK (R -
Pit b \ & ap WS ﬁ a
(disused) o / ’ \* \ \‘0::" -‘é
. ) NN g
: AN R

Cottages \
i \

NS Pixhill \
\

31m - P
o Glen View: Jidisused)
App}e Cottage

/S

<TNE

{ & . 1]
% ) Beaconhil & X ‘
&y 7| Beaconhi = \ -

il 3 Hillside
~—a.3 Farm

v

i

Easterleigh

“any

7
G A

2)

A

%

5

<
TV

7T

Lk
School -~

e/

Cloverdale

\
N
Beacon Hill

House

\

Little Mongeham

Beacon Hill

» 44m 12m \

o Pixwell Point\ U, Black Hill

Sutton Hill

S SRR

< Payy

Ripple
Nurseries

ab?se,rights 2018'Ord

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District:PGM - Great Mongeham

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
27

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ol ©°



stoncour
‘Farm

25
Ny .
> ;

sl |
/
e

D) SHID SIYM

] uno

2
)
s

o
<
37
>3
R
=
&

A 10

»
_

oyal Military
. School

R
e

A

ght'an ‘dtébﬁlée"’rights"ém%Oﬁjrﬁgcé‘gurvey;looo 780

= S/ W e \\ Wi
DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District:PGS - Guston
. D District C il
scale 112,500 el
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield DISTRICT

COUNCIL

DOVER 83
28 CT16 3PJ —



River Down ./

River Mi_ﬁ&?,’s ._--'- —

River Minnis
Farm —

%7 Remains of
5t Radeaund's

- ."l_—df

o= fms fommm G Radigand's

Abbey Farm ,.'_\ %, (Premoz}\rthr‘?atensian
Mbunt 2 LR founded |
Afarat ) =
D7
<_Moorlands —
s > ”"--..‘.-. 7%{:‘;;{:*

L (v &
hamiWithout’,
) A

R 145¢ W00 A ah Y SETC AU v ——— W DU CN R R TN A
T U . e B WA e - P s e S P e G R IR pte Bere L L)
i \ W 2 - Tgans_mif,ting %%’
] AL A o \ tation 5ok
2 Chalk Pit\” e 7] 7 <
5 Woad N, N\ S
/2 o 9 ) 2 Motel™
4 607 :
)
o 3 P _
e e | e X =
*} __.-'gapf':l'House & g Great b{ogéhfam‘ R A .
'co.:’—;" ~arm o ’ COU 't FaFI'I‘I . e
'::—""’ ol = Great Satmar % . tht[e Houg 2 v > =
gl QY Farm o | CRu K
3 " 120057 Dawkihge 97
4 ’5°¢ 732 Satmar~y -+ Wo | \ &
% {139 -—.-‘ .I | %'\.-Q F
(“\ -‘.‘ . ] ;s { . »" I,/ .
._.-_-—f"?o_‘i \ _ I _H(\ > 5 _ _JL_ & at °___'o Court’ dod
143 bbott’s-Land Do
% é‘ > Q Farm —p207 7
g‘ -z.,l' ; p 5 ‘rn
fa -t AN
== 7 6? W ’ ! < .’ 140N "I / - g = Rk s -~ :" % ) 2
Capel % - ) SR NG L2 4 [2]) \g et T‘&m‘ AR '.- ,+ Lydden &
Court el ag = i B3 - dappots Sl . .| 7, spfm
‘ark S iR T i L o - - 6_' . .@' -t *
e - ‘IGM‘“ e }‘;l il = . o ":o.: :- ¢ v : o ,. o’ ‘. *
. - by 3 2 i o | " T oy
el =
b7 s M, i .
[
e . :
© Crown copyright and dlatabase rights 2018 Ordnance Survey I100019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PHM - Hougham Without

. Dover District Council
Scale 1:15,000 Honeywood Close o
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield DISTRICT

COUNCIL

DOVER 84
29 CT16 3PJ _



e e R o2 -

Studdal
' Studdal ¥

Bungalows

o,

"/ RIPPLE CP

e %, ttages

i
Y

lapchester
|

r . .
# ~Litele [/ T o
Na%ch Stef) ST

- . Lo/

AN

g;FLéngdon

-2

22 M'séggs'zéck

lo}.]

| d i ‘!;/
Pasi, 2%y % %
- % \' .

JOU NYW

L)

West | (Hotell ,
Cliffe /| /7,

Fa

.
i ./

4

=5 -7 A7 St Margarets .
J/

ST IMRCAREE |
"X KT CHFFEICP !

umodiploN

i‘-“"“ s

Ul

0 ;::__f_ Duke of York'
Lot i Royal Military
| "School

o

i SV TRER 1: A —.:1"-;"].'-';z.i’-"-:.;B:vanf: ':, S Oy
ight and database rights 2018 Orofance SUYEYH0G01978

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District:PLG - Langdon

Scale 1:20,000

Dover District Council

Honeywood Close ﬁ
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Whitfield 5555’8[
DOVER

85
30 CT16 3PJ _



D Farm 2%
5 ﬁ éh

Smithfield
Farm

Chérr

Poultry miy

Farm

alksole :
ree’g 1]

hll:ehl”
Firm

River Mlnms
Farm -

- -
\( ],-- o N\ P,
L 2, 4| o £ N
¥, | o Qo " r-.“
.. .z “\‘ /
\" 4 F 3 e — J|
s 3
-+ Crossways 106 / e
€ P F L
/ ___\,‘--' o
- *s ; ']
\‘ f EoT “‘l"-.'.‘zx::("‘"'
4 _ = -
- 7 | ( i L) L=
50, ?bﬁ ’:.' L ""‘u'é‘:.- __.#L’/‘n | i
= v A T |
A e Puckland wy L e \ *~al
/ Sy Weod 7 WEGAT ] A
T e o> " Botolph Y
i il Pi g z":t‘ .-—c\%%&t % treet
S\ A oF Yay. WAk Farm, P el
Ry | 2 HPFarm ey >
nds a |
4 — N s . ‘
" | | e = 1 of
- e\ _ : Halfway i Coldred
" X ; od, B | Street Courts 7
: e, Coxhill ’ Farm
( g ~Farm Diamgnd -
B I ) : m
\, ~ / -
NI S '3 Hope
TTre g Oak Wmd
a0 . Farm
B o D Y ST = P W P R 123 3 = T s d
B N { |- LA Pt 4 tZ ld red Street y
—— ™, = il . = ,--.‘.:‘- - - - . o)
O . on N Parsona,ge 7
Five = oo shar ehilli! I B A e >
. I e Z - T illi . Lo wmm b Al
Oaks 475 _ e \ = J 3
4 e Farm_zZ" .
Sy S - . e \
— ( - . : 2 el <
B \ g ¢ ) L Wi
S \ Geddlnge R NG C‘A Q{\'i p
& Y\ 8 Farm Yy ) P\ i
Jeden, Ry, T : 3 Rl
’?3\9 -~ LWt - Lyddenhnll ;:.:‘-,3,
' Lol WOO# [ W
s Bu’ches 5 50 LXK
. £ Hef | = oo e
=5 Farm Y > RN
R | o G a fRNs
3 "‘T_""\ N\ N
. o - :
i - =
BT S\ T T e T S .o
j 22 il S5 Rownd |
== | 9 flae Woed
\ e
T A o he- - =
\./ i i ™ ) 4 Pl "
¥t Prickett's : \ ; 1 ,_/,'o Garratt
T 2 Wadd B 7 ! ;
e | - =
' / " fa} ;
|’ : 1
| 5 1
|d il vt i
1l v/ i
a . H |
West Lees : By 4
Woed \ %
4 z
5 -
. ~
«* -
» -~
- .
.Aﬂ# .,
» -
» ~
b LY
5 s
i .
-y
"‘o‘\{. enz
] t_'*.. Swanton
& NS Court
Farm

Wnru-l

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Polling District: PLN - Lydden

Scale 1:20,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield
DOVER

31

CT16 3PJ

s
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

ol



ower Rg'w.ling
Farm
A

(ft_:p\man's i — i y % :
Cotrages b A ! B T " v
W ' . iy / iect | [ Tickenhursy

/GOOBNESTON

{ L/, // Tickenhurst |

E': : 3 ,, | ov e Shave  /

o A ‘&f o
\{mington
Farm

e

h ey
atling

3 \ 5 .‘
A & Ratling
\\ WAL - E,‘dsm' ey | S ’ P 'Pinners
N\ orby 3 Tw4e®270Id Court ; S Farm
\ . o5 3 Y
Farm 2. | Farm / opIW :
- O % "
75 J]Great Pinners Loy e o V4 . ke ©
Wood . N tepta i Sy \ Ig f”"“‘!‘f‘fow'wn e

Mianorial
ﬁarlhmcr}é

P ? -'"“ Hou, .":: 5 i - + 4 7\ .' i # / ; \ . - T A Y R \ d Rl
= e ' .. r / 5 L 1 [ s ks i b

Highleas™

s £ [ Kl
J==..5t Alban’s )
e - - A ‘. !

L]
Shing leton
Cottages

Kelk Hill

I 2 2
‘;?’ Wit ngton
¥ Cotrages

. SNFredyi e/Park@f by,
a7/ 4L

JAY

fao
X

imekiln
Plantation

8BS i
%405 Solesrx,

o
Lo

rstal N _|
ocd

VVaolage - e A ) X / : NN ”

!y P97 9 : e/ : el ) / /7 ; ; / L S ERN Leb L1 Upper
""'?3‘-"‘._.- F \ , - 55 Wo .d g/ - & - o X v £: -yt rne
55 a e S

e

7

Woolage
Gré

f | tE :::::..g,t__“#;”';f

) Litdle & y
> Haynes =t K | A A ;
Crown cop)fright»ana database rights'2018 Ordnance Surve 100019780
ket YT A ; gty Ty ; S .~ House (/3

o

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PNN - Nonington

. Dover District Council
Scale 1:20,000 Honeywood Close =

White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
DISTRICT

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 \é\/oh'\t/fgéd CouNGiL
32 CT16 3PJ _



o o g B ) i

22 A\ ez
NATS T ™ Bowes
BB, !

.-’ \\ .

RSP Farm
9 o) 4
St_aﬁeribbrgh Y . eries X! — ”~ Zif2y
N L L House ra ;
ursery-if, i £ = ﬁ
SRR 3L
NS TG reenacr.

A S & s ¥
3 o 8 e > _@' &
’_/—/\/%mm\% KB mer /B Farm

N s
=) /spl‘-"{‘;g‘;ﬁ‘ b Weod ‘\;‘;“g

A
Hacklinge o

" West Sbrgek‘
/ Farm *

il

&
Betteshar

St
'Sh

I ./" ’ & - A
. = ? ol \ d§‘ ar \
/ 7 W !
““‘f_. SO A 2 TN i’i’Sholden Down
>4 Ty SR Ny R s
2 G £ AT - Wy ’/r:
| - wrsery

“Sd NYIWOY

72,4, =)
Telegraph. __ ! %

_ CFRarmen TS resl i Y AN ) 1] N
‘_f.-i,“:' w | I. y : PN I‘;
[ ¥ P / g L.

Nine Acre; 4l SN |I \‘ it
| & 4 \ i v/ & /N
5 L Hill | % P WA BE ¥ /
B 2 / h
'~ Stoneheap p— £ (- Y ] 7\ .
x Farm = ~ ™ P'xw:e":-fn._ﬁ?ack Hill | | gfsl/ A
y &/ Fairlight 7 Point 4t N ) Jof A SN |
2 = & &y Bungalow R . g Y
i aQjf i / =
K7 SV/; of |
Yl W Ug ~ 1
S / f
. A

Brighton .

Bungalow; o =
Farn;g' o — 0
385
y N, 54
N 4

ﬂtton Hill

Wwhite. Cliffs
dom o m = ==

.

3 Do S:Egl%al =] : .1 “
s 4 ) ela o, ~ S, {
Y : - '
s SOTTON CP¢. N\ &
& Y/aN Upper 4 /Y
b Farm-=*
5 il SGtton

A
’

| P 4 . 4 /c..;.__ - /"7 .."l
© Crown’copyright’and database ri
Pt | B \HrM

Vet LT e |

. Farm

gﬁts~291_8:‘Orqnanc?;8urv§y 0

MNunnery Hay
Plantation

[T

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PNR - Northbourne

ST,

0019780

Scale 1:20,000 Dover District Council o=y

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfeld couNeiL .
33 CT16 3PJ _



V74

Coldblow
Farm

,‘
/e

iy,
COLBETOw

%/ ,&dld Blow
"' - Crossing

X

o7

Reservoir
{covered)

Claytons Hill

I} Activity.Centr&
&)

@ War Mem|

Hawkshill

Hawkshill Doy

Hawkshill
k7

Cross Roads
Cottage

B
Vi Ringwould
House 7

: k"r':l'hé{or

est; i

R (T
NEWET ohb%%
26m ~

20
%
oy

Great

g
R

%
7/ Ringwould
087 Nursery

Greenhaven

Oxneybottom
Wood

Z\_/‘/\Cuombe
rrshay

Barrows Hill

- w W7
FURE
5

&
%

s : /
*' Kingsdown' Wood /
B ; ‘ B N 7

i ) g
? 4. St Nicholas’s®: iy "
Church”.

o (remains Of) L

\se ) ,

#
v

Walmer an
¥,

S

©C}bwn copyright and databé;//e'/rlights 2018 Ordnance Sufvey 100

+ GBIf Links

a¥,

d Kingsdown

¥

Vo

019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PRG - Ringwould

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

34

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el c°



Claytons Hill

™ T
/5 i Hawkshill

: ".Activity,centre
T

Reservoir
(covered)

g
%

Sy
&
VI

< Ringwould
y, House 7}

Ppg Sta ,
L7

Y
LD = READ
26m ~

ANEWo

Y

Great

Zi\Coombe
ZezRat

>
"
/. )
&
74 Hill Farm

&k

Barrows Hill

EARENARND
O NN
‘ \‘ 4@@2‘%@
_NQE ST/
s

e
RN

: lipway

%

AN X
g N
,"m e
Holiday %s Q
Village; =
N b (&)
%

]

B 5 T Stag Point
& ) Masts 9 5

Scout
Campsite

OWNyy
~"‘<Q,<

Northope

Derrymore

Oldstairs Bay

The Swamp

Qld Bottom

’
‘

;' Otty Bottom

Kantbridge
ey House
< Little Green

Ship House

i ¥ oY
Walmer and Kingsdown  /
2 Golf Links o

Ja¥, ¥,
ol

Ppg Sta,

Hope Point

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PRK - Kingsdown

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

35

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

l °°



W 2 S0 SO NS TTANGS S4
IS £ F LSS N
R % 5_‘.5,% ‘NE‘E‘EF 2 TN PSR G

DA SR

e P S A R e B S 7T
AR L EOOSS NS SR 'z‘r({{;q;f
N\ N
‘5'_/
&

S :
> '. < 73 of: 1
NS 4.;,% :
; W
S IS
A

" Great Méngghﬁfﬁ A
. Beacophill ~ Farm )
_;Cottage_s

i:l L p : ,-'\‘ / Eu: ; /r.
‘-_;-_jv’. : Sl ",; i Homeside /
/ 0 1] 4 o’ “ o i 1 .':
/o LikSutton Hill N, ! Farm ,
y "..'1 : ¥ - o - ’f e
é* ' N” ol -
1 5 A
\ ' yod v l'
i 2 /s %ﬁ, 3
] BB 20 f;;'\ 4 2 3
'y / 4 lc'
s "'c‘f )
{ /] 3
le 7= / -
/':

" { /:

23 W'in leton
‘,-Fgrm
/'( _

v
|

He=ns

ip{':le Down
House
kg

; ' Wi nklanddaks.
N ,' Cﬁttig.eE _______

-
.F‘
;
.
¥
£

\ & / | 4
A Barrows ,-f,.
Y/ Hill) L

Martin” i
—Fis

n'e)f_bet‘r;o :
Wood?s 'f‘T_,.t

/

’o_'_- Ox

/s ';'Cacbqlasesf‘!. *’-‘éxs_,;é-;.‘f ey A
3 v~ \Lhurch / G 40 / Free/ S A
MO o, [ i, LI WK N = / o
78 = (Fems of)) . "0*1 b N Doyn Vs ¥ : Ol
i anN el [ ik . & . /.
+ J # A% oo ; A S WP Y o o D Qf)
A by EX T ? P : L
. /e s‘i i T il V4 b / /
/4 ay” @ A

4  © Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey:1000197807
o 7 - LA N R PO 22

R

[ N

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PRP - Ripple

Dover District Council

Scale 1:15,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

36

Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el '



DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PRV - River

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

37

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Mast /9 TR ] AR 3 Parkc @ o e
SN A 'y C
&N : L= @)Y 3:0 7 78m :
“Long Meadow: ./ & A [
8 4 N ) W & wih, ¥ A
" Ashirigham . Ll
., Houss N ; \ NN
A & G/ Yo
N ~Whilhgld = A
N\ < "", b Roundaboit &
N e -
Great . Allot Gdi 7
Watersend 3¢ A > O L o -js 7 £ Z =
Farm 36m - & Sl == D
= —— —‘—1“/ .1¢ ~ 4 - Ly
‘<_<______,;?‘ 4" i £ Y P
= 2 . = B 7
= - & o WATERGRD ) & o R
=SIN/ IR TR 3 i
oS " Dog,! b wmui BDa.
Ry = i G ity
&« L Ty W :
SROBKSTOE ¢ ‘Q PR ouSYBErTy OOd, B
£ . "17 Tumulvf;s X ;. by
ChT L) 5 |
e B Temple'Ewell v
i e 3% N
: - > 5, ¥, Malven NS
:} I i Lodge {\ A \la\
& . ¥ o, : e
N v S e A o™ Temple Ewell % . AN
. . e N - = CE Prima ¥ Mast ., Manor
y 8 p v Y ¢ &z, Farm
3 5 el e School &) N2 £ » /
! " ’ & S 9 &4
? v . ® Scotland Commion ,,% A "B Pavilions A T
; ST ; 3 (g . > S . hats 3 s
R S ey . i TS ot e Ei 79m 2
B S 0 T ; 250K Rp  Pevmgfed i
'J’" e ;“V K T e 1‘6°V" \ \E\J G)
Surfimerhill Lodge " &' -t g R > ‘ : Y
: ’urr?ma‘rdl‘ 0798 g;; o+, Palmtree Hill.y; TN S : EA STE “OldiPark’
L Plantation R oW ¥ X aW AR 2 Wood -/
: Q& K?:a}s{'te : Nig ¢
: oul e LT
L TR oy 2
. .--Bushy Ruff. % - D g : L
e S A &) Tast i
e 2 RUSSEl, . > 2= Y ARSI
o 3 Gardensi 7 -7 BNE A% Tl Woodside A
‘?, 33 i) QG « Q\ Abbey STk 4 P X o
Bushy Ruff,/ % " v g = LA - o [+ B B
House_ v ’(s ¥, ’/‘ AV < XS L&) @ ,,.’
- {5 Z e Bushy Ruft AN “@Q &3 v ¥, v
- = m "y, /Cottags s
_ . A * 47 ‘?o# N A ¥, v
! NN 2 ¢
o' == Q B2
° ey SRR S 8
T \‘v‘l B NG Brpe 3 ' o
2 - IR ) : > N
g - " ,h\*'(’il’)"f” > s % v v v ¥ v 0
5 . b, v, LSTREly ¥ ¥, v o, v o,
A I (1 §"’{{ll
2\ ¢ ¥ N ey I “:/(!,l ¥ ¥ b, ot .
. X RIVEly L O EBTT
! " ¢ 55 A
o Yooxniriiount ¥ 1, aeet at b e S
S b wh__ b a, N
. AT
co ook, ST
. Chay Av 70 &
. SR GRS e S
o N i =T '@%\\\,\, Priman,
d . S chool =
o Frandﬁram ¥ R oo,‘ < - 4
0 nggq : ¥/ \of oS 4‘?W4y“
)\ K49 2 &P )
Tk \S\at: i N
g [ Y Fhe & 2 s :
- 5y s Y 5 : . SO < ‘,
7 Limekin Wood The @ﬁnmm @ 257/ A (I ReenGd',, (L
~ ", : SO o 5N
o 2 . &y B N p
g Qe o grabblests
RoA e 3 . .
s \
S <
Oristana
& Kanawha Mm oéb
Frandham & <
Kennels
S X121m i : Crabble R A
Frandham ‘> Richmond T Athletic T
W River Down Ground W AN S
v Wood R
X % i S\ Mast ~ _ Pavilions /- -//‘Q
N Ry . S . .
3 Loganberry A Football ; >3
? ~Windsong o ", ¥ Ground e
& ¥ B2 ¥,
: g R ¥, w¥, ¥, £/ Mast
A i
. :VRiVe( Bofgom Wood - ¥ wa ¥ ¥ Y £
e - ¥, M ¥, ¥, .
KX ¥, ¥, ¥ ¥, v,
U o ¥, b o
iver Minnis : ¥, ¥, ¥, ¥, K2
Farm L
& i ¥, ¥ . ¥ ¥,
. Gorse Hill
A Wood ¥, wé .N’,_ ob :mpath wé Q2 Gdombe Down
¥y 2= o R N A A L . \
o S I 2 >t Radigund's
121m 2 r1iuy 83m '
1M \ azgey roan s b ¥, ¥
\ E - P2 ¥ T
— F g
.' yr v T
Abbey Manar N . =
House .2
Hollow
Wood Industrial
Estate
|
L s
el
w¥, ¥
""" Industrial Esfate
¥, ¥
¥, ¥, ¥, wé
=T
.'n = o | -
s . Tumuli Path o ..I /
Qﬂ S Track
i Limekiln Wood
PP W -0
- L=
\‘Allut’quL), Pavﬁlon §
P
s }; i 1/3/’ o N ‘ v ‘ - _
& .- >© Crown‘copyright and database rights 2018.0rd
N P . A
R > ERRE N AR\ am e R

92



n\C‘u‘e‘r
(Wotor Rading

SN

2]

ddin
gF inge

arm

Holtspreet\g:

arm

kA

Y e
;/ 3 =

P o olary 00
S

} antation | J
b 1) ‘}’/

Yé!‘ ittington
Brow Pudding-' Cotrages
Plantation

tingto
Farm

h

|
!‘ G
restone Court 115
. L3

4 “'. 1| A )
3 R
-Wickhalr '-'— s

Bushes : ,‘?, ._-

.
-
o4

@3
Swantan g f

k ,,?)6 ’50{‘-;5:;_'_.';
Fa “‘E?i‘_\

\

\I\\ Lclwer Sales '

\
\::~

f 4
( A P _'(
b

£

E\f}i‘H NE

oldred

v Eartlwork

':- 0,

7

w‘ll 7o husi ]
. \Waldershare 4
& /7 Pa Y

r

B

E1a1

-

.;.i-i--f.“.' —
- iy =

©.Crown. d ,
™ e

Wi G

AT O '““
s dinglecgee ),
o .,

2 s

S|
V:‘f ingledge

WHITRIELD

Sing Ic;g : ’ : Farm

S

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Polling Districts: PSL1 & PSL2 - Shepherdswell and Coldred

Scale 1:24,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

38

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

0 F
P

itfield

7. ‘
0019780

s
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

l °c



N\

4 T= SECFE . : -
f i = %, '
/75~ /ng M:rtin Ny ]
0 7 > ll‘s. - “\«'
Martin;

alk S %

?0‘1 > . hs (Y éFar-m- 327
J - AT A

Norids] 7 'L;rr;;,ei

o "-
22\ Abbey |/ g {\ M
(Premanstraténsian™, "" :

/
!olfhde.d ufm‘ \/// . . X
L/ ILANGDEN/CP] 23

[+

|| East AEh
Langdan "

2 - "-'.o, it
2’3‘ _!osiin ?
T

,gB bck
TN Sorarm

Poison |
/Down

- Limekiin
"+ Down

Bowesfield Farm *.
\dar{:ﬁng Kennels

. :

angdon
Bay

Wiy Uia1sEd

FERRIES
SHIP
Calais
Dunkirk

PS

Al
Cli

L% 55 5 Ringwould

A | . »
MEWOE

‘REETA
0%

Control 14
Beacon H

oz

o w I' {
M7~ St'M
est | lhoten -
iffe, 97

i AN / ’ %
; & mprarm JBarHrci\rvs Pl ey
% i = / 6 E
a4 /. Easts / -
¢ / .Botm? SN
S P

AL 01 Borton
), Free Down 4

Ry, i ol -f:élornin ide”
K& G H
(e85 /A

NS

“
o
. S |
/ / vl
/¥ i ¢
w. ; 4 g §
-~ East .
d Hill /32 {10
. - A / ) A
P 7 Lo, - o =
& 5 -/ ; e A =
fBarrow,/ /6 - & o e
# &

|N:|'o_|| ll '[} v

A

.,v"Ilumll}ue_

. St ﬁirg"q're’:'s
'_F.ree_. W

[ 4. ST MARGARETS |
e AT CUFFEICP

=7 /' StMargarét
iy Club

© Crown copyrighlt and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Polling District: PSM - St Margaret's-at-Cliffe

Scale 1:20,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

39

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el °¢



1 -
. D

K

{

: \ North Courtl !
| X Plantatien [
n; ey - 3

oldharbour

A
(A

o

¢

Stoneheap
Wood i .
e :;:2,3— = === " / J
[ & o N ﬁeacor{ Hill
ey, ) &> _ \
‘= Staneheap 2 y =
. 2 s Pixwelllh, glack Hill
-7 F.irligh'r-.,- =l = : 4 Polncgli (v
" Bungalow >, Fa o [ .
/ 5 ~ . ] .
i > 33 /gf / “\348' ! \"s
P e ~
b 4 4394 p ¥
A T {{ Homeside / Glen®

Wy | Farm /. Farmg
"\ ! / T ‘:z
" N - Sl .-’_'.
* > £

5%% Hill

White. Cliffs
B

.';.‘" 1

Nl

ﬁ SUTTON CPg¢

"=/ Studdal (.
fa Farm “é/‘,
o

./ Long
¥/ Plantation

MNunnery Ha 3 I
Planta{ion 7 / Studdal
Y N Seuddal

7
House
Farm ?

@Wm leton I
;Fgrl‘n \

_.XQ‘
00

Farm:
gsutton - L

. L — i

Broom
. Bungalows

o . i ,”; 5
GV RIPPLE
N Winklandsaks i
i B TR

i

e 2

e <N

/ / : Greidt i tﬁ SN F
t ) . i
S : Napchester & 0 ) AgThe £
i \~ Na?chesgg_r_ QQFafm'.-' . .“l ,.-‘,Fostall
P \ ki ) \& %‘; vy el ’L Weé;t v i .
ooV g ; ' < Little A /Langdon - (/-
RPN o 0Nl P S g AL
—~Farth ﬁ %, :j-? A, - L Farm | .- ! ’ / ¥ e _
[’ &L 7\ s Yo 3 4y J The <5
AL /i -'%-'Sf Margaret's 2 22N Nbbey v, /. Grange 26
% i © 7 Farm N7 3 {Pr:n}nnstra_u:psian /"' Man
o / founded I189) # a: Lod
& A ( ; / | R
47 ) Cane Hof / . s W/ J T
“/ 4 Wood /2o g ' e / /
L L4 LANGDEON/CRY 25 %
. o! N S e /
2\ =Z : RO N e
ny 3l (o /XY SIS
¢ i T / - B AT >
i ' aneclose’, -\g =y 7 Lalfgzﬂ XS A et L
== bl ]! aw, N A 3 g & i I .
B e *; o5/ Shepherd: ) 8 QRS
i o/ Shepherd's
-t T Cross f
e ')'-)'I By "

Poisen

Little
\ Pineham Down
arm’

‘.
Parsonage ' %\
Farm™ NG

. 3 !
/. Limekiln / :

- : f by b S Y
o o Fd | / Close 77 Aangdan
‘Gifford's, : / Wi Sy

/B Cros

£ f &G Tk o -:' ff _,C‘ " S /
© Crowtr:fcgpyright-and database,rights'2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780
S TRUSLI A t Z 2 x 2P ) S F88

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PSU - Sutton

Scale 1:20,000 Dover District Council o=y

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park BQ_}GE"T\
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield COUNCIL

DOVER 95
40 CT16 3PJ _



X AA] | | L7/ Vaerhrs.
g7 ||/ Aee b/ At
VW e éaﬁhmnrk [ ~ '3 T i ; 1
g \EREAG Y S
d~ =] il AP & 2t | ) i i , L __.;/ SA
HEPHERIS WELLAWITH C ED CR o> 4
o AN A VAT,

S S

SO0 (7 Eastling
- Down
o Farm|¢&

&
// P Leﬂ:::!

-e'Woo
o

(="

PTEL
EEWEL

- _Gh:_:Ist P ——

age’ 2
(" r{n’
1. ¥ Brown's

. D [

A B W

e T

iiverMi}lmé__.__' s
i i - g
r Minnis
Farm

\ &
L Radignd s
Abbey Farm. )/ %,

__ Moorianids

-
- -
L

R SeaizeonConyaRt and dat

: _Etrﬁs___gée < 80 ]
nance surve |
e e Y .-k\‘-‘:::. \ ,",““‘4

cbase i 2015 o

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PTE - Temple Ewell

Scale 1:20,000 Dover District Council o=y

Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
DISTRICT

Map Dated: 10/10/2018 \é\/oh'\t/fgéd CouNgiL
41 CT16 3PJ _



2 o
Dover Lodge ,*
Cottages .*

Thotrtonhill
_ottages o

P
F ? it.t'ingmn
wr' Pudding |/ Cottages
Plancation z.

/Lgwer Venson

= =
' I\
'\4*5"". -

\

\ Narth Caur:

. 4 i‘_’_’_‘“gf’ o J
W 1

oosinod)

TR R

R

sy

) Admiral's
Hole

=
Kittingron
Farm
.//
e Beeches” 7/ ::"3 2
. Farm/ . i
i A
L I/'
/By e gs e 24
% ki "I'. ".’!
/ Elvingtonsa@&7x .
b/ - 3
i e '\” o
i : [ e o
/ ! - T ’
4 g 2
NE CP_ ’ - i N 427 —East -
;I "~ \ ¥ | Lt h f ) a
( f £ 255 | “/West O =
The Recjo.ry = g w/Studdal (. ~og | Si_:utidai )
. - 72 2y / Fam \5'//(“;, ': g . :
— i 7 Low R, i Q / 5 W
o\ /Eythérne 7 (ong . / ‘Y ‘\'4.5 =
/ e ; ¥ . ; 3
A7 Sy - 7 Plantati i : ; o .
¢ e <N SO
- Eythorn o a0 NS
=7 Lo 1/ SA )
o _#54 Tl
P Munnery Hay ]
.”'I--"?? y, Plantation oy Studdal N/
rdafe / LS S Studdal §
| alniains F- > (| ‘ég;":‘e
Farm’ & 49 4 | M 3
O 0 58 :
; . Ré)m;n &
2l F;:ram_.' Broom
fy Chapel : o P Bungalows
\ Farm i/
3 +73
. fn Vi > t
: M;qatr,e' shley? b
) ol
W & N ARG
; 2
’ A
I--. %%
i £ f
82
=
/- . s .
s i o § 0
" /Waldershare! >
o 7 Park  #2 :
o
- y _{‘," 53
itli %
i 7
',“f 5% % ; 0% e
g i ester- £
X7 2 Nagchestigr_? ) Fabm %
- o /e [} oA
Esg:;gg P [/ Napchester. =
Farm %7 4 Firg §
o /L NS N P 4 Ly AT S
;d__Stregt_ 5 ‘Ble7 , fg,'Sr. Margaret's
arsonage s r by . . Farm
arm ¢ 4 ¢ g
------ ‘__- ! 2 J
A L .,
} L
-I/ -
Y L L3 3
2
\ i _
= - Caneclose’,
: =t e Shaw N
g o
7 = QQ' / 9g/ Shepherd's i
- . ant i ¥ >
© Crown’copyright and database rights 2018
| AL £ % — Churen "W

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: PTI - Tilmanstone

Scale 1:20,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

42

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

s
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el °’



inster

S e oL,

(-]
4B PH §_S
el Abbe G
S QB\P (rem a?f’} ¥
N
) @ oSNy Sev
__Durlock_°S, 4 e

Ly
[

N VRS

score S8

L Elmston
"-.\ Hdade

¢ .H oad

A\
mestone \\\\
=) \ ]
-“—% Ll . / ‘.
Nash Court\Fm
“\_ % th E """.“‘ :
.él..-.‘“ = / \Q § : g
L /Nas
Shatterling PH.
£ -3 : ;' 33 MS
& !
t Pedding 7, Ts==3 [@)------

-t

-y

~
-
<

2

Fm

-

RGo%s Hatt

Brookestreet:=

t C><>,
reet

ood nesborou
Buck{andme

G rove Manop |\

-
-
P

erfield

}}h-‘--“
) -
f}: Sum’r,ﬁ

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: TAS - Ash

Scale 1:30,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

43

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

Park

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

l



[ Prestan Hil [ ~Farm,
!-l- Arm e o \ ol

. Fa ¢ 3 : o o .: £ e 00 :‘z:f
Z oS

4 Green/Man

'?F‘I :Farm
=l

[1
W/ ‘—-43,3
J = "Great Pedd ng?
Farm_— W 4t
.

9

- L\', ?pg Sta

0

I.' \

r— Twitham

b -'I. oo

~ Witherdens -\ Backney
all W% A4

N |

Tglm;am '??‘ Lictle Ty
ourt |

. Crockshardlf
A Farm o

[ Bossington
Farm

i-%_-t—?gg“__ . 9 Fals . =7 Al - i o | '. e 4
Mng:r“f:ls' - e 3 3 J(a " . et A o4 Pbp\l:}aﬂ%.‘ — 'a"
>, N <3 : - = . ) ttagze’ p
Flamalfs - & esere. /T GD™:Goodneston
A ) ; ’ L * 52 Ghodnestone e | . g
7 A Vs F Hoyse a A -
: undn!zstune‘,fark
I il

% \H T_ursefy‘i )\

i3
Durlock
\ e
d“.

sane
Ff:;m*

”
5
House I-W

r

o B
+ Blac! Pond’*.-“.-.._
i rm ",

i

erén

 Pinners
arm

S Great Pi nners
Wood

: 55
Listways
C_auagc.S@

i £ Y
"=~ uF3e Farn {1 %7
-

NONINGTON/CP

%
2o

: Dover Lodge
Cottages

\‘Ki“&\ Mianerials~

Shingletor

_ ,Ning.ton =

B
Brown Pudding
Plantation

i {4
Y of Jof Pl:?'uf:i:‘mf'- B,

S Fredyille ark[_;}f
Al J =
¥ ¥ ! H

L

c

rown copyngh_’; %

VR . Al

‘database.

1 Je

hts'2018 Ordn

ance'Survey 100019780
-\ R 2P oy .~ i

B2 TSRS e =

O

o Al T

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: TGD - Goodnestone

Scale 1:24,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018
44

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

e
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el °°



\“'91 s s

-

Fairfields j. -

22 P

o
& N
R LDy P gy

Y

L nd e trees
Farme

H{Il‘

\ .
c® ol ""’?
e, L
Sh{!works""'
|

o

K Y WRMOUTH CP 4

(7

;Nortﬁ Court /
T Farm

\ / e . (:I

;! Corner,

x
House
4

Hatchers
P Farm

; Russell > ‘ =0
carm’ - {I est | .
o /Sto rmout[}w %
by :
e - L R o \

! % |
\ )'/ St}g\n mouthMalley

s .
o o

™ o 2] f\‘y
. m, anton™.:
g hFarm‘

Y
S

.;.-..n.

o

BN (9\ .'VA(

¥ Newnham*
j Farm House
-“.'
F
i

it
-
I

y

v:‘-_l_‘ 9 .\ ,h‘lﬂ&
g Upho sdfﬁ\

Farm

o

£ o
rwater fo o

Lower Ware R

oy
R un s

Frognall
& Fruit Farm |

Charity
X
%
\
Heart's "~ &
Boundary
..., Farm

- Perr)c F itde

\J Perry
\ Fé..':,"

P ry Farm‘ 1

S}I tterlf n‘g_.Cmfr

Shatjerllng
Shat erimg

-

-=,=-

G ree nlan ds
‘FA rm ..

LT 1 R,

Little

Lr-Faf“" Ir(‘;"eerl Man
Farm

32f

| s ALY e "*ﬁ
'© Crown copyrlght and database rlghts 2018 Ordnance Su_rve¥).1|0(k)019789

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Polling District: TPR - Preston

Scale 1:20,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

45

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

e
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

1



i
P
eatherlees’ o

Mea” Low
L

‘Sandwich & Pegwell Bay
National Nature Reserve
Mud & Sand

Sandwich Flats

[ Rich, s

Nl | i~
gk ¢ 5
/ [ e g

I iy
il

o
i
IZ‘;'*n
WAL

oy 3¥ k
b | Sﬂecpfcl Tos, Sheepfold ' %
Bride s T“ﬁ LF';
Farm | 'r‘g | . ,-,\% ‘
- e )

K RVTVPIAE
0" ROMAN FORT ‘
7 (remains ) §

\\\ , f‘ :

. Gdshall Valléy

S Gl
hayy

StreﬁN
sl

-
. f_Sauth"Fc ulders

_ il L]

O, &, ooy
S

/ L o+ PE.;;".“._‘ ‘/ .
s '_70"\
s m ™ P A N iy
= e

Nursery ~/

i
=%

%y " % :
Aa T

The

—=Tittle
%, Temptye o

Tempty
Farmhouse o

' 8 Buckland | X . - '
A %, Fardh O\& A > \ "~ : [ ] A
2 5 lq N \ _ TS, S| X
g ; s “%.©,Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780
L oa N e v R s T Ve N0, W<d o co /Y / by

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: TSA - Sandwich North

Scale 1:20,000 Dover District Council ’ =]

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER
Map Dated: 10/10/2018 Whitfield couNeiL

DOVER 101
46 CT16 3PJ _



North
Poulders o

4l White Mill
5 (dis)
-"3{ White Ml
olk Museum

Windmill
Farm

>ANDWICH

Sluice

Xy 20,

uth Poulders

o =
N |

AR ST,
ST D
ey,
i &

)
155 e
‘M\LLC(

i

%n

! 2
i
i/
Fai .

i’iii'ii"i;

1
“

|
254

v

Great Poulders
Farm

S
Faa Little Poulders
1 7\\_\ Farm

AR

Sunnyside
Nurseries

Poulders
Gardens

9
o
S
$P

7S
Bl

et

™ -
ey Ory,

\!\r; ST
, =3

W
! h)

b5

o

“%}‘\ B
28z,
laremont 8m

Te"

e v

W

3

.8,

Park
errace

[\
v

3

Gazen Salts
Recreation Ground

Gellows Field )

Sandwich \ 7\ \\
Juniar Schaol -

-
-

. \
. \
Prad \
X \!
3

1
\\ B B
erlan/dI/ ‘5‘;
R
House 2 i3 \
The ™

Shrubbery "\
S

D

25

K&

O -
k

o
,AS\"“ e

X
SR
%

%

S
XX
%S

2

5%

2
S
S
5%
2

o2t

%

%
o2
&
s

o
&

N
BREK
2%
o

QRS

Stonecross%
Farm

Sandwich
Technology
School

S/

TR

=5

RS
2

£

The
Salutation

]
% Sandwich K
7~ Industrial Estate 18l
1o !
3

l

T
*Chalk Nea]
oMM TS
Ky
.

"
N

>

S

il
2!

=18

e

Archer's Low
Farm

Vit ! The Round

°
Stuart's Folly ouse

Ceil

. A \ =
© Crown copyright-and database rights 2018 Ordnance Surv
B Y Nk AL NN LN \

6y 100019780
S N

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: TSB - Sandwich South

Scale 1:10,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

47

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

.,
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

el 12



Art

. o
Finchley:§

rad %
Farm, g%
: )

"
[
i
]

1

::'“_'\- _
;9 /Stone own’

SN |

4

il
k% -““*féreat' Pedd'ing1:
—Farm_—W o2

"‘\‘/ A 7

'
"

v

i
I_

th
A

m

&/
(Th

& _L-i.tt!e Twitham.»

-
2y

Summerfield
N Fapm

26

7 8

\._
“TH
g
G

— LT

‘
ig_ e p

Q Crfﬁ'hall

4
.

Nioat £7

a8 e
rixhall

Court_

Lisuh

T
13
7a

.
-

“/'4: T : e B I ) -~
© Crown copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnanc
\ 38 ~ x 7N : v

o

m merfiel:d qun’;‘}
(Eastry) 3

.\.) IIQ : .

Ppo S
e Survey*10201/9780

~*QOuarry

DDC Polling District Review 2018

Polling District: TSP - Staple

Scale 1:12,500

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

48

Dover District Council

Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park

Whitfield
DOVER
CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

1



NG

"

.

A

[

Sheepfold

8
-.. ‘
L "\
%[ Blood e

Point

e

%uth
s L

-
.
PR

Saltmork;""--.,_‘.

Gutter

Plucks s,

orth~Court

Russe!rl «

arm

Il

£’
o

UU...

el 7]

4 ¥ e

I:ST4A- Stourmo
Y\/’;Vest \"\
Stou rmoutI}/

,
Pie N
;‘-‘L~

. ’--—-,‘

,
¥
A

o o
‘Sahton Farm o

O 0D
O

X

-~

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: TST - Stourmouth

Scale 1:12,500

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

&

Y

A

&,

/:,/© Crown copyright ang data}b

I\
g

(AT )

& \

ase rights 2018 C rd

A==t

nance Survey, 100019780
yvalLcl s Y

[

49

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

s
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

S



Seaton

Deers

7 Deerloily

Hanging Bar

......

4 Farm_

]

Wood

P

8

amlingcour:

er Shatter i
o Farm—
\JFBss ~

e

[y — ::__. /Stone own .
A5 f
g)

S

P

Ie Nash

’ElFarn 5

Little
Shatterl|
R’erlmglﬁFarm

Co unt

T

Great
- F(

Croc k.'s_h ard
Farm -

itham

o 17
52 o ; dis}g
" Little Twitham g
Farm &
= .{;
ane) ;
BS
N [8 &
St ‘BS
_\”‘“;L:/

Aty

"G

; os£| ngtor’ /

%) Er‘i S
d].. o

19 |

ckshard:l| k37,
ao !

(!/Qq > o Farm? ] (
- ||" "‘..“...“ (, / 4
e 3 L{**::;!k-w
III L B{bssir;gton '. : {,\x/ R
/ S ) / - ' N G -
. / ( . g b urchy—0¢ A .
e &) ttle Bossington | ¥ ° ( A /o \
| gl NG/ Farm " " © Crown copyrlght and database rlghts 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019780
P ) / / B SR e (7 [ NSNS N Seengshy

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: TWG - Wingham

Scale 1:15,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

50

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

s
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

5



-

coper, Street

Kbeque

\.mlrt

-_‘4 White'Rost  #

Fa rm
=

| -
‘Né---o--. * L

.
|
WbODI\IE!\

1 = f
g ‘[ Fl rn/gs Flemi S .
T g
Chapel NEYARD ey W'!}! -@ Ry,

o ) 5 lela o
Farrnfﬂ i ; A

Hleming ROi= |/ ‘Blacy Pond's,,

: i s
J Summerfield / %‘\
= = S l"f [ 3
*@é%ﬁﬂaﬁ%“”o

4

4 .Hammluoeza-‘eer

Farm|

cash | Tlckenhu rst

Little Trckenhnrst7

: .Fﬁ:. ] 1
. BxFar
Heron @ /
&,

Hermden

. - ; . i '_?;,'
, 5, '."‘ i .
/ {29’ Ha{nmrll ;

//“ © Crown copyrlght and database rlghts'2018
/@ | Saneradd's

ary- IéJbone H|II

M‘nrshhorough
& Farm

| \f’\'
" hest n u
“ ; arrn

Mars boroug@'

{?‘;n vent

nesbor g

v\ruumlcm ,lruu-

| Churchgate
Farm

!

ﬁ noJogxog

T Y

nghburough
N HI"

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Polling District: TWN - Woodnesborough

Scale 1:20,000

Map Dated: 10/10/2018

51

Haonse #0%

Poﬁlders,-‘

Farm “3¢"
L:ttle P ulclersII

/5 Faf?m E

Ordnance Survey 100019780

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

24
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

1




Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places in Dover District 2018
Responses Received by 5 December 2018

(Dover District)

Whitfield District
Ward

Maxton and Elms
Vale District Ward

Town and Castle
District Ward

St Radigund’s
District Ward

Tower Hamlets
District Ward

Eastry Rural
District Ward

Middle Deal District
Ward

The majority of the proposed changes are to keep in
line with the recently completed Local Government
Boundary Review and the maps for the proposed
polling districts can be viewed online at
https://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--
Democracy/Elections/Proposed-Polling-Districts.pdf

In the event that the changes take place, | propose
to use the indicated Polling Stations.

Buckland District Ward and Whitfield District
Ward

Proposed Change
1) Creation of a new Polling District to cover the
Rokesley area of Buckland.
2) Amendment of boundary to Buckland South.
3) To amend the current polling districts for
Whitfield to divide North and South rather than
East and West.

Individual/
Public Body .
N making AT RGN Response Third Party Responses
representations
1 (Acting) Buckland District In response to your letter dated 15 October 2018, |
Returning Ward would request that the following changes be
Officer considered as part of the Polling District Review.

L0T



https://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--Democracy/Elections/Proposed-Polling-Districts.pdf
https://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--Democracy/Elections/Proposed-Polling-Districts.pdf

No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

North Deal District
Ward

Sandwich District
Ward

Rationale behind proposal

1) The Local Government Boundary Commission
for England (LGBCE) has moved the Rokesley
area from Buckland District Ward into Whitfield
District Ward. It will remain in Buckland Town
Ward for town council elections.

2) The LGBCE review amended the boundary to
include part of St Radigund’s East Polling
District.

3) Currently over 800 electors have to cross the A2
in order to vote. By amending the polling districts
to divide North & South instead of East and West
we can place a new polling station on the South
side of the A2 which could serve both the
Rokesley area and Whitfield South. This also
allows for expected future growth of the
electorate in Whitfield North which would
continue to use the current polling station at
Whitfield Village Hall.

Proposed Polling Stations

Christchurch  Academy, Melbourne Avenue for
Rokesley and Whitfield South

Whitfield Village Hall for Whitfield North

Maxton and Elms Vale District Ward and Town
and Castle District Ward

Proposed change
Priory Polling District has amended boundaries and

Peter Jull

District Councillor
(St  Margaret's-at-
Cliffe):

Unless space can
be found within
Christchurch
Academy for a
polling station
without  disrupting
school activities,
DDC offices would
seem a preferable
option

80T




No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

is now included in Town and Castle District Ward.
Maxton & Elms Vale also has its shared boundaries
with Tower Hamlets and Priory amended.

Rationale behind proposal
In line with the LGBCE Boundary Review changes.

Proposed Polling Stations

No change to current polling stations used for these
areas.

St Radigund's District Ward

Proposed Change
1)  Amendment of boundary to St Radigund’s East
Polling District.

2)  Creation of new polling district to cover part of
Tower Hamlet’s District Ward which has been
moved into St Radigund’s District Ward.

Rationale behind proposals
In line with the LGBCE Boundary Review changes.

Proposed Polling Stations

1) Barton CP School, Barton Road, with Dover
Working Man’s Club as an alternative during
school renovations

2) Baptist Church, Maison Dieu Road

60T




No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

Tower Hamlet’s District Ward

Proposed Change

Change of the boundary of Tower Hamlets West to
include part of the Tower Hamlets East District. We
propose splitting this new larger Polling District in
two, with the top part of the polling district voting at
The Ark and the bottom part of the polling district
voting in Curzon Hall. The proposed split can be
viewed at

www.dover.gov.uk/Council--
Democracy/Elections/BTH1-and-BTH2-Tower-
Hamlets-West-and-Tower-Hamlets-East. pdf
Rationale behind proposal

In line with LGBCE Boundary Review changes and
the topography of the area.. The increased
electorate means that two polling stations are
required and Curzon Hall is not large enough to
accommodate both stations.

Proposed Polling Stations
Curzon Hall, Curzon Road
The Ark, Noah’s Ark Road

Eastry Rural District Ward

Proposed Change

1) To split Sholden Parish into 3 new Polling
Districts, one of which will vote in Sholden
Parish and Eastry Rural District Ward.

2) To split Worth into 2 new Polling Districts, one of

Peter Jull

District Councillor
(St  Margaret's-at-
Cliffe):

With Curzon Hall
and The Ark only
being 350 yards
apart and even after
enlargement Tower
Hamlets not being
the largest polling
district 1 don't see a
justification for 2
polling stations.

OoTT



http://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--Democracy/Elections/BTH1-and-BTH2-Tower-Hamlets-West-and-Tower-Hamlets-East.pdf
http://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--Democracy/Elections/BTH1-and-BTH2-Tower-Hamlets-West-and-Tower-Hamlets-East.pdf
http://www.dover.gov.uk/Council--Democracy/Elections/BTH1-and-BTH2-Tower-Hamlets-West-and-Tower-Hamlets-East.pdf

No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

which will vote in Worth Parish and Eastry Rural
District Ward.

Rationale behind proposal
In line with LGBCE Boundary Review changes

Proposed Polling Stations
1) Scout HQ, The Street, Sholden
2) Worth Parish Hall, The Street, Worth

Middle Deal District Ward

Proposed Change
To split Sholden Parish into 3 new Polling Districts,
one of which will vote in Sholden Parish and Middle
Deal District Ward.

Rationale behind proposal
In line with the LGBCE Boundary Review changes

Proposed Polling Stations

As there is no potential polling station in this new
polling district, a second polling station will be added
to the station currently allocated to another Middle
Deal Polling District, Warden House Primary School,
Birdwood Avenue.

North Deal District Ward

Proposed Change
1) Amendment of boundaries to the Polling District
of Walmer, Gladstone Ward which falls within

TTT




No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

North Deal District Ward.

2) To split Sholden Parish into 3 new Polling
Districts, one of which will vote in Sholden
Parish and North Deal District Ward.

Rationale behind proposal
In line with the LGCBE Boundary Review changes.

Proposed Polling Stations

1) Walmer Sea Scout’s Hall, Marine Road

2) There is no suitable polling station within the
polling district and the parliamentary electorate
for this polling district is currently less than 100
SO it makes sense to join them with an already
established polling station. The closest suitable
polling station in the North Deal District Ward is
the Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road. The
residents in the newly created Tenants Hill
Polling District would have had to pass the Golf
Road Centre in order to vote at their previous
station of the Scout HQ, Sholden so it would
effectively mean travelling a shorter distance to
vote.

Sandwich District Ward

Proposed Change

To split Worth Parish into 2 new Polling Districts, one
of which would vote in Worth Parish and Sandwich
District Ward elections.

AN




Individual/

Keeping Alkham Village Hall is good for
democracy in Alkham. Thank you.

proposing any change in
Alkham

Public B :
et urtr:a(I:(ingdy Al REHEECe Response Third Party Responses
representations

Rationale behind proposal

In line with the LGBCE Boundary Review changes.

Proposed Polling Stations
As there are no suitable polling stations within the
polling district, the best option is a joint polling
station with Sandwich North Polling District at the
Guildhall, Cattle Market, Sandwich.

2 Resident Aylesham | see you doing a review of polling stations? Can you | This is not a matter for a
tell me why the people of Aylesham have to endure | polling district/stations
candidates and their supporters on the polling station | review.
premises?

Candidates, agents and
tellers are only allowed
inside of the polling station
(the room in which the
voting takes place) to cast
their own vote if they
appear on the Register of
Electors there. They are
however, entitled to stand
outside of the polling
station.

3 Resident Alkham Parish The Returning Officer is not

ETT




Individual/

(North Deal)

ward and also to serve part of the current area of
North Deal. | know it will mean that this polling
station will be covering two parish town elections but
it will be the

same district election.

Also the Gladstone Ward of Walmer that has been
put into North Deal for the district election, can they
vote in the Scout Hut on the Seafront near the
paddling pool?

to use the already
established polling station
at the Golf Road Centre for
the electorate based in the
new Parish Ward of
Tenant’s Hill. The facilities
and access at the Golf
Road Centre are excellent
for use as a polling station
and the same cannot be
said for a temporary polling
station.

The cost of siting a
temporary polling station is
actually more than the total
cost of hiring every polling
station that we currently
already use in the polling
districts in Deal and
Walmer.

Public B :
et urtr;a(I:(ingdy Al REHEECe Response Third Party Responses
representations
4 Resident North Deal District | In your consultation following the boundary review | The proposed polling
Ward would propose. North Deal Canute Road area needs | station of the Golf Road
a polling booth even in a temporary space as it is too | Centre is actually closer to
far for the new Sholden residents on Sandwich Bay | the residents of Tenant’s
to access Golf Rd Centre. Hill than their original polling
| hope this will be taken into consideration station at the Scout HQ in
Sholden.
5 Bill Gardner: North Deal District | Can | suggest that we have a mobile polling station As stated in the Returning
District Ward up the North End to serve the area of Sholden that is | Officer’s representation in
Councillor now for the DDC elections part of the North Deal this review, it makes sense

14’




Individual/

Public B :
et urtr:a(I:(ingdy Al REHEECe Response Third Party Responses
representations
The Returning Officer has
already proposed the use of
the Sea Scout Hall on
Marine Road as a polling
station for Gladstone Ward.

6 Sholden Parish | Sholden Parish Sholden Parish Council discussed this review (your | The Returning Officer
Council notice of 15 October refers) at its meeting on 29 agrees that these are the

North Deal District | October. logical choices for polling
Ward stations as there are no

Ideally (and as implied in the notice of 15 October) suitable polling stations
Middle Deal District | both the Hyton Ward residents and the Tenant's Hill | already in the Tenants Hill
Ward, Ward residents should be able to vote in their own and Hyton Wards. (See

electoral wards. However, in the event that polling Representation 1)
Eastry Rural places cannot be found with these two wards,
District Ward Sholden Parish Council recommends that:-

(i) Hyton Ward residents be allowed to vote at

Warden House School

(i) Tenant's Hill Ward residents be allowed to vote at

the Golf Road community centre.

The Sholden Ward is ideally covered by having the

Scout HQ as it polling place.

7 Linda Keen Eythorne & The only polling station at Eythorne is too far from The Returning Officer is not
District Shepherdswell Elvington for easy access for those residents without | responsible for amending
Councillor District Ward their own cars - down and up a long steep hill. polling district boundaries;
(Aylesham) that responsibility rests with

GTT




Individual/

Parish Council

Wingham Village Hall as its polling station. This
room meets the requirements with easy access and
parking for all and WC facilities for staff and visitors.

There are disabled parking bays and a ramp from
the car park up to the entry door for the hall. There
are no other suitable premises in the village which
could be used for this purpose

proposing any change in
Wingham.

Public B :
et urtr:a(I:(ingdy Al REHEECe Response Third Party Responses
representations
There should be an additional polling district with a Dover District Council.
polling station installed at the community hall in However, the Community
Elvington, which is ideally located for this purpose. Centre is well placed to
serve Elvington and has
appropriate facilities and
access. It would make a
suitable polling station.
8 Hougham Hougham Without | On behalf of Hougham Without Parish Council - this | The Returning Officer is not
Without Parish council notes that it’s Polling District does not proposing any change in
Parish Council change in this review and can only comment Hougham Without.
regarding the question of any possible alternative
polling station locations in the parish.
In the parish council’s opinion, apart from Hougham
Parish Hall in West Hougham, there is no other
suitable alternative site for a polling station within our
parish boundary.
9 Wingham Wingham Parish I can confirm that Wingham uses the Miles Room at | The Returning Officer is not

oTT




Individual/

Public Body .
et making Al REHEECe Response Third Party Responses
representations

10 P(_ate_r Jull Middle Deal District To remove the confusion of neighbours on opposite T_he _placmg of polllng

District Ward . . : . : district boundaries is

; sides of a road being directed to different polling . .
Councillor . : . decided by the Council.
, S stations and to remove some minor anomalies the
(St Margaret's- Mill Hill District following amendments to the proposed pollin
at-Cliffe) Ward 9 prop P 9 However, it should be noted

North Deal District
Ward

St Radigund’s
District Ward

districts should be made:

Both sides of St. Leonard’s Road to be in AMD2
Middle Deal, Park

Both sides of Pilots Avenue to be in AMH1 Mill Hill,
South

Both sides of Redsull Avenue to be in AMH3, Mill
Hill, West

Goodwin Close to be in AMH3 Mill Hill, West

Both sides of Mill Hill above it’s junction with Redsull
Avenue to be in AMH3 Mill Hill, West

Both sides of Harold Road to be AN1 North Deal,
Sandown

St. David’s Road to be in AN2 North Deal, St.
Andrew’s
Century Walk to be in AN2 North Deal, St. Andrew’s

Both sides of Beaconsfield Road and Beaconsfield
Avenue to be in BR2 St. Radigund’s East

that boundary lines
traditionally run down the
middle of roads in most
areas as there is a legal
presumption that a house
boundary runs to the centre
of the road it abuts. Roads
are less likely to change
than house boundaries at
the rear of a property and
so a boundary down the
middle of the road is usually
preferable.

To prevent any confusion
for the electorate, poll cards
are sent out prior to an
election to ensure voters
are aware of the location of
their polling stations. The
Notice of Poll lists the
relevant polling stations to
be used and polling station
details are also available on
the DDC website during an
election period. Following

LTT




Individual/

Public B :
et urtr:a(I:(ingdy Al REHEECe Response Third Party Responses
representations
the conclusion of this review
and the republishing of the
Register of Electors, we will
be writing to all electors
who have been allocated to
a different polling station to
advise them of the change
of venue.

11 | Peter Wallace Maxton & Elms As one of the ward councillors for Maxton and Town | The Returning Officer is not
District Vale District Ward | & Castle wards | have looked at the proposed list of | proposing any change of
Councillor & polling districts and polling stations for the two | polling stations in the
(Maxton, Elms Town and Castle wards. Maxton & Elms Vale or the
Vale and Priory) | District Ward The polling stations are centrally located, in good | Town & Castle District

locations and will encourage people to vote as they | Wards.
are within walking distance of most houses in the
wards.
| don't believe there are better alternatives and
removing any station would only be a disadvantage
to voters.
| recommend adopting the councils proposed polling
districts and polling stations for the two wards.
12 | Acting Returning | Little Stour and We have no comments to make

Officer
(South Thanet
Constituency)

Ashstone District
Ward

Sandwich District
Ward

8TT




Individual/

Public B :
et urtr:a(I:(ingdy Al REHEECe Response Third Party Responses
representations
13 | Pam Brivio Tower Hamlets As a ward councillor who has represented Tower 1. The Returning Officer
District District Ward Hamlets since 2011 and who has lived and voted in has proposed a new
Councillor this ward since 1984, | would like to make the polling district scheme

(Tower Hamlets)

following comments:
The new ward of Tower Hamlets is 2713 — this
comprises what was BH1 and part of what was BH2

1. Curzon Hall to remain a polling station for
the main part of the ward which will
comprise approximately 2255 electors
(previously BH1) but would like to make
comment under point 2.

2. However, due to the topography of the
top part of the ward (Anselm road,
Harbour View Road, Hamilton Road,
Chamberlain Road, Northbourne Avenue,
Noahs Ark Road/Edred Road, including
High Meadow flats, Noaks Ark Terrace
etc.) | would like to make a suggestion for
another polling station in this area (e.qg.
The Ark). Approximately 649 voters.

3. Although this would reduce the numbers
voting at Curzon Hall, I note that
other Polling Districts, e.g. town and
Castle, have as many as four polling
stations for an electorate of 5339 voters
(two member of ward).

which allows for the use
of Curzon Hall and The
Ark as polling stations
for the Tower Hamlets
District Ward. (See
Representation 1 —
Tower Hamlets District
Ward)

. See the answer to 1

. Polling stations must be

allocated within the
polling district unless
there is no suitable
building available. The
distribution of polling
stations in Town &
Castle District Ward is
due to the shape of the
Ward and there being
four polling districts that
make up the area. There
is one polling station in
each of the polling
districts.

. When there is a suitable

polling station within the

6TT




No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

4. Possibility of residents (from what was

originally BH2 who continue to be in the
ward of Tower Hamlets) being able to use
a shared polling station at Salem Baptist
Church. This is the polling stations where
residents have traditionally voted.

The remainder of what was BH2 now
forms part of St Radigunds and the
proposal for these electors to continue to
use Salem Baptist seems correct. But |
think a shared polling station for those
remaining in Tower hamlets as referred to
4 in would be a sensible suggestion.

polling district, there is
no provision to allow us
to send electors to a
polling station situated
within a different district
ward in order to vote.
Even if the area became
a polling district in its
own right, as there is no
suitable polling station
within the area, the
electors would be sent to
a suitable polling station
within their own district
ward, rather than a
neighbouring district
ward.

. The Returning Officer

has already proposed
the Baptist Church on
Maison Dieu Road
remain the polling
station for the residents
of Tower Hamlets Ward
that are being moved to
St Radigund’s District
Ward.

0cT




No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

14

Pam Brivio
District
Councillor
(Tower Hamlets)

Tower Hamlets
District Ward

Further to the submission | made yesterday
regarding polling stations in Tower Hamlets
(retention of Curzon Hall as is very central to the
ward and possibility of additional polling station for
top part of ward due to topography of area) plus
possibility of those in what was BH2 and who are to
remain in Tower Hamlets voting at Salem Baptist
Hall, on a shared polling station basis.

When calculating the numbers for the arguments |
was putting forward, | could not understand why they
totaled in excess of 2713 (as shown on the spread
sheet of polling stations etc. | then realized that the
numbers that were used by the Labour Group for the
submission to the Boundary Commission for
justification of a one member ward came to
2933; the Boundary Commission accepted the
argument for a one member ward for Tower
Hamlets.

And according to the map of the new ward the
boundary is practically identical to the proposals
submitted (apart from a small part that goes into
Ladywell).

It may be that the current figures for the ward are
now less?

See response to
Representation 13

15

Bill Gardner
(Leader of DDC
Labour Group)

Sandwich District

Ward

Labour Party submission for polling stations for next
years election.
This is for the area of Sandwich, Deal, Walmer,

See response to
Representation 5 regarding
North Deal District Ward,

TZT




No.

Individual/
Public Body
making
representations

Area

Representation

Response

Third Party Responses

Walmer District
Ward

Guston, Kingsdown
and St Margaret’s-
at-Cliffe District
Ward

Mill Hill District
Ward

Middle Deal District
Ward

North Deal District
Ward

Kingsdown and St Margaret'’s.

Our party is willing to accept the officers report for
the following wards.

Sandwich,

Walmer,

St Margaret’s and Kingsdown.

Mill Hill,

Middle Deal

But we wish to suggest the following for North Deal

We accept the two polling districts that poll at the
Landmark and the Baptist Church in Victoria Rd, but
we would like to see a mobile polling station at the
very end of North Deal in say Canute Rd to service
the area of Sholden that has been added to North
Deal, and some of the houses nearby to the polling
station that would have voted at Golf Rd.

And for the area of Gladstone Ward we would
recommend the Scout Hut on the sea front near the
paddling pool.

Bill Gardner.
Leader of the Labour Group DDC.

Just as a note,
Clir Pam Brivio will be sending in a submission for
her ward that is supported by the group.

the Sholden Parish Ward of

Tenant’s Hill and the

Walmer Parish Ward of

Gladstone.

[AA)




',‘ ‘Bﬁu.c’klland (&)
', Y S t\

NA )

L2F BucKiand

PW [Bridge

'I,";@ 5

7 -~

-

W = /
A % /‘4:“00\“

. spital ¥
;Iospltal

St
MCBTH2{STowe

Tower . 2.
Hamlgts  \sehool 7 ¥

-
-
-

Playing “_

Fields -

Playing TTTL G
Field

M Valerm s,

K3 yARKLAN

Stepping
Down

e,

L4
YL lll“?

i Sport /N

“aTEel T G, Ground S /
et Aol — e L L . PP PN

NE2 V\@.Cr,qwn cggyrlght Snd \d?ﬁ‘aba\\?ﬁ‘ 1|;|.ghts} 20 8 j 'g:‘e,SLfrve)_/\ﬂ 0'90\1‘%8/0

& QYA -
¥, 3 y QLS ,«\ s’
27 A 22 . @ &5 av,.
> &5 \{J 2

i

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling Districts: BTH1- Tower Hamlets West & BTH2- Tower Hamlets East

Scale 1:6,000 Dover District Council =

Honeywood Close
White Cliffs Business Park DOVER

Map Dated: 09/11/2018 Whitfield couNEIL

DOVER 123
CT16 3PJ —



/ Belech .,\
Plantation ™ “
'}' / A

.. iLimekiln
(YPlantation

. . 2
b‘ - "I‘i'/

\

Brown Pudding

quntg,t‘.ion

) [
Baf res5bne ”@ourt
7 7

Y
’/

e
AL Y,
&

.. .. /

1

§

X
L]

~\

Ay

G
{

THe Rectory 323

PEX1 &

S S

o —7 Lowe

0
/
o !
e

Nl

)
o

-~
—

Beal

G

1

&

74 AN
SN2 “-}‘\\\ 3
~_/Eythérn \ng’»‘ »_—__._'. 7
\ S

Sch !

£

Lodge

I

© Crown
NN

PEX2 - Eythorne andiBarfrestone=y )

o
Qﬁ

5

AN VN
@ Canterblry '~

/

Thornto

il
1,
1
Iy

2 Farm
AT 50 i &

7 I,
)

N\o/

-

o f

o Réutty |

W C}'/,
-

g

#
i

MWood

DDC Polling District Review 2018
Proposed Polling Districts: PEX1 & PEX2 - Eythorne & Barfrestone and PEX3 - Elvington

Scale 1:15,000
Map Dated: 15/01/2019

Dover District Council
Honeywood Close

White Cliffs Business Park
Whitfield

DOVER

CT16 3PJ

=
DOVER

DISTRICT
COUNCIL

S



1A )

Polling District

Polling Station

District Ward

PAK Alkham Alkham Village Hall, Hogbrook Hill

PCF Capel-le-Ferne Capel-Le-Ferne Village Hall (Small Hall), Lancaster Avenue, Capel-Le-Ferne Alkham & Capel-le-Ferne
PHM Hougham Without West Hougham Parish Hall, West Hougham, Dover

PAY Aylesham Aylesham Baptist Church, Dorman Avenue South, Aylesham

PEX1 Eythorne Resource Centre, Barfrestone Road, Eythorne

PEX2 Barfrestone Resource Centre, Barfrestone Road, Eythorne Aylesham, Eythorne &
PEX3 Elvington Elvington Community Centre, St John's Road, Elvington Shepherd;well

PNN Nonington Nonington Village Hall, Easole Street

PSL1 Shepherdswell Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell

PSL2 Coldred Shepherdswell Village Hall, Coxhill, Shepherdswell

BC1 Buckland North Buckland Community Centre, Roosevelt Road, Dover Buckland

BC2 Buckland South Shatterlocks C P Infants School, Heathfield Avenue

PDD Denton Denton Village Hall, The Street

PDW Wootton Wootton Village Hall, Wootton Lane

PLN Lydden Lydden Village Hall, 83 Canterbury Road, Lydden Dover Downs & River
PTE Temple Ewell Temple Ewell Village Hall, 187 London Road, Temple Ewell

PRV River River Village Hall, Common Lane, River

PEA Eastry Eastry Village Hall, High Street, Eastry

PNR Northbourne Northbourne Parish Hall, The Drove, Northbourne

PSU Sutton Sutton Parish Community Centre, Downs Road, East Studdal Eastry Rural

PTI Tilmanstone Tilmanstone Village Hall, Chapel Road

PSHE Eastry Rural, Sholden Ward Scout H.Q., The Street, Sholden

TWRA1 Eastry Rural, Worth Village Worth Parish Hall, The Street, Worth

PGM Great Mongeham Great Mongeham Parish Hall, 170 Mongeham Road

PGS Guston Burgoyne Heights Community Centre, Burgoyne Heights, Guston

PLG Langdon East Langdon Parish Hall, The Street . .
PRG Ringwould Ringwould Village Hall, Dover Road, Ringwould ;U(S:::;:e Kingsdown & St Margaret's,
PRK Kingsdown Kingsdown C P School, Glen Road

PRP Ripple Ripple Village Hall, Sutton Road

PSM St Margaret's-at-Cliffe St Margaret's-At-Cliffe Village Hall, Reach Road, St Margaret's -At- Cliffe

TAS Ash Ash Village Hall (Library), Queens Road, Ash

TGD Goodnestone Goodnestone Village Hall, The Street

TPR Preston Preston Village Hall, Mill Lane, Preston .

TSP Staple Staple ViIIagg Hall, Mill Road, Staple Little Stour & Ashstone
TST Stourmouth The Rising Sun Inn, (Double Door Entrance), The Street

TWG Wingham Wingham Village Hall, School Lane, Wingham

BME Maxton & Elms Vale St Martin's Church Hall, Church Road, Dover Maxton & Elms Vale
AMD1 Middle Deal, Manor Deal Christian Fellowship Hall, Sutherland Road, Deal

AMD2 Middle Deal, Park Linwood Youth Centre, Mill Road, Deal Middle Deal

AMD3 Middle Deal, Upper Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal

PSHM Middle Deal, Hyton Warden House School, Birdwood Avenue, Deal




9¢t

Polling District

Polling Station

District Ward

AMH1 Mill Hill, South Deal Pentecostal Church, 69 Mill Hill

AMH2 Mill Hill, North The Godric Centre, Rear of St John's R C Church, St Richard's Road Mill Hill

AMH3 Mill Hill, West The Sports Centre, Off Cavell Square, Deal

AWA4N North Deal, Gladstone Walmer Sea Scout Hall, Marine Road, Walmer

AN1 North Deal, Sandown The Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road, Deal

AN2 North Deal, St Andrews Cleary Hall, Landmark Centre, 129 High Street North Deal
AN3 North Deal, Victoria Baptist Hall, Stanley Road, Deal

PSHN North Deal, Tenants Hill The Golf Road Centre, 28 Golf Road, Deal

TSA Sandwich, North Meeting Room, Guildhall, Cattle Market

TSB Sandwich, South The Phoenix Centre, Jubilee Road Sandwich
TWN Woodnesborough Woodnesborough Village Hall, The Street, Woodnesborough

TWR2 Sandwich, Sandwich Bay Meeting Room, Guildhall, Cattle Market

BR1 St Radigund's, West Triangles Community Centre, Poulton Close

BR2 St Radigund's, East Barton C P School, Barton Road, Dover St Radigund's
BR3 St Radigund's, Town Dover Baptist Church Hall, 27-32 Maison Dieu Road, Dover

BTH1 Tower Hamlets, West The Ark, Noah's Ark Road, Dover Tower Hamlets
BTH2 Tower Hamlets, East Curzon Hall, Curzon Road, Dover

BT1 Town & Castle, Priory Clarendon and Westbury Community Centre, Belgrave Road, Dover

BT2 Town & Castle, Castle St Mary's Parish Centre, Dieu Stone Lane, Dover Town & Castle
BT3 Town & Castle, Aycliffe Aycliffe Church Centre, Old Folkestone Road

BT4 Town & Castle, Redoubt St John Ambulance Brigade Hall, North Military Road, Dover

AW1 Walmer, Upper Walmer Walmer Chapel (Rear Hall), 30 Station Road, Walmer

AW?2 Walmer, Wellington Walmer Parish Hall, Dover Road, Walmer, Deal Walmer

AW3 Walmer, St Saviour's St Saviour's Church, The Strand, Walmer

PWH1 Whitfield, North Whitfield Village Hall, Sandwich Road, Whitfield

PWH2 Whitfield, South Christchurch Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield Whitfield
BC1W Whitfield, Rokesley Christchurch Academy, Melbourne Avenue, Whitfield




Agenda Item No 9

Subject: REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL
GROUPS

Meeting and Date: COUNCIL - 30 JANUARY 2019

Report of: JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND

MONITORING OFFICER

Classification: UNRESTRICTED

Purpose of the report: The prompt and correct allocation of committee seats is vital to

maintaining an effective and transparent governance framework.

Recommendation: (@) That the Council reviews and determines the representation

of the different political groups and non-politically aligned
members on the ordinary committees of the Council and the
other bodies to which it makes appointments.*

(b) That the Council appoints to the seats on the ordinary
committees to give effect to the allocations and the
nomination of the political groups and appoints to the other
bodies to which it makes appointments.

(c) That the Council make appointments to the positions of
Chairman and Vice-Chairman for each of the ordinary
committees of the council and the two scrutiny committees.

* If making a determination otherwise than in accordance
with Option 3 the Council would need to formally approve
the preferred method of determination and allocation as
‘alternative arrangements’ in accordance with Section 17(1)
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Regulation 20
Local Government (Committees and Political Groups)
Regulations 1990. To be effective no member of the Council
must vote against the proposal.

1.2

Summary

The Council at its meeting held on 12 December 2018 most recently considered the
political balance arrangements for the Council’s seat allocation. In making the seat
allocations and giving effect to the appointments the Council did not apply the strict
statutory scheme as established under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989
and the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990. The
Council is entitled to do this and make alternative arrangements provided that no
member of the Council votes against the proposals (see section 17 Local
Government and Housing Act 1989). Subsequent to the meeting a councillor
asserted to officers that he had voted against the proposals but that his vote had not
been noted. The Councillor was advised by the Monitoring Officer to challenge the
accuracy of the minutes at the next Council meeting if he wished to maintain this
view.

If it is accepted by the Council that the councillor in question did vote against the
proposals then, it will be necessary for the Council to consider the matter afresh. This
report has been prepared in that eventuality.

127



2.2

23

24

2.5

26

Introduction and Background

The political composition of the Council is currently 24 Conservative Group members,
16 Labour Group members, 2 Progressive Group members and 3 members who are
not currently members of any political group. In this report the 3 members who are
not members of a political group are referred to as “non-aligned members”.

To be recognised as a political group, the group is required to have at least two
members and have formally notified the authority that those members wish to be
treated as a political group. The Conservative, Labour and Progressive Groups have
all met this requirement.

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (specifically subsections
(3) to (5)) prescribes the Council's duty to determine the allocation of seats which
states the basic principles of seat allocation.

In summary, these principles of determination are:
(a) That not all | the seats are allocated to the same political group;

(b) The majority of the seats on the body is allocated to a particular political
group if the number of persons belonging to that group is a majority of the
authority’s membership;

(c) Subject to the above two principles, that the number of seats on ordinary
committees which are allocated to each political group bears the same
proportion to the total of all the seats on the ordinary committees of the
Council as is borne by the number of members of that group to the
membership of the authority; and

(d) Subject to (a) to (c), that the number of seats on the body which are allocated
to each political group bears the same proportion to the number of all the
seats on that body as is borne by the number of members of that group to the
membership of the authority.

Section 15(3) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989

The determination of seats on the Council has been undertaken in accordance with
the principles set out in Section 15(3) of the Act, which states as follows:

“15(3) Where at any time the representation of different political groups on a body to
which this section applies falls to be reviewed under this section by any
relevant authority or committee of a relevant authority, it shall be the duty of
that authority or committee, as soon as practicable after the review ,to
determine the allocation to the different political groups into which the
members of the authority are divided of all the seats which fall to be filled by
appointments made from time to time by that authority or committee.”

However, where the Council has members who are non-aligned, this section is
amended by regulation 16 of The Regulations to read as follows:

“15(3) Where at any time the representation of different political groups on a body to
which this section applies falls to be reviewed under this section by any
relevant authority or committee of a relevant authority, it shall be the duty of
that authority or committee, as soon as practicable after the review to
determine the allocation to each of those groups of such of the seats
which fall to be filled by appointments made from time to time by that
authority or committee as bear to the total of all of those seats the same
proportion as is borne by the number of members of that group to the
membership of the authority.”

128



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

3.2
3.3

3.4

3.5

Additionally, where there are non-aligned members, section 16(2A) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 has effect. This provides:

“Where appointments fall to be made to seats on a body to which section 15
applies otherwise than in accordance with a determination under that section,
it shall be the duty of the authority or the committee, as the case may be, so
to exercise their power to make appointments as to secure that the persons
appointed to those seats are not members of any political group”

The implications of these changes to paragraph 15(3) taken with section 16(2A) is to
require that the Council must allocate seats to the political parties in accordance with
the four principles set out above. If there are any seats left over, they must then
make appointments to the non-aligned groups.

Variations to Political Balance Principles

Prior to the allocation of seats, the Council may approve alternative arrangements for
making appointments if it resolves to do so without any member voting against them.

If a political group fail to express their wishes within a period of three weeks of being
notified of its allocation (which shall be taken as commencing from the date of the
Council meeting where this report is considered), the Council at its first meeting after
this period may make such appointment as it sees fit by majority vote regardless of
the principles of political balance.

Definition of Ordinary Committees
The following are a list of the ordinary committees of the Council:

Electoral Matters Committee
General Purposes Committee
Governance Committee
Planning Committee
Regulatory Committee

The total number of seats on the ordinary committees of the Council is 32 seats.

In addition to the above ordinary committees, the Council has historically treated the
Dover Joint Transportation Board (district council seats only) and the two Overview
and Scrutiny Committees as ordinary committees for the purposes of seat allocation.

It is the view of the Solicitor to the Council that Section 21 (11) of the Local
Government Act 2000 (under which Scrutiny Committees are appointed), makes the
Scrutiny Committees 'bodies' to which the political balance rules apply. What it does
not do is to make them automatically 'ordinary committees' for the purposes of the
political balance rules.

If the Dover Joint Transportation Board and the two Scrutiny Committees are treated
as ordinary committees of the Council (as an ‘alternative arrangement’) it increases
the number of places on ordinary committees to 59 seats. Historically, they have
been treated as if they were ordinary committees.

Allocation of Seats — Other Bodies

In addition to the ordinary committees of the Council (and those treated as such),
there are three other bodies of the Council. Although these are not bound by the
same requirements for political balance as the ordinary committees it should be
noted that seats on the individual bodies have historically been allocated separately
on the basis of political balance.

129



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.2

The bodies are the Licensing Committee, the Joint Staff Consultative Forum and the
Joint Health, Safety and Welfare Consultative Forum.

Allocation of Seats — Licensing Committee

Pursuant to Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Committee must have
at least ten, but no more than fifteen, members. The current arrangement of fifteen
members allows the Licensing Committee to appoint five broadly area-based sub-
committees to conduct hearings and has functioned effectively since its introduction
in 2003. An important reason for having 5 area-based sub-committees is that
Members as a matter of convention do not sit on Licensing Sub-Committees
considering applications relating to their wards. Accordingly, this report recommends
the continued appointment of 15 councillors to the Licensing Committee.

The Licensing Committee is not subject to the requirements of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989 with regard to political proportionality, although this principle
has voluntarily been applied in allocating the seats at the annual Council meetings
held since May 2006. It is however at the discretion of the Council to set the size of
the Licensing Committee and the allocation of seats, subject to the restriction
mentioned above.

Allocation of Seats — Joint Staff Consultative Forum and the Joint Health,
Safety and Welfare forum

In accordance with s.15(6) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, a seat on
an advisory committee shall not be treated as being subject to the political balance
requirements unless the authority have determined that it must be so filled. However,
the Council has historically voluntarily applied the principles of proportionality in
allocating seats to these fora.

Allocation of Seats — Executive Committees

The allocation of seats on the Executive and Executive Committees is a matter for
the Cabinet and is outside the scope of this report.

Allocation of Seats - South Kent Coast Health and Wellbeing Board

The South Kent Coast Health and Wellbeing Board is a sub-committee of Kent
County Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board, although the operation of the Board is
administered by Dover District Council’s Democratic Services team. As such the two
Dover District Council members appointed to it are outside the scope of this report.

Allocation of Seats — East Kent Services Committee

The terms of reference of the East Kent Services Committee specify that its
membership must be composed of the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council. As
less than three members are appointed by the Council, it is not required to be
politically balanced.

Identification of Options

This report sets out a range of options for the allocation of seats. In summary, these
options are to reconfirm the seat allocation agreed by Council at its meeting held on
12 December 2018, to make a determination in strict accordance with the rules of
political balance or to make a different determination not in accordance with the strict
rules of political balance. Some of these options can be agreed by majority vote and
others by an unopposed vote.

Option 1 — To reconfirm the seat allocation agreed by the Council at its meeting held
on 12 December 2018, as set out in Appendix 1. This determination is based on the
proportion that each political group and the non-aligned members constitute of the

130



5.3

54

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

Council overall. It does not respect the principle set out at 2.4(b) above in that it does
not ensure that the majority Conservative Group has a majority on all bodies.

Option 2- To approve a variation of Option 1 as set out in Appendix 2. The only
difference from Option 1 being that the Conservative Group is allocated a majority of
the seats on all bodies in accordance with paragraph 2.4(b) prior to any calculations
based on proportionality being undertaken.

Option 3 — To allocate seats to the ordinary committees of the Council and the two
scrutiny committees strictly in accordance with the statutory scheme and to make
appointments to the Licensing Committee, the Dover Joint Transportation Board the
Joint Staff Consultative Forum, the Joint Health Safety and Welfare Consultative
Forum and the East Kent Services Committee as members see fit. This option is set
out in Appendix 3.

Option 4 - To appoint of the basis of other alternative arrangements.
Evaluation of Options

If the Council were to adopt Option 1, this would continue the current seat allocation
arrangements agreed by Members on 12 December 2018. This option is arguably the
most equitable in that it assigns seats to the political groups and non-aligned
members equally based on the number of members that each possesses as a
proportion of the Council as a whole. However, the Council can only approve this
option if no member of the Council votes against it.

Option 2 would also require the approval of Council to agree the variation(s) without
any member of the Council voting against.

Option 3 is strictly in accordance with the statutory scheme and does not require an
unopposed vote to approve.

Option 4 would require the approval of Council to agree the variation(s) without any
member of the Council voting against. In view of the possibility of so many different
permutations Council would need to give officers instructions as to how these
arrangements should be structured in order to enable a further report to be submitted
to Council for approval.

Resource Implications
None.

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Proposed allocation of seats as set out under Option 1
Appendix 2 — Proposed allocation of seats as set out under Option 2
Appendix 3 — Proposed allocation of seats as set out under Option 3
Background Papers

Localism Act 2011

Local Government Act 1972

Local Government and Housing Act 1989

The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990
Local Government Act 2000

Licensing Act 2003

The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

131



Contact Officer: Harvey Rudd, Monitoring Officer
Rebecca Brough, Democratic Services Manager, 01304 872304

132



Subject:
Meeting and Date:

Report of:

Classification:

REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS

COUNCIL - 12 DECEMBER 2018

JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND THE
DIRECTOR OF GOVERNANCE

UNRESTRICTED

Purpose of the report:

The prompt and correct allocation of committee seats is vital to
maintaining an effective and transparent governance framework.

Recommendation:

That it be recommended to Council:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

That the report setting out the recommended allocation of
seats to political groups be adopted.

That the Dover Joint Transportation Board and the two
Overview and Scrutiny Committees be considered as
Ordinary Committees for the purposes of calculating the
allocation of seats for political groups.

That the Council appoints its Committees with the sizes and
allocation of seats between political groups as set out in
Appendix 1 and 2 of the report, and invites the Group
Leaders to make nominations to fill the seats on these
Committees.

That the Council appoints to the seats on the committees to
give effect to the nominations

That the Council determine the allocation of seats to the non-
aligned members of the Council and makes appointments to
the allocated seats.

That the Council appoints a Licensing Committee with 15
seats and, whilst noting that the duty to ensure political
proportionality does not apply, resolves that the Licensing
Committee should reflect the proportionality of the Council.

1. Summary

Consequent upon the giving of notices to the Council under the Local Government
(Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 (‘the Regulations’), Councillors M R
Eddy and P Walker have ceased to be members of the Labour group and formed a new
political group on the Council, known as the Progressive Group. Where there is a change in
the different political groups on the council the Regulations require the Council to review the

allocation of seats on committees.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 The political composition of the Council is currently 24 Conservative Group members,
16 Labour Group members, 2 Progressive Group members and 3 members who are
not currently members of any political group. In this report these 3 members are

133



2.2

23

24

2.5

26

referred to as “non-aligned members” To be counted as a political group for the
purposes of the political balance rules a group is required to have at least two
members and have formally notified the authority that it is a political group. The
Conservative, Labour and Progressive Groups meet this requirement. The
Progressive Group provided notice to the Proper Officer of their intention to form a
political group on 5 November 2018 at which point it met this requirement.

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (specifically subsections
(3) to (5)) prescribes the Council's duty to determine the allocation of seats which
states the basic principles of seat allocation.

In summary, these principles of determination are that:

(a) All the seats are not allocated to the same group;

(b) The majority of the seats go to the group (if any) which has an overall majority
on the Council (i.e. 23 or more seats);

(c) Subiject to the above two principles, that the number of seats on the total of all
the ordinary committees allocated to each group bears the same proportion to
the proportion on the full Council; and

(d) Subject to (a) to (c), that the number of seats on each ordinary committee and
each Sub-Committee allocated to each group bears the same proportion to
the proportion on the full Council.

Section 15(3) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989

The determination of seats on the Council has been undertaken in accordance with
the principles set out in Section 15(3) of the Act, which states as follows:

“15(3) Where at any time the representation of different political groups on a body to
which this section applies falls to be reviewed under this section by any
relevant authority or committee of a relevant authority, it shall be the duty of
that authority or committee, as soon as practicable after the review ,to
determine the allocation to the different political groups into which the
members of the authority are divided of all the seats which fall to be filled by
appointments made from time to time by that authority or committee.”

However, where the Council has members who are non aligned , this section is
amended by regulation 16 of The Regulations to read as follows:

“15(3) Where at any time the representation of different political groups on a body to
which this section applies falls to be reviewed under this section by any
relevant authority or committee of a relevant authority, it shall be the duty of
that authority or committee, as soon as practicable after the review to
determine the allocation to each of those groups of such of the seats
which fall to be filled by appointments made from time to time by that
authority or committee as bear to the total of all of those seats the same
proportion as is borne by the number of members of that group to the
membership of the authority.”

Additionally, where there are non aligned members, section 16(2A) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 has effect. This provides:

134



16(2A)

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

212

213

214

2.15

“Where appointments fall to be made to seats on a body to which section 15
applies otherwise than in accordance with a determination under that section,
it shall be the duty of the authority or the committee, as the case may be, so
to exercise their power to make appointments as to secure that the persons
appointed to those seats are not members of any political group”

The implications of these changes to paragraph 15(3) taken with section 16(2A) is to
require that the Council must allocate seats to the non-aligned members in the same
proportion that their number bears to the total membership of the Council.

Variations to Political Balance Principles

Prior to the allocation of seats, the Council may make variations to the principles of
political balance in cases where a decision is taken to do so with no members voting
against it.

If a political group fail to express their wishes within a period of three weeks of being
notified of its allocation (which shall be taken as commencing from 12 December
2018, the date of the Council meeting where this report is considered), the Council at
its first meeting after this period may make such appointment as it sees fit by majority
vote regardless of the principles of political balance.

Definition of Ordinary Committees
The following are a list of the ordinary committees of the Council:

Electoral Matters Committee
General Purposes Committee
Governance Committee
Planning Committee
Regulatory Committee

The total number of seats on the ordinary committees of the Council is 32 seats.

In addition to the above ordinary committees, the Council has historically treated the
Dover Joint Transportation Board (district council seats only) and the two Overview
and Scrutiny Committees as ordinary committees for the purposes of seat allocation.

It is the view of the Solicitor to the Council that Section 21 (11) of the Local
Government Act 2000 (under which Scrutiny Committees are appointed), makes the
Scrutiny Committees 'bodies' to which the political balance rules apply. What it does
not do is to make them automatically 'ordinary committees' for the purposes of the
political balance rules.

If the Dover Joint Transportation Board and the two Scrutiny Committees are
considered to be ordinary committees of the Council it increases the number of
places on ordinary committees to 59 seats.

Allocation of Seats — Non-Ordinary Committees

In addition to the ordinary committees of the Council, there are three non-ordinary
committees of the Council. Although these are not bound by the same requirements
for political balance as the ordinary committees it should be noted that they have
historically been allocated on that principle where possible.

135



2.16

217

2.18

219

2.20

2.21

2.22

3.1

3.2

The non-ordinary committees appointed on the basis of political balance are the
Licensing Committee, the Joint Staff Consultative Forum and the Joint Health, Safety
and Welfare Consultative Forum.

Allocation of Seats — Licensing Committee

Pursuant to Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Committee must have
at least ten, but no more than fifteen, members. The current arrangement of fifteen
members allows the Licensing Committee to appoint five broadly area-based sub-
committees to conduct hearings and has functioned effectively since its introduction
in 2003. An important reason for having 5 area-based sub-committees is that
Members as a matter of convention do not sit on Licensing Sub-Committees
considering applications relating to their wards. Accordingly, this report recommends
the continued appointment of 15 councillors to the Licensing Committee.

The Licensing Committee is not subject to the requirements of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989 with regard to political proportionality, although this principle
has voluntarily been applied in allocating the seats at the annual Council meetings
held since May 2006. It is however at the discretion of the Council to set the size of
the Licensing Committee and the allocation of seats, subject to the restriction
mentioned above.

Allocation of Seats — Joint Staff Consultative Forum and the Joint Health,
Safety and Welfare forum

In accordance with s.15(6) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, a seat on
an advisory committee shall not be treated as being subject to the political balance
requirements unless the authority have determined that it must be so filled. However,
the Council has historically voluntarily applied the principles of proportionality in
allocating seats to these fora.

Allocation of Seats — Executive Committees

The allocation of seats on the Executive and Executive Committees is a matter for
the Cabinet and is outside the scope of this report.

Allocation of Seats - South Kent Coast Health and Wellbeing Board

The South Kent Coast Health and Wellbeing Board is a sub-committee of Kent
County Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board, although the operation of the Board is
administered by Dover District Council’s Democratic Services team. As such the two
Dover District Council members appointed to it are outside the scope of this report.

Allocation of Seats — East Kent Services Committee

The terms of reference of the East Kent Services Committee specify that its
membership must be composed of the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council. As
less than three members are appointed by the Council, it is not required to be
politically balanced.

Identification of Options

This report sets out three options for the allocation of seats, as follows:

Option 1 — To allocate seats to political groups with a variation to treat the Dover
Joint Transportation Board and the two Scrutiny Committees as Ordinary

136



3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

Committees. This is the historical position adopted by the Council and is set out in
Appendix 1 and 2.

Option 2 — To allocate seats to political groups without any variation to treat the
Dover Joint Transportation Board and the two Scrutiny Committees as Ordinary
Committees.

Option 3 - To not adopt the recommendations set out in the report and make an
alternative proposal within the statutory framework.

Evaluation of Options

Option 1 would require the unopposed approval of Council to agree the variations in
respect of the Dover Joint Transportation Board and the two Scrutiny Committees
without any member of the Council voting against. However, it would maintain the
current approach taken to the allocation of seats to political groups and is considered
the best method of fulfilling the principles set out in paragraph 2.3 of the report.

Option 2 would not require the unopposed approval of Council as there are no
variations to agree. However, the Council has historically treated these committees
as part of the overall number of ordinary committees. Should members be minded to
pursue this option, it would be helpful if they could discuss this with the Director of
Governance and Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

Option 3 would also require the approval of Council to agree the variation(s) without
any member of the Council voting against.

Resource Implications
None.

Appendices
Appendix 1 — Proposed Allocation of Politically Balanced Seats
Appendix 2 — Proposed Allocation of Non-Politically Balanced Seats

Background Papers

Localism Act 2011

Local Government Act 1972

Local Government and Housing Act 1989

The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990
Local Government Act 2000

Licensing Act 2003

The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007

Contact Officer: Rebecca Brough, Democratic Services Manager, 01304 872304

137



Appendix 2

Review of Allocation of Seats to Political Groups
(Option 2)

To approve a variation of Option 1 with the only difference from Option 1 being that
the Conservative Group is allocated a majority of the seats on all bodies in
accordance with the second principle prior to any calculations based on
proportionality being undertaken.

1. Composition of the Council
No. of Clirs Pct of Council
0,
Conservative Group 24 53.33%
o)
Labour Group 16 35.56%
o)
Progressive Group 2 4.44%
0,
Non-Aligned Members 3 6.67%
)
Total 45 100%
2. Ordinary Committees

2.1 The following are a list of the ordinary committees of the Council:
¢ Electoral Matters Committee (5 seats)
e General Purposes Committee (5 seats)
¢ Governance Committee (7 seats)
¢ Planning Committee (10 seats)

e Regulatory Committee (5 seats)

This equals 32 ordinary seats in total.

2.2 For this option, the following bodies to which the political balance rules apply will be
treated as ordinary committees for the purposes of calculating political balance:

e Scrutiny (Community and Regeneration) Committee (10 seats)
e Scrutiny (Policy and Performance) Committee (10 seats)
This equals 52 ordinary seats in total.

3. Application of the Principles

1st Principle: That not all seats on the body are allocated to the same political
group

3.1 The determinations set out in this Appendix are consistent with this principle.



3.2

3.3

3.4

Appendix 2

2" Principle The majority of the seats on the body is allocated to a

particular political

group

if the number of persons

belonging to that group is a majority of the authority’s

membership

The Conservative Group is the majority of the Council’s membership with 24 seats
out of the Council’s total membership of 45 seats. This would result in the following
allocation to give them a majority of the seats on each body:

Committee

CON

Electoral Matters Committee (5 seats)

General Purposes Committee (5 seats)

Governance Committee (7 seats)

Planning Committee (10 seats)

Regulatory Committee (5 seats)

Scrutiny (Community & Regeneration) Committee (10 seats)

Scrutiny (Policy & Performance) Committee (10 seats)

O O W O M W W

Totals (52 seats)

31

3 Principle:

Subject to [the first two principles], that the number of seats on

the ordinary committees of a relevant authority which are
allocated to each political group bears the same proportion to
the total of all the seats on the ordinary committees of that
authority as is borne by the number of members of that group to
the membership of the authority

The starting point for the calculation is to determine the overall percentage of the
Council that each political group and the non-aligned members make up.

No. of Clirs Percentage of Council
Conservative Group 24 53.33%
Labour Group 16 35.56%
Progressive Group 2 4.44%
Non-Aligned Members 3 6.67%
Total 45 100%

The majority Conservative Group has already been allocated 31 seats in accordance
with the 2" principle, which is slightly more than they would receive on a purely
proportionate basis. There is therefore no further allocation required for this group.
For the remaining political groups this would result in the following determination of

seats overall:

Political Group

No. of Councillors

Percentage of
Council

Number of Seats
(52 ordinary seats)

Conservative Group

24

53.33%

28 (27.73)

139



Appendix 2

Labour Group

35.56%

18 (18.49)

Progressive Group

4.44%

2 (2.31)

3.5 The seats on the various ordinary committees of the Council are therefore allocated

3.6

as follows:
Committee CON | LAB | pro | Allocated | Actual | ynallocated
Seats Seats
Electoral Matters 3 1 0 4 5 1
Committee (1.78) | (0.22)
General Purposes 3 1 0 4 5 1
Committee (1.78) | (0.22)
2 0
Governance Committee 4 (2.49) | (0.31) 6 7 1
3 0
Planning Committee 6 (3.56) | (0.44) 9 10 !
1 0
Regulatory Committee 3 (1.78) | (0.22) 4 5 1
Scrutiny (Community & 3 0 1
Regeneration) 6 (3.56) | (0.44) 9 10
Committee
Scrutiny (Policy & 3 0 1
Performance) 6| (356)| (0.44) 9 10
Committee
Totals 31 14 0 45 52 7

This results in an under-allocation of 4 seats to the Labour Group and an under-
allocation of 4 seat to the Progressive Group. The remaining unallocated seats are
therefore allocated on a largest part number basis, resulting in the following

allocation:

Committee CON | LAB | pro | Allocated | Actual | ynallocated
Seats Seats

Electoral Matters 3 2 0 5 5 0

Committee

General Purposes 3 2 0 5 5 0

Committee

Governance Committee 0 6 7 1

Planning Committee 0 10 10

Regulatory Committee 3 0 S S 0

Scrutiny (Community & 0

Regeneration) 6 3 1 10 10

Committee

Scrutiny (Policy &

Performance) 6 3 1 10 10 0

Committee

Totals 31 18 2 51 52 1

140



4.1

4.2

4% Principle: Subject to [principles 1 -3 above], that the number of seats on
the body which are allocated to each political group bears the
same proportion to the number of all the seats on that body as
is borne by the number of members of that group to the

membership of the authority

Appendix 2

Committee CON | LAB | PRo | Allocated | Actual | ynallocated
Seats Seats

Electoral Matters Committee 3 2 0 S 5 0
General Purposes Committee 3 2 0 5 0
Governance Committee 4 2 0 7 1
Planning Committee 6 4 0 10 10 0
Regulatory Committee 3 2 0 5 5 0
Scrutiny (Community & 6 3 1 10 10 0
Regeneration) Committee
Scrutiny (Policy & 6 3 1 10 10 0
Performance) Committee
Totals 31| 18 2 51 52 1

Final Allocation

The remaining seat on the Governance Committee is allocated to the Non-Aligned
Members in accordance with section 16(2A) of the Local Government and Housing

Act 1989, resulting in a final determination as follows:

. Q | | T | Z |Allocated | Actual | Unallocated
Committee Sl & 3 Jg’ Seats Seats Seats

Electoral Matters Committee 3 2 0 0 S 0
General Purposes Committee 3 2 0 0 S S 0
Governance Committee 4 2 0 1 7 7 0
Planning Committee 6 4 0 0 10 10 0
Regulatory Committee 3 2 0 0 S S 0
Scrutiny (Community & 6| 3 1 0 10 10 0
Regeneration) Committee
Scrutiny (Policy & . 6 3 1 0 10 10 0
Performance) Committee
Totals 31| 18| 2| 1 52 52 0

Council will need to vote on the allocation of each seat to non-aligned members on

an individual basis in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18.7.

Other Bodies

This leaves the appointments to the Licensing Committee, Dover Joint Transportation
Board, the Joint Staff Consultative Forum and the Joint Health, Safety and Welfare

141



5.2

Appendix 2

Consultative Forum. Appointments to these bodies are outside the Political Balance
Requirements and are at the discretion of the Council. However, historically the
Council has appointed to these committees so as to respect political balance. By way
of illustration this is the current situation.

Allocated
Committee CON | LAB | PRO | NAM | oM< °¢ | Actual Seats
Licensing Committee 8 5 1 1 15 15
(15 seats)
Dover Joint Transportation 4 2 0 1 7 7

Board (7 seats)

Joint Staff Consultative 3 2 0 0 5 5
Forum (5 seats)

Joint Health, Safety and
Welfare Consultative Forum 3 2 0 0 5

(5 seats)

The East Kent Shared Services Committee

As this committee appoints less than 3 seats, there is no requirement to be politically
balanced. The terms of reference of the committee require the appointments to be of
Executive Members (usually the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council). The
Council also appoints two named substitute members from the executive.

Allocated
Committee CON | LAB | PRO | NAM Seats Actual Seats
East Kent Shared Services 2 0 0 0 5 2
Committee (2 seats)

142



Appendix 3

Review of Allocation of Seats to Political Groups

(Option 3)

Appoint Ordinary Committees Only in Strict Accordance with the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups)
Regulations 1990

1.

2.1

3.1

3.2

Composition of the Council

No. of Clirs Pct of Council
Conservative Group 24 53.33%
Labour Group 16 35.56%
Progressive Group 2 4.44%
Non-Aligned Members 3 6.67%
Total 45 100%

Ordinary Committees

The following are a list of the ordinary committees of the Council:
e Electoral Matters Committee (5 seats)
e General Purposes Committee (5 seats)
e Governance Committee (7 seats)
¢ Planning Committee (10 seats)

¢ Regulatory Committee (5 seats)
This equals 32 Seats in total.

Application of the Principles

15t Principle: That not all seats on the body are allocated to the same political
group

The determinations set out in this Appendix are consistent with this principle.

2"d Principle The majority of the seats on the body is allocated to a particular
political group if the number of persons belonging to that group
is a majority of the authority’s membership

The Conservative Group is the majority of the Council’s membership with 24 seats
out of the Council’s total membership of 45 seats. This would result in the following
allocation to give them a majority of the seats on each body:

143



3.3

3.4

3.5

Appendix 3

Committee

CON

Electoral Matters Committee (5 seats)

General Purposes Committee (5 seats)

Governance Committee (7 seats)

Planning Committee (10 seats)

Regulatory Committee (5 seats)

W O | W W

Totals (32 seats)

19

3 Principle:

Subject to [the first two principles], that the number of seats on

the ordinary committees of a relevant authority which are
allocated to each political group bears the same proportion to
the total of all the seats on the ordinary committees of that
authority as is borne by the number of members of that group to
the membership of the authority

The starting point for the calculation is to determine the overall percentage of the
Council that each political group and the non-aligned members make up.

No. of Clirs Percentage of Council
Conservative Group 24 53.33%
Labour Group 16 35.56%
Progressive Group 2 4.44%
Non-Aligned Members 3 6.67%
Total 45 100%

The majority Conservative Group has already been allocated 19 seats in accordance
with the 2" principle, which is slightly more than they would receive on a purely
proportionate basis. There is therefore no further allocation required for this group.
For the remaining political groups this would result in the following determination of

seats overall:

Political Group No. of Councillors | Percentage of Number of Seats
Council (32 ordinary seats)
Conservative Group 24 53.33% 17
Labour Group 16 35.56% 11
Progressive Group 2 4.44% 1

The seats on the various ordinary committees of the Council are therefore allocated

as follows:
Committee CON LAB PRO Allocated | Actual | ynallocated
Seats Seats
Electoral Matters 3 1 0 5 5 0
Committee (1.78) | (0.22)
1 0 0
General Purposes 3 (1.78) | (0.22) S S

144



3.6

3.7

Appendix 3

Committee CON | LAB | PRO A"S‘:;tsed AS‘;;";' Unallocated
Committee
) 4 2 0 6 7 1
Governance Committee (2.49) | (0.31)
3 0
Planning Committee 6 (3.56) | (0.44) 10 10 0
1 0
Regulatory Committee 3 (1.78) | (0.22) 5 5 0
Totals 19 8 0 31 32 1

This results in an under-allocation of 3 seats to the Labour Group and an under-
allocation of 1 seat to the Progressive Group. The remaining unallocated seats are
therefore allocated on a largest part number basis, resulting in the following

allocation:

Committee CON | LAB | PRo | Allocated | Actual | ynallocated
Seats Seats

Electoral Matters 3 2 0 5 5 0

Committee

General Purposes 3 2 0 5 5 0

Committee

Governance Committee 0 6 7 1

Planning Committee 1 10 10 0

Regulatory Committee 3 2 0 5 5 0

Totals 19 11 1 31 32 1
4% Principle: Subject to [principles 1 -3 above], that the number of seats on

the body which are allocated to each political group bears the
same proportion to the number of all the seats on that body as
is borne by the number of members of that group to the
membership of the authority

Committee CON | LAB | PRO A"SZ(;attsed ‘;‘::t:' Unallocated
Electoral Matters Committee 3 2 0 5 5 0
General Purposes Committee 3 2 0 5 5 0
Governance Committee 4 2 0 6 7 1
Planning Committee 6 3 1 10 10 0
Regulatory Committee 3 2 0 S 0
Totals 19 M 1 31 32 0

The remaining seat on the Governance Committee is allocated to the Non-Aligned
Members in accordance with section 16(2A) of the Local Government and Housing
Act 1989, resulting in a final determination as follows:

145



3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Appendix 3

85 F|E | Moar | e
Electoral Matters Committee 3| 20 0] O 5 5 0
General Purposes Committee 3 2 0 0 5 0
Governance Committee 4 2 0 1 7 0
Planning Committee 6| 3| 1] O 10 10 0
Regulatory Committee 3] 2| 0| O 5 5 0
Totals 19 | 11 1] 1 32 32 0

Council will need to vote on the allocation of each seat to non-aligned members on
an individual basis in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18.7.

Bodies to which political balance applies

The next step is to determine the two political balanced committees that are not
treated as ordinary committees for the purpose of this option. These are the two
overview and scrutiny committees.

As political balance applies to the two scrutiny committees, the four principles will
need to be applied.

1st Principle: That not all seats on the body are allocated to the same political
group

The determinations set out in this Appendix are consistent with this principle.

2"d Principle The majority of the seats on the body is allocated to a particular
political group if the number of persons belonging to that group
is a majority of the authority’s membership

The Conservative Group is the majority of the Counci’s membership with
representing 53.33% (24 out of 45) of the Council’s total membership. This would
result in the following allocation to give them a majority of the seats on each body:

CON
Committee

Scrutiny (Community & Regeneration) Committee (10 seats)

Scrutiny (Policy & Performance) Committee (10 seats)

3 Principle: Subject to [the first two principles], that the number of seats on
the ordinary committees of a relevant authority which are
allocated to each political group bears the same proportion to
the total of all the seats on the ordinary committees of that
authority as is borne by the number of members of that group to
the membership of the authority

146



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

Appendix 3

This does not apply as the bodies in question are not ordinary committees.

4% Principle:

Subject to [principles 1 -3 above], that the number of seats on

the body which are allocated to each political group bears the
same proportion to the number of all the seats on that body as
is borne by the number of members of that group to the
membership of the authority

When applied to the two non-ordinary committees this would result in the following

determination:

CON

LAB

PRO

Allocated

Actual

. Unallocated

Committee (35.56%) | (4.44%) Seats Seats

Scrutiny 5 0

(Community & 6 9 10 1

Regeneration) (3.56) (0.44)

Committee

Committee CON LAB PRO Allocated Actual | Unallocated
(35.56%) | (4.44%) Seats Seats

Scrutiny 3 0

(Policy & 6 9 10 1

Performance) (3.56) (0.44)

Committee

The remaining seats on the bodies are allocated to the Non-Aligned Members in
accordance with section 16(2A) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989,
resulting in a final determination as follows, resulting in a final determination as

follows:
. Q r 3 < A"ocated Actual Una"ocated
Committee g 5 g Jg> Seats Seats
Scrutiny (Community & 6| 31011 10 10 0
Regeneration) Committee
Scrutiny (Policy & 61 3101 1 10 10 0
Performance) Committee

Council will need to vote on the allocation of each seat to non-aligned members on
an individual basis in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18.7.

Final Allocation

In summary, this option would result in the following allocation:

) () r Y Z | Allocated | Actual Unallocated
Committee <23 :5 3 :‘g’ Seats Seats
Electoral Matters Committee 3 2 0 0 5 ° °

147



6.2

Appendix 3

Committee § g g g A"Sc:a(;attsed g(:autasl Unallocated
General Purposes Committee 3 2 0 0 S 0
Governance Committee 4 2 0 1 0
Planning Committee 6 3 1 0 10 10 0
Regulatory Committee 3 2 0 0 S S 0
Scrutiny (Community & 6 3 0 1 10 10 0
Regeneration) Committee
Scrutiny (Policy & 6 3 0 1 10 10 0
Performance) Committee
Totals 35 (19| 1| 4 59 59 0

Other Bodies

This leaves the appointments to the Licensing Committee, Dover Joint Transportation
Board, the Joint Staff Consultative Forum and the Joint Health, Safety and Welfare
Consultative Forum. Appointments to these bodies are outside the Political Balance
Requirements and are at the discretion of the Council. However, historically the
Council has appointed to these committees so as to respect political balance. By way
of illustration this is the current situation.

Allocated
Committee CON | LAB | PRO | NAM | "< °¢ | Actual Seats
Licensing Committee 8 5 1 1 15 15
(15 seats)
Dover Joint Transportation 4 2 0 1 7 7

Board (7 seats)

Joint Staff Consultative 3 2 0 0 5 5
Forum (5 seats)

Joint Health, Safety and
Welfare Consultative Forum 3 2 0 0 5

(5 seats)

The East Kent Shared Services Committee

As this committee appoints less than 3 seats, there is no requirement to be politically
balanced. The terms of reference of the committee require the appointments to be of
Executive Members (usually the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council). The
Council also appoints two named substitute members from the executive.

Allocated
Committee CON | LAB | PRO | NAM Seats Actual Seats
East Kent Shared Services 2 0 0 0 5 2
Committee (2 seats)

148



Agenda Item No 10

Subject: DRAFT CALENDAR OF ORDINARY MEETINGS 2019/20
Meeting and Date: COUNCIL - 30 JANUARY 2019

Report of: HEAD OF GOVERNANCE

Classification: UNRESTRICTED

Purpose of the report:

set at the Annual Meeting of the Council.

The Constitution requires that the Calendar of Ordinary Meetings be

Recommendation:

Meeting of Council in May 2019.

That the Draft Calendar of Ordinary Meetings for 2019/20 be
approved in principle subject to final ratification at the Annual

2.2

23

3.1
3.2

3.3

3.4

4.2

4.3

Summary

In order to provide Members, Officers, other partner local authorities and the general
public with as much notice as possible, a provisional Programme of Ordinary
Meetings is presented to the Council in January of each year prior to its final
ratification at the Annual Meeting of the Council.

Introduction and Background

The Programme of Ordinary Meetings for 2019/20 is based on a cycle that
commences with a meeting of the Cabinet and ends with a meeting of the Council.
In between those two points all other committee business takes place.

Wherever possible efforts have been made to avoid school holiday dates and political
party conferences.

It should be emphasised that the calendar set out in Appendix 1 only applies to
committees with scheduled meetings. It does not apply to any committees that are
called on an ad-hoc basis as business warrants, such as the General Purposes
Committee, or any sub-committees.

Identification of Options
There are three options available to the Council:

Option A — To approve in principle the Calendar of Ordinary Meetings for 2019/20 as
set out in Appendix 1.

Option B — To approve in principle the Calendar of Ordinary Meetings for 2019/20
with amendments.

Option C — To not approve in principle the Calendar of Ordinary Meetings for
2019/20.

Evaluation of Options

The recommended option is Option A as this supports the existing decision route
cycle and avoids wherever possible school holidays and political party conferences.

Options B and C are not recommended as it may require adjustments to the existing
decision route cycle.

In the event that any Member wishes to propose Option B, thereby changing the
provisional Calendar of Ordinary Meetings, they are asked to contact the Democratic

149



Services Manager prior to the date of the meeting at which this report is considered
in order that the feasibility of rearranging the meeting can be established.

5. Resource Implications

There are no resource implications arising from this report as set out. However, if
significant changes were to be made to the Calendar of Ordinary Meetings then this
may need to be re-evaluated.

6. Appendices

Appendix 1 — Calendar of Ordinary Meetings 2019/20

Appendix 2 — List of School Holidays and Party Political Conference Dates 2019/20
7. Background Papers

None

Contact Officer: Rebecca Brough, Democratic Services Manager 01304 872304

2 150



CALENDAR OF COUNCIL MEETINGS 2019/20

2019 2020
Committee Sta(;)t at IV(I:l)y June | July | Aug | Sept | Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar | April M(:':)ly
Cabinet 11.00am | 20 3 1 2 7 4 2 13 3 2 6 11
Council 6.00pm | 15®W 24 30 29(D) 40©) 134
Dover Joint Transportation Board 6.00pm 13 19 28 26
Governance Committee 6.00pm 27 306 26 12 19
Licensing Committee varies® | 150) 30K) 4K) 130
Planning Committee 6.00pm 23 20 18 15 12 10 7 5 16 13 12 16 21
Regulatory Committee 10.00am 28 18 16 17 19 21 17 19
Scrutiny (Community & Regeneration) Committee 6.00pm 22 5 3 4 9 6 4 15 5 11 8 20
Scrutiny (Policy & Performance) Committee 6.00pm | 21 4 2 3 8 5 3 14 40 10 7 19
South Kent Coast Health and Wellbeing Board 3.00pm 25 24 21 21
ot ool Safty 8 Wellrs Coslatve o gp : s 2 o
Publication of Notice of Forthcoming Key Decisions N/A %f‘ 5 2 6 4 1 6 33f‘ 6 9

Footnotes
(A) Denotes the Annual General Meeting of Council

(B) AIll meetings generally commence at the times indicated but are subject to

change.
(C) Denotes Budget and Council Tax Setting Meeting
(D) Council Tax Base
(E) Final Accounts
(F) Budget Scrutiny Meeting

(G) Denotes that these meetings are not open to the public.

The Dover District Council elections are scheduled for Thursday 2 May 2019.
The Kent Police and Crime Commissioner elections are scheduled for Thursday
7 May 2020

This meeting will be held upon the rising of the preceding Council meeting.

Licensing Committee start times to be agreed with the Chairman depending on
the business to be conducted.
Meetings are only held as required. The meetings of the Joint Staff Consultative

Forum will be held immediately upon the rising of the Joint Health, Safety and

Welfare Consultative Forum if called.

These meetings will be held at the Council Offices, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover CT16 3PJ unless otherwise indicated

=
a1
=

Version: 1B DRAFT




CALENDAR OF COUNCIL MEETINGS 2019/20

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its
Committees and Sub-Committees. You may remain present throughout them
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.

All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise
indicated on the front page of the agenda. There is disabled access via the
Council Chamber entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer. In
addition, there is a PA system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.

Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting and
all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from our
website www.dover.gov.uk. Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be
available at the meeting, free of charge.

All agenda papers and minutes are available for public inspection for a period
of six years from the date of the meeting. The Council’s website contains
copies of most minutes and agendas from 2001 onwards.

In addition to the Council’'s website, agendas and minutes can be downloaded
to an Apple iPad, Android Device or Windows Device using the modern.gov
App from the appropriate App Store and selecting Dover District Council from
the list of authorities.

The reporting of meetings by social media, photography and/or use of
audio/visual recording devices is permitted at Council, Cabinet and
Committee meetings that are open to the public in accordance with the
provisions of the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014.
We would ask that if you wish to take photographs or use any means of
audio/visual recording you notify Democratic Services as a courtesy in
advance of the meeting.

Requests to speak at Council meetings where public speaking is permitted
should be sent to:

Democratic Services
Telephone: (01304) 872303/872304/872305
Email: democraticservices@dover.gov.uk

The Head of Governance is Louise May.

If you require any further information about the contents of a Committee
agenda or your right to gain access to agendas and minutes held by the
Council, please contact a member of the Democratic Services team:

Rebecca Brough

Democratic Services Manager
Telephone: (01304) 872304

Email: rebecca.brough@dover.gov.uk

Kate Batty-Smith

Democratic Services Officer
Telephone: (01304) 872303

Email: kate.batty-smith@dover.gov.uk

Jemma Duffield

Democratic Services Officer
Telephone: (01304) 872305

Email: jemma.duffield@dover.gov.uk

Diana Dugard

Civic Officer and PA to the Leader
Telephone: (01304) 872003

Email: diana.dugard@dover,gov.uk

[Eny
)]
N

Version: 1B DRAFT



mailto:jemma.duffield@dover.gov.uk

€qT

DETERMINED (JULY 2017)

6 7 8 9 10
13 14 15 16 17
20 21 22 23 24
27 28 29 30 31

M

3 4 5 6 7

8

9

10 11 12 13 14 pummis
VANl 20 21 22 23

24 25|26 27 28 29 30

31

M T W T F
3

8 9 10 11 12
15 16 17 18 19
22 WA
29 30

M T W T F

1 2

5 6 7 8 9
12 13 14 15 16
19 20 21 22 23
26 27 28 29 30

2018/19
Standard School
Year based on

6 terms with
additional INSET
days

1 2 4 5 W

13
20
27

S
3
10
17
24
31

S
4
11
18
25

14 15 16
21 22 23
28 29 30

27 28 29

Term 1
Term 2
Term 3
Term 4
Term 5
Term 6

10 11 12 13 14 @8
17 18 19 20 21 ¥
24 25 26 27 28 &

35 days
38 days
32 days
30 days
23 days
37 days

S T W
2 1 2 3 4 5

9 8 9 10 11 12 [EEEEEEP

16 15 16 17 18 19 [P 12 13 14 15

23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22

30 26 27 28 29 30

5 6
20 15 11 12 13 14 15
27 18 19 20 21 22 24 18 19 20 21 22

25 26 27 28 29

25 26 27 28

S S S
5 6 7
12 13 14
19 11 12 13 14 20 21
26 18 19 20 21 26 27 28
25 26 27 28
INSET/ Non-contact days for teachers:
Over a school year, pupils are required to attend for 190 days/380 sessions. In total, teachers
may be required to be available for work on up to 195 days, with the additional days specified
by individual schools as non-contact days. Schools may also require teachers to work
additional hours before or after school sessions, as an alternative to full non-contact days,
provided that any teacher is not required to work in aggregate more than 1,265 hours during
a school year. Schools may therefore choose to require teachers to make up the full
equivalent of the 5 non-contact days wholly through additional hours, or use a mixture of
additional hours and non-contact days.
3/09/18 - 19/10/18 School day
29/10/18 - 19/12/18 School holiday
03/01/19 - 15/02/19 Bank holiday

25/02/19 - 5/04/19
23/04/19 - 24/05/19
03/06/19 - 23/07/19



12°1"

DETERMINED (JULY 2017)

M T W T F S S
1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

- December2019 |
M T W T F S S

1
2 3 4 5 6 [

9 10 11 12 13 puEamis
ICENVARNEE 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

M T W T F S S
2

3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 YA 18 19
20 | 21 22 23 24 [RRREIS
27 28 29 30

~ August2020
M T W T F S S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

2019/20
Standard School
Year based on

6 terms with
additional INSET
days

11 12 13
18 19 20
25 26 27

Term 1
Term 2
Term 3
Term 4
Term 5
Term 6

28 29 30

35 days
38 days
30 days
28 days
26 days
38 days

- October2019
M T W T F S S S
P 5 ¢ 2
7 8 9 10 11 JEFEEEE 4 5 6 7 8 K
14 15 16 17 18 [N 11 12 13 14 15 [
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 [EX]
25 26 27 28 29 [

M T W T F S M T W T F S
1

S

2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
IO 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 [P
~ June2020

M T W T S S

6 7
13 14
20 21
27 28

7
14
21

24
31

S
3
10
17
24

NN
OGP WM

INSET/ Non-contact days for teachers:

Over a school year, pupils are required to attend for 190 days/380 sessions. In total, teachers
may be required to be available for work on up to 195 days, with the additional days specified
by individual schools as non-contact days. Schools may also require teachers to work
additional hours before or after school sessions, as an alternative to full non-contact days,
provided that any teacher is not required to work in aggregate more than 1,265 hours during
a school year. Schools may therefore choose to require teachers to make up the full
equivalent of the 5 non-contact days wholly through additional hours, or use a mixture of
additional hours and non-contact days.

02/09/19 - 18/10/19 School day
28/10/19 - 18/12/19 School holiday
06/01/20 - 14/02/20 Bank holiday
24/02/20 - 01/04/20

16/04/20 - 22/05/20

01/06/20 - 22/07/20




Appendix 2

List of Party Political Conference Dates 2019/20

Party Political Conference Dates 2019/20

Political Party Location Dates (inclusive)
Conservative Party Manchester 29/09/19 — 02/10/19
Labour Party Brighton 22/09/19 — 25/09/19
Green Party tbc tbe

155



Agenda Item No 11

Subject: MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2019/20
Meeting and Date: COUNCIL - 30 JANUARY 2019

Report of: HEAD OF GOVERNANCE

Classification: UNRESTRICTED

Purpose of the report: To consider the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2019/20.

Recommendation: To make the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2019/20.

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Summary

Under Regulation 10 of the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England)
Regulations 2003/1021 the Council is required to make a scheme for the payment of
allowances to Members.

Introduction and Background

The Council’'s Members’ Allowance Scheme provides for the following allowances:

Basic Allowance (received by all Members of the Council);
Special Responsibility Allowances (for specific positions);
Independent Person(s) Allowances

Travel and Subsistence Expenses

Dependent Carers Allowance

Co-Optees’ Allowance

The levels of allowance for the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are set out in the
Scheme for transparency but do not form part of it.

The Council removed the arrangements for the Index Linking of Members’
Allowances at its meeting held on 4 March 2015 to reflect the freeze in allowance
levels.

The Council is required to make its scheme annually. In making any Scheme the
Council must give consideration to the non-binding recommendations of the East
Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel, a joint body formed by Canterbury City
Council, Dover District Council and Thanet District Council. The recommendations of
the Panel will be circulated separately.

A draft Members’ Allowance Scheme for 2019/20 based on the 2018/19 levels is
attached as Appendix 1 of the report.

Identification of Options

Option 1: To make the Members’ Allowances Scheme 2019/20 at the levels of
2018/19, as set out in Appendix 1. This would result in no changes to the allowance
scheme.

Members would make the Members’ Allowances Scheme as set out in Appendix 1
for the municipal year 2019/20.

156



3.2

3.3

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

Option 2: To make the Members’ Allowance Scheme 2019/20 at the levels of
2018/19, as set out in Appendix 1, subject to an increase in the Dependent Carers
Allowance to £8.21 per hour in line with the National Living Wage from 1 April 2019.

Members would make the Members’ Allowances Scheme as set out in Appendix 1,
subject to the amendment to the Dependent Carers Allowance.

Option 3: To make the Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in Appendix 1 with
amendments. This might include changes to the Basic Allowance, Special
Responsibility Allowance and/or the Travel and Subsistence Allowances.

Members could make the Members’ Allowances Scheme as set out in Appendix 1
subject to minor changes. In the event of a more significant change it is
recommended that Members request a further report setting out the changes and the
resource implications arising.

Evaluation of Options

Option 1 is cost neutral and would result in no direct resource implications or
changes to the existing Members’ Allowances Scheme. Although this option does
reject the non-binding recommendation of the Panel that the Dependent Carers
Allowance be aligned with the National Living Wage.

Option 2 would result in minimal resource implications. It amends the draft Scheme
to increase the Dependent Carers Allowance from £7.83 per hour to £8.21 per hour
in line with the National Living Wage. On the basis of the historic number of claims
per annum against the Dependent Carers Allowance over the last 5 municipal years
(less than 1 per year) this would be sustainable within the current budget provision.

Option 3 would potentially impact on the required 2019/20 budgetary provision. The
proposed Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in Appendix 1 is cost neutral and
any amendment to increase the levels of the Members’ Allowances Scheme would
impact on the required 2019/20 budget provision.

Resource Implications

There are no direct resource implications if Option 1 is adopted and Option 2 incurs
minimal resource implications that can be funded from within the existing budget
provision.

If Members wish to make significant changes the Members’ Allowances Scheme it is
recommended that this be subject to a further report setting out the financial
implications of the changes. For example, if the Members’ Allowance Scheme was to
be increased in line with the Panel’s non-binding target levels set out in its last
review, this would increase the Basic Allowance budget by a total of £162,450 and
Special Responsibility Allowances budget by a total of £106,715.

Corporate Implications

The Council is required to make arrangements for a Members’ Allowances Scheme.
Appendices
Appendix 1 — Draft Members’ Allowances Scheme 2019/20

Appendix 2 — East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel Recommendations
in respect of the draft Members’ Allowances Scheme 2019/20 (to
follow)

157



Appendix 3 — Comparison of the draft Members’ Allowance Scheme 2019/20 against
the last Quadrennial Review of the East Kent Joint Independent
Remuneration Panel

Appendix 4 — Comparison of the draft Members’ Allowance Scheme 2019/20 against
other Kent authorities (2017/18).

8. Background Papers

Constitution of the Council — Issue 21

Contact Officer: Rebecca Brough, Democratic Services Manager, 01304 872304

158



Part 6

Members' Allowances Scheme
2019/20

159



[This page intentionally left blank.]

O

160



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

23

24

3.1

4.1

Members' Allowances Scheme

Introduction

The Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (as
amended) requires local authorities to prepare schemes for the payment of
allowances to their members.

The 2003 Regulations (as amended) stated that authorities must establish a scheme
of allowances under those Regulations by 31 December 2003. Authorities making
schemes are required to make provision for the payment of basic allowances and
may also provide for the payment of special responsibility allowances, dependants'
carers allowances, travelling and subsistence allowance and co-optees' allowances.

The Council has established an Independent Remuneration Panel in conjunction with
Canterbury City Council and Thanet District Council. Authorities must have regard to
the recommendations made by an independent remuneration panel before making or
amending a scheme in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members Allowances)
(England) Regulations 2003.

At the meeting of the Council held on 30 January 2019 the Council duly made its
Members’ Allowance Scheme as set out below.

Commencement and Period of Scheme

This Scheme is made by Dover District Council pursuant to Section 18 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 (as amended by Section 99 of the Local
Government Act 2000) and the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) Regulations
2003.

This Scheme has effect from 1 April 2019 and applies to the payment of members'
allowances from 1 April 2019 until 31 March 2020 and subsequent years thereafter
(subject to any revocation or amendment).

The Scheme shall remain in force unless and until revoked by the Council with effect
from the beginning of a year.

The Scheme may be amended at any time provided that regard is had to the
recommendations of the independent remuneration panel.

Revocation of Previous Schemes

All previous schemes made by the Council for the payment of members' allowances
were revoked with effect from 1 April 2019.

Basic Allowances

A Basic Allowance shall be paid to each Member of the authority who is a councillor
in the amount set out in Schedule 1.

161



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.5

6.1

7.1

7.2

The Basic Allowance is intended to cover the full range of work expected of a ward
councillor together with incidental expenditure on matters such as stationery,
postage, telephone and broadband costs.

Where the term of office of a Member begins or ends otherwise than at the beginning
or end of a year, his/her entitlement shall be to payment of such part of the Basic
Allowance as bears to the whole the same proportion as the number of days during
which his/her term of office as Member and councillor subsists bears to the number
of days in that year.

Special Responsibility Allowances

Special Responsibility Allowances shall be payable to those Members of the authority
who are councillors as hold those offices (which have special responsibilities in
relation to the authority) as are specified in Schedule 2.

The amount of each Special Responsibility Allowance shall be as specified in
Schedule 2.

Where a Member does not have throughout the whole of a year any such special
responsibilities as entitle him/her to a Special Responsibility Allowance, his/her
entitlement shall be to payment of such part of that allowance as bears to the whole
the same proportion as the number of days during which he/she has such special
responsibilities bears to the number of days in that year.

No Member shall be entitled to more than one Special Responsibility Allowance.
Where a Member holds more than one office, then the higher of the Special
Responsibility Allowances shall apply.

Appropriate Adjustments

The Section 151 Officer shall be authorised to make provision for any appropriate
adjustment if necessary in respect of any Basic Allowance or Special Responsibility
Allowance which:

(a) has already been paid under the previous scheme in respect of the remainder of
the year from which this Scheme has effect; or

(b) is to be paid in respect of any part of the year during which the previous scheme
had effect.

Travelling and Subsistence Allowance

Travelling and Subsistence Allowance shall be available to Members of the Council
(including Co-opted members) in such amount or amounts as may be specified in
Schedule 5 and subject to such conditions as are set out therein and below.

Travelling and Subsistence Allowance shall only be payable to Members in respect of
actual expenditure incurred in connection with or relating to the approved duties
shown below. The scheme does not allow for travelling expenses to be paid to
Members arranging meetings with officers or attending to Ward work as this is
deemed to be part of the Member's role and Members' allowances paid are
calculated to reflect these extra duties.

162



7.3

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

For the purposes of the payment of travel expenses, all travel will be deemed to have
commenced from the Member's current address or, if this is not within the
administrative area of the Council, from the address through which the Member
qualified to stand for election.

For journeys outside Kent the second class rail fare is paid (irrespective of whether
the Member chooses to use a car), although any taxi fares, parking charges and
underground fares incurred as part of the journey may still be claimed for separately.
Where it is impracticable for a Member to travel by train because the venue is difficult
to get to within the time allowed, or to avoid an overnight stay, or extra
passengers/luggage has to be taken, car mileage may be allowed at the appropriate
rate provided that written self-certification explaining why it is impractical has been
completed and submitted to Democratic Services prior to the journey.

Attendance at meetings of the Council or of any of its committees, sub-committees,
working or liaison groups, appeal panels and ad hoc meetings recorded in official
minutes to which a Member has been appointed or at which s/he is acting as a
Substitute for another Member including representatives appointed to Neighbourhood
Forums and their substitutes.

Attendance at meetings of the Cabinet or of any Committee of the Cabinet or policy
or project advisory groups. Members of the Shadow Cabinet, Chairmen of Scrutiny
Committees and recognised Group Spokespersons shall also be eligible to claim for
attendance at meetings of the Cabinet.

Requested attendance at meetings of Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Meetings pursuant to any Joint Arrangements with another or other local authorities
whether appointed or established under the Local Government Act 2000 or any other
enactment.

Official briefing meetings which relate to an approved meeting as set out in 1.1 and
1.2 above where officers have specifically invited the Member. This scheme does
not allow for travelling expenses to be paid to individual Members arranging meetings
with officers as this is deemed to be part of the Member's role and Members'
allowances paid are calculated to reflect these extra duties. For example: visiting the
Council offices to discuss with an officer a matter raised by a member of the public in
the Member's Ward.

Site meetings approved in advance by the Council, a committee or sub-committee,
and limited to members of the committee or sub-committee in question.

Attending the approved duties as set out in Table 1 of Schedule 5. (Travelling
arrangements should be co-ordinated to avoid duplicate claims wherever possible,
particularly in instances where a Council Officer is also attending).

There is also a general duty permitting the Leader or nominated deputy to represent
the Council at formal meetings not specified elsewhere with other authorities, official
bodies or agencies for the purposes of any function of the Council.

Training, induction courses and seminars arranged for Members.

Attending the Council offices to open tender documents in accordance with Contracts
Standing Order 11.5 in Part 4 of the Constitution.

163



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

9.1

10.

The performance of any duty in connection with the discharge of any function of the
authority conferred by or under any enactment and empowering or requiring the
authority to inspect or authorise the inspection of premises.

The performance of any duty in connection with arrangements made by the authority
for the attendance of pupils at any school approved for the purposes of section 342
(approval of non-maintained special schools) of the Education Act 1996.

The carrying out of any other duty approved by the Council, or any duty of a class so
approved, for the purpose of, or in connection with, the discharge of the functions of
the Council or any of its committees or sub-committees. Provided always that the
approved duties for which Members are eligible to claim travel and subsistence
allowance shall not include cases where the Member is acting solely in his/her
community role or carrying out ward business.

Co-opted and independent members of Committees, Boards and Panels receive
travel allowances in the same way as elected members of the Council.

All claims for travel and subsistence allowances must be submitted to the Democratic
Services Section within three months from the date on which the entitlement arises.

Dependants' Carers' Allowance

A Dependants' Carers' Allowance shall be available to Members of the Council (a) in
such amount or amounts as may be specified in Schedule 6 and (b) subject to such
conditions as are set out in Schedule 7 and below.

A Dependant's Carer's Allowance shall only be payable to Members in respect of
actual expenditure incurred in connection with or relating to the approved duties as
specified in Schedule 6.

A Dependant's Carer's Allowance shall only be payable to Members in respect of the
expense of arranging for the care of a spouse, partner, child, parent, or a person
who lives in the same household as the Member otherwise than by reason of being
his/her employee, tenant, lodger or boarder.

The carer must not be a member of the claimant's immediate family i.e. spouse or
partner, other children of the Member or Member's spouse, or any member of the
Member's family who lives at the same address as the Member; nor should it be an
employee, tenant, lodger or boarder who lives at that address.

Payment of the allowance shall only be made on satisfactory production of an invoice
and receipt; forms are available from Democratic Services.

Such allowances paid to a Member shall be unlimited.

All claims for such allowances must be submitted monthly to the Head of Democratic
Services.

Index Linking
NOT USED

Back Dating

164



10.1

11.

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

Where an amendment of this Scheme is made which affects an allowance payable
for the year in which the amendment is made, the Member's entitlement to such
allowance as amended shall apply with effect from the beginning of the year in which
the amendment is made.

Repayment

Where payment of any allowance has already been made in respect of any period
during which the Member concerned is:

(a) ceases to be a Member of the authority; or

(b) is in any way not entitled to receive the allowance in respect of that period,

the Council may require that such part of the allowance as relates to any such period
shall be repaid to the Council.

Membership of More Than One Authority

Where a Member of the Council is also a member of another authority, that member
may not receive allowances from more than one authority in respect of the same
duties.

Electing To Forgo Allowances

A Member may, by notice in writing given to the Section 151 Officer, elect to forego
any part of his/her entitlement to an allowance under this Scheme.

Claims and Payments

No claim is required for basic allowances and special responsibility allowances.
Basic allowances will be paid equally to all Members whilst special responsibility
allowances will be paid to those Members who are entitled to them.

Basic allowances and special responsibility allowances will be paid as follows:

(i) To enable Members to meet one-off expenses at the start of the year
following the ordinary elections of the full Council, the basic allowance will be
paid as follows:

(a) a payment of £500 at the commencement of the year

(b) the balance to be paid by equal monthly payments on or about the 19th
day of each month.

(i) Special responsibility allowances will be paid by equal monthly instalments on
or about the 19th day of each month.

For all subsequent years until the next ordinary elections of the full Council, the Basic
Allowance and special responsibility allowances will be paid by equal monthly
instalments on or about the 19t day of each month.

In the case of Travelling and Subsistence Allowance and Dependants' Carers'
Allowance claims must be submitted on the appropriate form on a monthly basis and
will be paid through the Council's payroll system. In order to facilitate payment, claim
forms should be completed in full detail and any appropriate receipts or vouchers

165



14.4

14.5

14.5

must be attached. If the expenses are vatable, a VAT receipt should be enclosed if
possible, to enable the Council to recover the VAT element. The declaration on the
form must be completed and signed in every instance.

Members are requested to submit claims by not later than the 25th of each month for
payment by direct credit to bank accounts on or about the 19th of the following
month. A payment advice slip will be sent directly to Members and further claim
forms are available from Democratic Services on request.

The following data must be provided to the Section 151 Officer in order to facilitate
the payment:

(i) Bank address and bank account number.

(i) National Insurance number and, in the case of certain married women, a
Certificate of Reduced Liability and, in the case of pensioners, a Certificate of
Age Exemption, these certificates being provided by the Department of Work
and Pensions.

In the case of a claim for Travelling and Subsistence Allowance or Dependants'
Carers' Allowance such claim must be made to the Democratic Services Section
within three months from the date on which an entitlement to the allowance arises.

166



SCHEDULE 1

Column 1 Column 2

(Description) (Amount)

Basic Allowance £3,980 pa
SCHEDULE 2
Column 1 Column 2

(Description) (Amount)
Special Responsibility Allowances
Special responsibility allowances of the amounts shown in
Column 2 (where indicated) shall be payable in respect of the
following office holders:
Leader of the Council £14,832 pa
Deputy Leader of the Council £7,416 pa
Other Cabinet Members £5,562 pa
Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny Committees £3,708 pa
Chairman of the Planning Committee £3,708 pa
Chairman of the Governance Committee £3,708 pa
Chairman of the Standards Committee £927 pa
Chairman of the Regulatory Committee £927 pa
Chairman of the Licensing Committee £927 pa
Chairman of the Dover Joint Transportation Board £927 pa
Chairman of the General Purposes Committee £927 pa
Vice-Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny Committees £927 pa
Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee £927 pa
Vice-Chairman of the Governance Committee £927 pa
Vice-Chairman of the Standards Committee £232 pa
Vice-Chairman of the Regulatory Committee £232 pa
Vice-Chairman of the Licensing Committee £232 pa
Vice-Chairman of the Dover Joint Transportation Board £232 pa
Vice-Chairman of the General Purposes Committee £232 pa

167



Column 1 Column 2
(Description) (Amount)
Leader of the Main Opposition Group where the group has 10 or £4,171 pa
more members
Leader of an Opposition Group with a membership of between 5 £232 pa
and 9 members
Leader of an Opposition Group with less than 5 members None
Deputy Leader of the Main Opposition Group where the group £1,854 pa
has 10 or more members
Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group with less than 10 None
members
Members of the Shadow Cabinet £1,854 pa
Members of the Licensing Committee £260 pa
SCHEDULE 3
Column 1 Column 2
(Description) (Amount)
Chairman of the Council £5,300 pa
Vice-Chairman of the Council £1,400 pa
SCHEDULE 4
Column 1 Column 2
(Description) (Amount)
Independent Person(s) £927 pa




SCHEDULE 5

Travelling and Subsistence Allowance

List of approved duties attendance at which travelling and subsistence allowance may be

claimed for:

Body

Number of
representatives

Action with Rural Communities in Kent

2

Age Concern Deal (Liaison Committee)

Deal Fairtrade Steering Group

Deal and Sandwich Coastal Community Team

Dover Coastal Community Team

Dover Deal & District Citizens Advice Bureau

Dover District Volunteering Centre

Dover Fairtrade Steering Group

East Kent Housing Board

East Kent Housing Dover Area Tenants’ Board

East Kent Spatial Development Company

Industrial Communities Alliance

JAC Kent Downs AONB Partnership

Kent County Playing Fields Association

Kent Leaders' & Chief Executives' Forum

Local Enterprise Partnership Board and Executive

Local Government Association — General Assembly

Local Government Association — Rural Commission

Patrol (National Parking Adjudication Service)

Kent Police and Crime Panel

River Dour Partnership

River Stour (Kent) Internal Drainage Board

Sandwich & Pegwell Bay National Nature Reserve Management
Committee

Al N R Al Al Al Al Al Al Al Al Al Al N A -

South East England Councils (Secretary & Executive)

—

Tourism South East

Stagecoach Dover District Bus Users Group

Travel expenses claims in respect of attendance at meetings of other bodies to which the
Member has been appointed or any outside body to which the Member are appointed as a

trustee would need to be submitted to relevant Charity/Trust not Dover District Council.

Conferences attended by Members:

169



Conference Number of
representatives

Local Government Association Annual Conference 3

Subsistence Allowances

Subsistence allowance shall only be paid for actual expenses incurred and with proper
receipts and shall not exceed:

(a) In the case of absence, not involving an absence overnight, from the Member's usual
place of residence:

Allowance Rate Conditions

Breakfast Allowance £6.45 Absence to exceed 4 hours before 11.00am

Lunch Allowance £8.91 Absence to exceed 4 hours and to include
the lunch period between 12 noon to 2.00pm

Tea Allowance £3.53 Absence to exceed 4 hours and to include

the period 3.00pm to 6.00pm

Evening Meal Allowance | £11.03 Absence to exceed 4 hours, period of time
ending after 7.00pm

(b) Members who are required to make overnight stays in the performance of their
official duties should, wherever possible, pre-book accommodation of an appropriate
standard and obtain approval from the Leader of the Council. Arrangements should
be made for an invoice to be submitted directly to the Council. If this is not possible a
detailed VAT receipt MUST be obtained to substantiate the claim. Alcoholic drinks
may not be included in any claim.

Travelling Allowances

The rate for travel by a Member's own car shall not exceed 40p per mile. Where a Member
takes as a passenger another Member or person to whom a travelling allowance would
otherwise be paid, the Member may claim an extra 1p per passenger (not exceeding 4) per
mile.

(a) The rate for travel by a Member's own solo motorcycle shall not exceed, according to
the cylinder capacity of the engine, the following:

engines not exceeding 150cc 8.5 per mile
engines exceeding 150cc but not exceeding 500 cc 12.3 per mile
engines exceeding 500cc 16.5 per mile

(b) The rate for travel by bicycle shall not exceed 20p per mile.

(c) For journeys outside Kent the second class rail fare is paid (irrespective of whether
the Member chooses to use a car), although any taxi fares, parking charges and
underground fares incurred as part of the journey may still be claimed for separately.
Where it is impracticable for a Member to travel by train because the venue is difficult
to get to within the time allowed, or to avoid an overnight stay, or extra
passengers/luggage has to be taken, car mileage may be allowed at the appropriate

170



rate provided that a self-certification form explaining why it is impractical has been
completed and submitted to Democratic Services prior to the journey.

(d) Second class rail fares, bus fares, essential taxi fares and gratuities, car parking
fees, tolls, etc. necessarily incurred may be claimed subject to the provision of
receipts. Rail fares should be pre-booked wherever possible to achieve reduced

fares.

(e) All claims for travel and subsistence allowances must be submitted to the Democratic
Services section within three months from the date on which the entitlement arises.

SCHEDULE 6
Allowance Index
Index Linking
Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances and Co-optees NOT USED
Allowance
Travel and Subsistence Allowances NOT USED
Dependants' Carers' Allowance NOT USED
SCHEDULE 7
Column 1 Column 2
(Description and Conditions) (Amount)

Dependants' Carers' Allowance

£7.83 per hour

171



Appendix 2

Members’ Allowance Scheme 2019/20

The recommendations of the East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel are to follow.

172



APPENDIX 3

COMPARISON OF THE DRAFT MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME 2019/20 AGAINST THE
LAST QUADRENNIAL REVIEW OF THE EAST KENT JOINT INDEPENDENT
REMUNERATION PANEL

Position Number Dover District EKJIRP
Council Recommended
Proposed 2018/19 Levels
(£) (£)
Basic Allowance 45 3,980 7,590
Chairman of the Council 1 5,300 5,300
Vice-Chairman of the Council 1 1,400 1,400
Leader 1 14,832 18,974
Deputy Leader 1 7,416 12,523
Cabinet Member 6 5,562 11,384
Opposition Group Leader (>10 members) 1 4,171 6,261
Opposition Group Leader (5-9 members) 0 232 1,897
Opposition Group Leader (<5 members) 1 0 0
Opposition Deputy Group Leader (>10
PP Py P ( 1 1,854 3,795

members)
Opposition Deputy Group Leader (5-9 0 0 0
members)
Opposition Deputy Group Leader (<5 ] 0 0
members)
Shadow Cabinet 6 1,854 3,795
MAJOR Committee Chairman

4 3,708 9,487
(Planning / Governance / Scrutiny x 2)
MAJOR Committee Vice-Chairman

4 927 3,795
(Planning / Governance / Scrutiny )
MINOR Committee Chairman

5 927 3,795
(All others)
MINOR Committee Vice-Chairman

5 232 1,897
(All others)
Member of the Licensing Committee 15 260 0
Independent Person 2 927 927

Travel and Subsistence
The Panel recommends that travel and subsistence allowances be no greater than the levels set by HMRC.

173



APPENDIX 4

COMPARISON OF THE DRAFT MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCE SCHEME 2019/20 AGAINST OTHER KENT AUTHORITIES

Authority Basic Leader’s Deputy Cabinet Scrutiny Planning Governance | Main
Allowance | Allowance** | Leader Member Chairman Committee | Committee | Opposition
Allowance Chairman Chairman* | Leader
Dover 3,980.00 14,832.00 7,416.00 5,562.00 3,708.00 3,708.00 3,708.00 4,171.00
Ashford 4,628.34 15,139.79 10,093.19 7,569.90 6,055.92 6,055.92 5,046.60 232.69 per
member
Canterbury** 5,475.75 19,036.17 5,736.93 n/a n/a 5,736.93 521.54 139.77 per
member
Dartford 5,000.00 31,339.00 16,714.00 8,357.00 2,090.00 5,014.00 2,090.00 8,357.00
Folkestone & 5,306.00 23,344.00 11,672.00 10,611.00 6,101.00 6,101.00 6,101.00 7,958.00
Hythe
Gravesham 4,728.00 21,275.00 9,455.00 4,728.00 2,364.00 4,728.00 1,182.00 4,728.00
Maidstone** 5,065.00 19,610.52 n/a n/a n/a 7,843.80 3,921.90 394.74 per
member
Sevenoaks 5,359.00 16,078.00 6,699.00 6,699.00 2,144.00 3,217.00 2,144.00 1,331.00
Swale 5,115.30 18,926.10 11,355.66 11,355.66 5,678.34 6,623.88 1,893.12 5,678.34
Tunbridge Wells 5,500.00 19,250.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 1,375.00 5,500.00 1,375.00 275.00 per
member
Tonbridge & 5,283.00 18,384.00 8,400.00 8,400.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,250.00
Malling plus 250.00
per member
Thanet 4,570.00 18,082.00 10,776.00 7,990.00 3,995.00 5,204.00 5,204.00 5,762.00
Authority Basic Leader’s Deputy Cabinet Scrutiny Planning Governance | Main
Allowance | Allowance | Leader Member Chairman Committee | Committee | Opposition
Allowance Chairman Chairman* | Leader
Kent Average 5,000.87 19,608.05 9,937.98 8,227.26 3,601.13 5,186.04 2,973.93 -

*  Audit Committee used if no Governance Committee

** Canterbury City Council and Maidstone Borough Council do not operate executive arrangements. The Chairman of the Policy &

Resources Committee is used as the equivalent to the Leader if no Leader SRA is specified.

1ZA!



Agenda Item No 12

Subject:
Meeting and Date:
Report of:

Portfolio Holder:

Classification:

COUNCIL TAX BASE 2019/20
Council -30*" January 2019
Mike Davis, Strategic Director (Corporate Resources)

Councillor Mike Conolly, Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources and
Performance

Unrestricted

Purpose of the report:

Recommendation:

To formally determine not to revise the reduction of Council Tax Discounts.

To formally determine not to revise the Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

To set the Council Tax base for 2019/20 by 31 January 2019, in accordance
with the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Consider the introduction of a Long Term Empty Premium, following the
public consultation. Properties that have been left empty and substantially
unfurnished for two years or more will attract a premium. This will take
effect from April 2019 and will see the premium charged at 100% extra on
the Council Tax payable.

It is recommended that Council:

1. Determine that for the financial year 2019/20, the empty homes discount
remains at 0% for Class C empty properties, and continue to remove the

discount for 2nd homes so that Council Tax will be payable in full on these
properties.

2. Determine not to revise the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2019/20

3. Approve the District's Council Tax Base for 2019/20 as £38,526.26 and the
tax base for the towns and parishes in the Council’s administrative area, as
set out in the table at Appendix 2.

4. Approve the introduction of the Long Term Empty Premium charge for
properties that have been empty for 2 years or more.

175



1. Summary

1.1 The Council Tax base for the coming year is set by DDC, and is used by Kent County Council,
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Kent, Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Authority
and the various town and parish councils when setting their Council Tax and their precepts.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 The Council is required to set its tax base by 31 January every year, for the following

financial year. The taxbase is defined mainly in terms of the number of Band D equivalent
properties, but it is then adjusted to reflect various discounts.

2.2 The Council is also required on an annual basis:

(a) To determine whether and, if so, the extent to which it will reduce or remove any Council
Tax Discounts;

(b) To determine not to revise the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2019/20. This scheme
was approved by full Council in 2017.

2.3 The tax base for 2019/20 has been prepared in accordance with the current regulations®

Which came into force on 30 November 2012. The calculations are shown in Appendix 1

2.4 As the Council Tax base is defined in terms of “Band D equivalent” dwellings, and Band D

dwellings are treated as “average” houses, all other properties are defined as a ratio against
Band D houses, and pay Council Tax in accordance with that ratio.

! “Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 (S1:2012:2194)”

176



2.5 The table below illustrates how this works.

Council Tax Band Ratio to Band D Number of Dwellings (based on
the Valuation Office list)?
Band A 6/9 7027
Band B 7/9 16677
Band C 8/9 13909
Band D 9/9 7108
Band E 11/9 4279
Band F 13/9 2354
Band G 15/9 1459
Band H 18/9 73

2.6 The basis of the calculation is to multiply the number of dwellings in each band by their
respective ratio, then add the totals together to produce a “Band D equivalent” total. This is
followed by a number of adjustments for factors such as single person discounts, people in
receipt of Council Tax Reduction Scheme discounts, etc. The total is then adjusted for the

anticipated collection rate, in order to determine the tax base.

2.7 Based on these factors it is recommended that the tax base for 2019/20 is set at £38,526.26

3. Identification of Options for the Setting of the Council Tax Base

3.1 The setting of the Council Tax base is mainly a mechanical process based on the projected
number of properties, level of discounts and collection rates, and does not produce options
for Members to consider.

% In the actual calculation this is adjusted for anticipated new build, demolitions, etc. expected

during the year

177



4,

4.1

4.2

Reduction of Council Tax Discounts

From the year 2013/2014 and subsequently, the Council removed the following Council Tax
Discounts in order to meet the cost of operating the chosen Council Tax Reduction Scheme:

(a) Second Home discount of 10% removed;
(b) Empty property exemption (Class C) removed.

Reductions in Council Tax Discounts are required to be determined on an annual basis,

and it is recommended that the existing Council Tax reductions/removals are continued for
the year 2019/20.

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

The Welfare Reform Act 2012 abolished Council Tax Benefit from April 2013 and, in
accordance with Section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 the Council
approved a local council tax reduction scheme, with effect from 1 April 2014, adopting, as

the scheme, the document cited as “the Local Council Tax Support Scheme — Dover District
Council 2015 (“the 2015 scheme”).

The revised scheme for 2017 was agreed and approved at full council on 30th November
2016 and therefore not citied in this report.

For 2019/20 (as in 2018/19), the CTS scheme for working-age people allows for a maximum
CTS entitlement of 90%. How this works in practice is that every award of CTS is reduced by
10% before it is paid onto a person's council tax account. This way, everyone contributes
towards their council tax liability.

Approve the Introduction of the Long Term Empty Premium.

Legislation had been passed in 2017 to allow councils to charge a Long Term Empty Premium
for properties that had remained empty and substantially unfurnished for 2 years or more.
Dover Council had not introduced this premium when it was introduced in 2017. New
legalisation passed in 2018 will now allow councils to increase this premium. The Long Term
Empty premium will be charged at an extra 100% of the liable charge. A public consultation
had been completed to inform the affected property owners. The premium will be
introduced from April 2019. All properties identified as being substantially unfurnished and
empty for 2 years or more will be charged at 200%. Further legislation has been passed to
charge an increased amount for empty and substantially unfurnished for longer periods.

Current Council Tax records indicate that there are 222 properties that will fall into this
category of an increased council tax liability. Whilst the collectable increase charge is likely
to be in the region of £340,315.25, the actual yield to Dover District Council is
approximately, £32,104.93 following the payments made to the preceptors. This may be
subject to vary slightly as the properties status may change with regard to the empty status.

178



The current status is shown below:

No of properties

which have been Average Band Estimated Levy

empty since Charge for Raised (based on

Band 01.04.17 2018/2019 100%)
A 57 £1,145.19 £65,275.83
B 67 £1,336.05 £89,515.35
C 40 £1,526.92 £61,076.80
D 24 £1,717.79 £41,226.96
E 11 £2,099.52 £23,094.72
F 15 £2,481.25 £37,218.75
G 8 £2,862.98 £22,903.84
Grand Total 222 £340,312.25

6.2 There are two exceptions

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

Where the property is left empty by a serving member of the armed forces, who is living
elsewhere in accommodation provided by the Secretary of State for defence; or where the
property is the sole or main residence of a serving member of the armed forces, who is

subject to a job related discount at an alternative address provided by the Secretary of State
for defence.

Empty Annexes are not subject to the Long Term Empty Premium.

These are the only two exemptions that will be considered from the Long Term Empty
Premium.

An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and there are no protected
characteristics which should be taken into consideration, this change in policy will affect all
persons that own property or are liable for council tax on that property that has been empty
for 2 years or more.

Results from the public consultation which took place in December 2018 can be found in
Appendix 3

Identification and Evaluation of Options for the Reduction of Council Tax Discounts

The reduction of Council Tax discounts is a separate decision from the decision already
taken to replace the Council tax Reduction Scheme. However, the additional income from

179



the reduction in discounts offsets the costs of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and the
two are in balance.

7.2 The options identified are:

(1) Reinstate the Second Home discount of 10% and / or the empty property exemption (Class
Q)

(2) Maintain the removal of the Second Home discount of 10% and the empty property
exemption (Class C)

7.3 Option (1) would require the Council to review the level of support provided in the Council
Tax Reduction Scheme and / or make reductions in the budgets for other services.
Option (2) is the recommended option for the continuation of the scheme. The operation
of the scheme is continuously monitored, and is summarised in the Quarter 3 Performance
Report included in the published Cabinet agenda for February 2019.

8. Corporate Implications

8.1 Comment from the Strategic Director (Corporate Resources) The Director has been
consulted in the preparation of this report and has nothing further to add.

8.2 Comment from the Solicitor to the Council: The Solicitor to the council has been consulted
in the preparation of this report and has nothing further to add.

8.3 Comment from the Equalities Officer:. It is noted that an Equality Impact Assessment has
been completed in relation to the changes to the long term empty premium and this has
identified no specific equality implications. However, in discharging their duties members
are required to comply with the public sector equality duty as set out in Section 149 of the

Equality Act 2010 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15.

9. Appendices

Appendix 1 — The Council Tax Base Calculation for 2019/20
Appendix 2 — The Council Tax Base for the Towns and Parishes

10. Background Papers

Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 (SI: 2012:2914)
Detailed calculations for District and Parish/Town Council Tax Bases
Contact Officer: Mandie Kerry, Income Manager, EK Services Mandie.kerry@civica.ekservices.org

180


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15

APPENDIX1

The Council Tax Base Calculation for 2019/20

Council Tax Base=Ax B:

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
(x)

Ais the total of the "relevant amounts" (or Band D equivalents) for that year for each of the
valuation bands which is shown or is likely to be shown for any day in that year in the
authority's valuation list as applicable to one or more dwellings situated in this area.

B is the authority's estimate of its collection rate for that year (97.65%)

The "relevant amount" for a valuation band is the amount found by applying the formula: (H
—-Q+E+J) x(F/G)

H is the number of chargeable dwellings in the area of the Council (as billing authority) on

calculated in accordance with the regulations at 30™ November 2012
Qis the factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable

was subject to that band, estimated in accordance with the regulations at 30" November
2012

E Is afactor to take into account any premiums, if any, to which the council tax payable was
subject to that band, estimated in accordance with the regulations at 30" November 2012

Jis the estimated adjustments due to change in the number of dwellings, exemptions and
discounts.

Z is the totalamount that the authorities estimates will be applied in relation to the
Authorities council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band, expressed as an equivalent
number of chargeable dwellings in the band.

F is the number which is the proportion of dwellings in that band.

G is the number that, in that proportion, is applicable to dwellings in band D.

The amount calculated for Dover District Council's Council Tax Base in 2019/20 is £38,526.26 save
for the following parts of the Council's administrative area where its Council Tax Base shall be the
amounts shown against each part respectively.

Collection rate has been reviewed with regardto the changes, Council Tax Support discounts and
exemptions. This report seeks the approval of the collection rate of 97.65%.

181



2018/19 Tax Base | 2019/20 Tax Base

- using collection | using collection
Parish rate rate
Alkham 307.61 310.13
Ash 1126.94 1152.87
Aylesham 1365.88 1474.03
Capel-Le-Ferne 660.15 659.24
Deal 6651.71 6750.79
Denton-with-Wootton 171.45 172.51
Dover 8073.27 8198.33
Eastry 788.15 816.95
Eythorne 782.97 792.44
Goodnestone 171.61 174.81
Great Mongeham 268.71 268.83
Guston 374.95 399.09
Hougham-Without 183.08 182.30
Langdon 227.56 236.07
Lydden 254.42 251.67
Nonington 293.16 295.01
Northbourne 267.72 269.95
Preston 326.30 366.78
Ringwould-with-Kingsdown 1018.86 1021.39
Ripple 152.03 149.51
River 1487.35 1488.97
St Margarets-at-Cliffe 1303.27 1294.76
Sandwich 1992.46 1917.37
Shepherdswell-with-
Coldred 753.56 757.31
Sholden 746.02 736.36
Staple 229.77 232.27
Stourmouth 113.25 116.29
Sutton-by-Dover 307.40 303.62
Temple Ewell 645.05 651.17
Tilmanstone 153.26 154.16
Walmer 3290.37 3337.77
Whitfield 1933.63 1972.43
Wingham 681.07 677.85
Woodnesborough 464.24 465.57
Worth 465.46 477.65
Total 37,962.69 38,526.26

Appendix 2

182



Appendix 3.

Results from the Public Consultation on the introduction of the Long Term Empty Premium.

The consultation was published on the Dover District Council website and ran for a month during
December 2018. Customers were asked to agree or disagree with Dover introducing the Long Term
Empty Premium. There was also an opportunity to provide comments about the charge.

The public were asked to complete an on line form, however other methods were available if this
was not possible.

48 people completed the consultation and from that 40 people agreed to introduce the Premium
and 8 disagreed.

38 comments were left and of those, 26 were in favour of the introduction of the premium, 4 people
disapproved of the introduction of the premium.

8 people neither approved nor disapproved but had entered comments with views around the types
of properties, customers personal circumstances and whether this would discourage landlord’s
buying part derelict properties to rent when it may take a longer period to renovate.

Sample of positive comments;

“Anything that increases the availability of housing is a positive step and two years is plenty to either
bring it back into use or sell it to someone who can”

“We need to secure more affordable housing and if a property is left empty for long periods of time
the council needs to take action”

“I think it is an excellent idea, and may free up houses for the homeless”

“Should have happened a long time ago”

Sample of negative comments;
“The Council are not inflicted with additional costs because these properties are empty so these
additional charges are fines without justification other than money making scam on their core

customers”

“It is unacceptable interference by the state”

183



“None of the Council’s business if | choose to keep a property empty | am already paying the council
tax on the property. This is claiming money under false pretences and is despicable. You have no
right to tell me what to do with my property”.

Equality Impact Assessment

An Equality Impact assessment has been completed and identifies no protected characteristics or
equality issues for any members of the public which may be affected by this change. Any person that
has ownership or lability to pay the council tax for properties that have been empty for 2 years or
more will be affected.

184



Agenda Item No 13

Subject: TREASURY MANAGEMENT - QUARTER 2 REPORT 2018/19

Meeting and Date: Governance — 13 December 2018
Cabinet — 14 January 2019
Council — 30 January 2019

Report of: Mike Davis, Strategic Director (Corporate Resources)

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Mike Connolly, Portfolio Holder for Corporate
Resources and Performance

Decision Type: Non-Key Decision

Classification: Unrestricted

Purpose of the report: To provide details of the Council's treasury management for the
quarter ended 30 September 2018 (Q2) and an update of activity to
date.

Recommendation: That the report is received.

1. Summary

1.1 The Council's investment return for the period to September was 2.02% (annualised),
which outperformed the benchmark'’ by 1.28%. Interest and dividends income
achieved for the period was £548k; the year-to-date (YTD) budget is £500k. The
Council's projected investment return for 2018/19 is £1,173k, which is £174k better
than the original budget estimate of £999k. This improvement is due to additional
funds being invested in pooled investment funds, as detailed below.

1.2 The Council has remained within its Treasury Management guidelines and has
complied with the Prudential Code guidelines during the period.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 CIPFA (the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) issued the
revised Code of Practice for Treasury Management in November 2011; it
recommends that members should be updated on treasury management activities at
least twice a year, but preferably quarterly. This report therefore ensures this Council
is implementing best practice in accordance with the Code.

2.2 Council adopted the 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) on 7th March
2018 as part of the 2018/19 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan.

2.3 In order to comply with the CIPFA code referred to above, a brief summary is
provided below and Appendix 1 contains a full report from the Council's Treasury
Management Advisors, Arlingclose.

24 Members are asked to note that in order to minimise the resource requirements in
producing this report, Arlingclose's report has been taken verbatim. Treasury

1 The "benchmark” is the interest rate against which performance is assessed. DDC use the 3 month London Inter-Bank Bid Rate or LIBID, as its

benchmark, which was 0.74 at the end of the quarter.

185



3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

advisors generally use a more journalistic style than is used by our officers, but in
order to avoid changing the meaning or sense of Arlingclose's work, this has not
been edited out.

Economic Background

The report attached (Appendix 1) contains information up to the end of September
2018; since then we have received the following update from Arlingclose (in italics).
Please note that any of their references to quarters are based on calendar years:

“Main points since September:

i. Brexit: UK and EU have agreed the Withdrawal Agreement, which is legally
binding, on separation issues and the financial settlement. On 12th December
UK MPs will vote on the deal. Uncertainty remains given continuing opposition to
the proposed deal.

ii. UK GDP: Q3 GDP (July to September) was estimated at 0.6%, the strongest
quarterly growth since Q4 2016. This was driven by a strong summer,
particularly July, but some signs of weakness emerged for September. Longer-
term economic growth remained subdued.

ii.  Inflation: CPIH 2.2% and CPI 2.4% in October, both the same as in September.

iv.  Labour market: Unemployment rose slightly to 4.1%. Wage growth increased to
3.2%, the fastest pace since 2008, suggesting upward pressure on domestic
inflation.

v. Bank of England: MPC voted to keep Bank Rate at 0.75% in November. The
Inflation Report hinted that the pace of further rate rises would need to be
increased if Brexit goes smoothly. Growth forecasts were downgraded for 2018
and 2019.

vi.  Financial market volatility continued — concerns on trade wars, increases in US
interest rates and weakening global growth among the drivers.”

Annual Investment Strategy

The investment portfolio, as at the end of September 2018, is attached at
Appendix 2. Total balances held for investment and cash-flow purposes were
£50.3m, decreasing to £49.8m at the end of October (see Appendix 4). The decrease
reflects normal cash-flow fluctuations arising from the timing of 'major preceptor'
payments, which are made over twelve months, while the Council Tax receipts that
fund them typically come in over the ten months to January and then decline.
Additionally, a further PWLB loan instalment was paid at the end of September 2018
of £2.35m.

As at 30 September 2018, the Council's investment portfolio totalled £48m (see
Appendix 2). Cashflow funds were lower than anticipated (£2.3m at 30 September
2018) as £8m was invested in the CCLA Diversified Income Fund and a further £4m
was invested in the Investec Diversified Income Fund during the quarter. It is
proposed that the additional income generated from these additional investments is
transferred to the Special Projects reserve to support future funding for projects.

Cashflow funds have since decreased slightly (to £1.8m at 31 October 2018) due to
normal cashflow fluctuations. Short term borrowing will be used to cover fluctuations
in the cash flow requirements as required, instead of holding excess funds in call
accounts.

New Borrowing

186



5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

9.2

As at 30 September 2018 the Council did not anticipate rescheduling any of its long
term debt. However, since that time, the Council received notification that KA Finanz
were proposing to sell their LOBO (Lender Option Borrower Option) loan portfolio,
and the Council was invited to submit a bid to repurchase its £3m LOBO from them.
The LOBO was held at an interest rate of 4.75% and had 25 years remaining on the
loan. An assessment of the long term costs of the LOBO compared to alternative
borrowing options was undertaken and a bid of £3.6m was submitted to the auction
process. This bid was successful and work is underway to complete the transaction.

The refinancing of the LOBO will be initially financed from DDC cashflow. It is not
proposed to undertake new long term borrowing to offset this at this time. However,
short term borrowing may be undertaken to cover any shortfalls in cashflow.

The Council's borrowing portfolio is attached at Appendix 3. A £3 million short term
loan was taken out with Bristol City Council on the 27 September 2018 to cover a
temporary short fall in cash flow monies. This was repaid on the 31 October 2018.

Debt Rescheduling

At this time it is not of benefit to the Council to consider any further rescheduling of its
long-term debt.

IFRS Statutory Override

IFRS 9 requires certain investments to be accounted for at fair value through profit
and loss, which would potentially have introduced “more income statement volatility”
that could have impacted on budget calculations. Basically, movements in the fair
value would have impacted the CIES and result for the year, even where investments
were being held for the long-term, such that expected ‘buy-in’ costs for pooled funds
(including impact of stamp duty for property funds) and other short-term fluctuations
would have had to be recognised at the balance sheet date, even though there would
be no intent to sell them, i.e. these short-term capital losses were unlikely to be
realised when eventually sold.

MHCLG consulted on a potential statutory overrides relating to the IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments accounting standard from 2018/19, as mentioned in Appendix 1.
Following the consultation, MHCLG have decided to implement a statutory override
for fair value movements in pooled funds for at least five years until 31st March 2023.
This enables the ring-fencing of £2m in the Dover Regeneration & Economic
Development reserve to cover such fluctuations to be removed, releasing the funds
and making them available for future projects.

Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits

The Council has operated within the Prudential Indicators in compliance with the
Council's Treasury Management Practices.

Corporate Implications

Comment from the Section 151 Officer: Finance have produced this report and have
no further comments to add. (DL)

Comment from the Solicitor to the Council: The Head of Legal Services has been
consulted during the preparation of this report and has no further comment to make.

187



9.3 Comment from the Equalities Officer: This report does not specifically highlight any
equality implications, however in discharging their duties members are reminded to
comply with the public sector equality duty as set out in section 149 of the Equality
Act 2010 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15

10. Appendices
Appendix 1 — Arlingclose treasury management report for quarter two
Appendix 2 — Investment portfolio as at 30 September 2018
Appendix 3 — Borrowing portfolio as at 30 September 2018
Appendix 4 — Investment portfolio as at 31 October 2018

11. Background Papers

Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 — 2021/22

Contact Officer: Stuart Groom, extension 2072

188


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15

APPENDIX 1

Treasury Management Report Q2 2018/19

Introduction

In March 2012 the Authority adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code) which requires
the Authority to approve treasury management semi-annual and annual reports.

The Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2018/19 was approved at a meeting on 7 March
2018. The Authority has borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is therefore
exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing
interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk is therefore central to
the Authority’s treasury management strategy.

Following consultation in 2017, CIPFA published new versions of the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (Prudential Code) and the Treasury Management Code of Practice but
has yet to publish the local authority specific Guidance Notes to the latter. In England MHCLG
published its revised Investment Guidance which came into effect from April 2018.

The updated Prudential Code includes a new requirement for local authorities to provide a
Capital Strategy, which is to be a summary document approved by full Council covering capital
expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury investments. The Authority
will be producing its Capital Strategy later in 2018-19 for approval by full Council.

External Context

Economic background: Oil prices rose by 23% over the six months to around $82/barrel. UK
Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) for August rose to 2.7% year/year, above the consensus forecast
and that of the Bank of England’s in its August Inflation Report, as the effects of sterling’s large
depreciation in 2016 began to fade. The most recent labour market data for July 2018 showed
the unemployment rate at 4%, its lowest since 1975. The 3-month average annual growth rate for
regular pay, i.e. excluding bonuses, was 2.9% providing some evidence that a shortage of workers
is providing support to wages. However, real wages (i.e. adjusted for inflation) grew only by
0.2%, a marginal increase unlikely to have had much effect on households.

The rebound in quarterly GDP growth in Q2 to 0.4% appeared to overturn the weakness in Q1
which was largely due to weather-related factors. However, the detail showed much of Q2 GDP
growth was attributed to an increase in inventories. Year/year GDP growth at 1.2% also remains
below trend. The Bank of England made no change to monetary policy at its meetings in May and
June, however hawkish minutes and a 6-3 vote to maintain rates was followed by a unanimous
decision for a rate rise of 0.25% in August, taking Bank Rate to 0.75%.

Having raised rates in March, the US Federal Reserve again increased its target range of official
interest rates in each of June and September by 0.25% to the current 2%-2.25%. Markets now
expect one further rise in 2018.

The escalating trade war between the US and China as tariffs announced by the Trump
administration appeared to become an entrenched dispute, damaging not just to China but also
other Asian economies in the supply chain. The fallout, combined with tighter monetary policy,
risks contributing to a slowdown in global economic activity and growth in 2019.

189



The EU Withdrawal Bill, which repeals the European Communities Act 1972 that took the UK into
the EU and enables EU law to be transferred into UK law, narrowly made it through Parliament.
With just six months to go when Article 50 expires on 29t March 2019, neither the Withdrawal
Agreement between the UK and the EU which will be legally binding on separation issues and the
financial settlement, nor its annex which will outline the shape of their future relationship, have
been finalised, extending the period of economic uncertainty.

Financial markets: Gilt yields displayed marked volatility during the period, particularly
following Italy’s political crisis in late May when government bond yields saw sharp moves akin to
those at the height of the European financial crisis with falls in yield in safe-haven UK, German
and US government bonds. Over the period, despite the volatility, the bet change in gilt yields
was small. The 5-year benchmark gilt only rose marginally from 1.13% to 1.16%. There was a
larger increase in 10-year gilt yields from 1.37% to 1.57% and in the 20-year gilt yield from 1.74%
to 1.89%. The increase in Bank Rate resulted in higher money markets rates. 1-month, 3-month
and 12-month LIBID rates averaged 0.56%, 0.70% and 0.95% respectively over the period.

Credit background: Reflecting its perceived higher risk, the Credit Default Swap (CDS) spread for
non-ringfenced bank NatWest Markets plc, rose relatively sharply over the period to around
96bps. The CDS for the ringfenced entity, National Westminster Bank plc, has held steady below
40bps. Although the CDS of other UK banks rose marginally over the period, they continue to
remain low compared to historic averages.

The ringfencing of the big four UK banks - Barclays, Bank of Scotland/Lloyds, HSBC and

RBS/Natwest Bank plc - is complete, the transfer of their business lines into retail (ringfenced)
and investment banking (non-ringfenced) is progressing and will need to be completed by the end
of 2018.

There were a few credit rating changes during the period. Moody’s downgraded Barclays Bank
plc’s long-term rating to A2 from A1 and NatWest Markets plc to Baa2 from A3 on its view of the
credit metrics of the entities post ringfencing. Upgrades to long-term ratings included those for
Royal Bank of Scotland plc, NatWest Bank and Ulster Bank to A2 from A3 by Moody’s and to A-
from BBB+ by both Fitch and Standard & Poor’s (S&P). Lloyds Bank plc and Bank of Scotland plc
were upgraded to A+ from A by S&P and to Aa3 from A1 by Moody'’s.

Our treasury advisor Arlingclose will henceforth provide ratings which are specific to wholesale
deposits including certificates of deposit, rather than provide general issuer credit ratings. Non-
preferred senior unsecured debt and senior bonds are at higher risk of bail-in than deposit
products, either through contractual terms, national law, or resolution authorities’ flexibility
during bail-in. Arlingclose’s creditworthiness advice will continue to include unsecured bank
deposits and CDs but not senior unsecured bonds issued by commercial banks.

190



Local Context

On 315t March 2018, the Authority had net borrowing of £39m arising from its revenue and capital
income and expenditure. The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the
underlying resources available for investment. These factors are summarised in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary

31.3.18
Actual
£000

General Fund CFR 42,923
HRA CFR 74,134
Total CFR 117,057
Less: Usable reserves (66,899)
Less: Working capital (11,034)
Net borrowing 39,124

The Authority’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying
levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing, in order to reduce risk and keep interest costs

low.

The treasury management position at 30t September 2018 and the change during the period is

show in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Treasury Management Summary

31.3.18 30.9.18 30.9.18
Balance | Movement | Balance Rate
£000 £000 £000 %
Long-term borrowing 83,292 83,292
Short-term borrowing 2,223 1,897 4,120
Total borrowing 85,515 1,897 87,412 3.40%
Long-term investments 25,564 12,436 38,000
Short-term investments 17,410 (7,410) 10,000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,417 (1,118) 2,299
Total investments 46,391 3,908 50,299 2.02%
Net borrowing (39,124) (37,113)

After carrying out a review of the Council’s long term financial position it was decided to invest
an additional £12m into long-term investments during in the quarter, comprising a further £4m in

the Investec Diversified Income fund and £8m in the CCLA Diversified Income Fund.

191



Borrowing Strategy during the period

At 30th September 2018 the Authority held £87.4m of loans, as part of its strategy for funding
previous years’ capital programmes. This is an increase of £1.9m since 31t March 2018,
consisting of a £3m temporary loan for cashflow purposes, less a £1.1m repayment on the ‘HRA’

PWLB loan. Outstanding loans at 30t September are summarised in Table 3 below.

Table 3: Borrowing Position

30.9.18
31.3.18 30.9.18 | Weighted
Balance | Movement | Balance Average
£m £m £m Rate
%
Public Works Loan Board 82,515 (1,103) 81,412 3.35
Banks (LOBO) 3,000 0 3,000 4.75
Local authorities (short-term) 0 3,000 3,000 0.80
Total borrowing 85,515 1,897 87,412

The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an appropriately low risk
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the period for
which funds are required, with flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term
plans change being a secondary objective.

In keeping with these objectives, no new borrowing for capital financing purposes was
undertaken. This strategy enabled the Authority to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone
investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. A short term loan was taken out on the
28th September for one month to cover cash flow fluctuations.

With short-term interest rates remaining much lower than long-term rates, the Authority
considered it to be more cost effective in the near term to use short-term loans instead.

As the Authority has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme and an estimated borrowing
requirement as determined by the Liability Benchmark, which also takes into account usable
reserves and working capital.

LOBO loans: The Authority continues to hold £3m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option)
loans where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate as set dates,
following which the Authority has the option to either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at
no additional cost. No banks exercised their option during the period.

192



Treasury Investment Activity

The Authority holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. During the six-month period, the Authority’s
investment balance ranged between £45.9 and £50.3 million due to timing differences between

income and expenditure. The investment position is shown in table 4 below.

Table 4: Treasury Investment Position

31.3.18 Net 30.9.18 | 30-9-18
Rate of
Balance | Movement | Balance Return
£000 £000 £000 %
Banks & building societies (unsecured) 383 366 749 0.13
Government (incl. local authorities) 17,410 (7,410) 10,000 0.75
Money Market Funds 3,034 (1,484) 1,550 0.66
Other Pooled Funds:
Short-dated bond funds 8,000 0 8,000 0.85
Strategic bond funds 5,900 100 6,000 4.42
Property funds 5,744 256 6,000 4.36
Multi asset income funds 5,920 12,080 18,000 4.07
Total investments 46,391 3,908 50,299

The balance of the other pooled funds at 31.3.18 includes accounting adjustments of £436k for
unrealised losses, which were included at year-end for statutory reporting purposes (and
separately reversed out through a non-useable reserve, as permitted). These have been excluded
from the balance at 30.9.18, as the pooled funds are longer term investments and no loss is
expected by the time of sale. Therefore the Q2 movement on other pooled funds represents the
removal of the unrealised losses to restate the funds at book value, as well as an increased
investment in the respective funds of £12m.

Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Authority to invest its funds prudently,
and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury investments before seeking the
optimum rate of return, or yield. The Authority’s objective when investing money is to strike an
appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults
and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

In furtherance of these objectives, and given the increasing risk and falling returns from short-
term unsecured bank investments, the Authority has diversified into more secure and higher
yielding asset classes. During the quarter a further £12m was invested in longer term investments.
The progression of risk and return metrics are shown in the extracts from Arlingclose’s quarterly
investment benchmarking in Table 5 below.

193



Table 5: Investment Benchmarking - Treasury investments managed in-house

Weighted Rate of
Credit Credit Bail-in Average R
. : eturn
Score Rating Exposure | Maturity %
(days) °
31.03.2018 3.63 AA- 15% 34 -0.23
30.09.2018 4.49 AA- 59% 74 2.15
Similar LAs 4.28 AA- 56% 88 1.41
All LAs 4.38 AA- 60% 37 1.25

*Weighted average maturity

The Authority’s £38m of externally managed pooled funds generated an average total return of
1.13%, comprising a 3.89% income return which is used to support services in year, offset by a
2.75% capital loss (which is unrealised and does not affect the Council’s budget at this time).
Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a
notice period, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the Authority’s investment
objectives is regularly reviewed. In light of their performance and the Authority’s latest cash flow
forecasts, investment in these funds has been increased. A further £12m has been placed in
multi-asset funds during the quarter. The Investment with the Investec Diversified Income has
been increased to £10m (from £6m) and a new multi-asset fund was opened with the CCLA and
£8m was deposited on the 20t September.

MHCLG consulted on statutory overrides relating to the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments accounting
standard from 2018/19. The consultation recognised that the requirement in IFRS 9 for certain
investments to be accounted for as fair value through profit and loss may introduce “more income
statement volatility” which may impact on budget calculations. The consultation proposed a
time-limited statutory override and sought views whether it should be applied only to pooled
property funds. The Authority responded to the consultation which closed on 28t September.

Non-Treasury Investments

The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code now covers all the
financial assets of the Authority as well as other non-financial assets which the Authority holds
primarily for financial return. This is replicated in MHCLG’s Investment Guidance, in which the
definition of investments is further broadened to also include all such assets held partially to
generate a profit.

On 30 November 2016 Council approved the Property Investment Strategy. This approved
investing up to £200m in commercial and residential property, either directly or through a
property company, primarily in order to increase economic regeneration and also to generate
returns.

In March 2017 Cabinet approved the transfer of garages, shops and land from the HRA to the
General Fund, the transfer was forecast to deliver circa £286k net income for the General Fund.
For the financial year 2017/18 a net income of £295k was achieved, this level is forecast to be
exceeded in 2018/19 once the letting of the Aylesham shops is completed.

In September 2017 the purchase of the freehold of the B&Q retail warehouse at White Cliffs
Business Park, Dover, was completed as the first acquisition under this initiative. After allowing
for annual costs including borrowing (based on PWLB over 40 years) and management, the
resulting retained income is forecast to be £268k per annum, a net return of 1.6%.

194



In December 2017 a second site, Whitfield Court, was purchased. The site is located in the White
Cliffs Business Park and the Council want to ensure the long term stability of the area. The site is
a multi-let business park comprising 14 office and light industrial units totalling 45,636 sq. ft.
After allowing for annual costs including borrowing (based on PWLB over 40 years) and
management, the resulting retained income is forecast to be £120k per annum, a net return of
2.65%.

In April 2018 the purchase of the freehold of the former Co-op building, Castle Street, Dover was
completed. At that time the site was proposed to be demolished and converted into car parking
for the area. In July 2018 Cabinet approved a proposal to bring into temporary use the former
Co-op building as a Mean-While space to provide an area to support community activities and to
enable entrepreneurs and new businesses to market test their products/services. Options for the
long term future of the site continue to be developed by officers for future consideration by
Members.

Treasury Performance

The Authority measures the financial performance of its treasury management activities both in
terms of its impact on the revenue budget and its relationship to benchmark interest rates, as
shown in table 6 below.

Table 6: Performance

Actual Budget Over/ Actual Benchmark Over/
£000 £000 under % % under
Interest Received 1,173 999 174 2.02 0.74 1.28
Interest Payable 2,886 2,884 2 3.40 3.40 0

Compliance

The Chief Finance Officer reports that all treasury management activities undertaken during the
quarter complied fully with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Authority’s approved Treasury
Management Strategy. Compliance with specific investment limits is demonstrated in table 7
below.

Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external debt is demonstrated
in table 8 below.

Table 7: Debt Limits

2018/19 2018/19
H1 30.9.18
) Operational | Authorised | Complied?
Maximum | Actual Boundary Limit
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing 87.4 87.4 333 338.5 v

Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it is not significant if
the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to variations in cash flow, and this is not
counted as a compliance failure.

195




Table 8: Investment Limits

30.9.18 2018/19 | Complied?
Actual Limit
Any single organisation, except the UK £10m £8m per v
Government bank
Any group of organisations under the same 0 £16m per v
ownership group
Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s nominee 0 £15m v
account
UK Government 0 Unlimited v
Unsecured investments with building societies 0 £8m v
Pooled Investment Funds £38m £10m per v
fund
Operating bank £0.7m £20m v
Money Market Funds £1.5m £1?m per v
und

Treasury Management Indicators

The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks using the
following indicators.

Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. This is
calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic
average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are assigned a score
based on their perceived risk.

30.9.18 2018/19 Complied?
Actual Target phed:
Portfolio average credit rating 4.46 6 v

Liquidity: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by
monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling three-

month period, without additional borrowing excluding deposits due back < 3 months.

30.9.18 2018/19 Comblied?
Actual Target phied:
Total cash available within 3 months £2.3m £8m v

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to interest rate
The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as the

risk.
amount of net principal was:

30.9.18 2018/19 .
9. »
Actual Limit Complied
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure £87.4m £300m v
Upper limit on variable interest rate exposure 0 £90m v

196



Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed for at least 12
months, measured from the start of the financial year or the transaction date if later. All other
instruments are classed as variable rate.

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to
refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of all borrowing were:

ot | e | fover | comptea
Under 12 months £4m 25% 0% v
12 months and within 24 months £3.5m 50% 0% v
24 months and within 5 years £7.5m 50% 0% v
5 years and within 10 years £15m 100% 0% v
10 years and above £57.3m 100% 0% 4

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is the
earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 365 days: The purpose of this indicator is to
control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its
investments. The limits on the long-term principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the
period end were:

2018/19 2019/20 | 2019/21
Actual principal invested beyond year end 0 0 0
Limit on principal invested beyond year end £30m £30m £30m
Complied? v v v

QOutlook for the remainder of 2018/19

Having raised policy rates in August 2018 to 0.75%, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy
Committee (MPC) has maintained expectations of a slow rise in interest rates over the forecast
horizon.

The MPC has a definite bias towards tighter monetary policy but is reluctant to push interest rate
expectations too strongly. While policymakers are wary of domestic inflationary pressures over
the next two years, it is believed that the MPC members consider both that (a) ultra-low interest
rates result in other economic problems, and that (b) higher Bank Rate will be a more effective
weapon should downside Brexit risks crystallise and cuts are required.

Arlingclose’s central case is for Bank Rate to rise twice in 2019. The risks are weighted to the
downside. The UK economic environment is relatively soft, despite seemingly strong labour
market data. GDP growth recovered somewhat in Q2 2018, but the annual growth rate of 1.2%
remains well below the long term average

197



Sep-18 Dec-18 Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk 0.00 0.00 0.00/ 0.00f 0.00, 0.00, 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
Arlingclose Central Ca; 0.75| 0.75 1.00| 1.00| 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25
Downside risk 0.00 0.00 0.50, 0.50, 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75

The view is that the UK economy still faces a challenging outlook as the minority government
continues to negotiate the country's exit from the European Union. Central bank actions and
geopolitical risks, such as prospective trade wars, have and will continue to produce significant
volatility in financial markets, including bond markets.

198



In-house as at 30/09/18

Current

Organisation rating

Type of investment

In-house Investments - Portfolio:

Close Brothers
Plymouth City Council

Fixed term deposit
Fixed term deposit

In-house investments - Long Term

CCLA Property investment Fund

CCLA Property investment Fund

Investec Diversified Income Fund

Columbia Threadneedle Strategic Bond Fund
Payden and Rygel

Investec Diversified Income Fund

Investec Diversified Income Fund

CCLA Diversified Income Fund

Cashflow:

66T

Issue Date

18/07/2018
06/09/2018

30/06/2017
31/07/2017
15/12/2017
15/12/2017
28/02/2018
01/08/2018
03/09/2018
20/09/2018

Maturity date Market yield % Book cost
18/01/2019 0.800 5,000,000
10/12/2018 0.700 5,000,000
4.36% 3,000,000
4.37% 3,000,000
4.57% 6,000,000
4.42% 6,000,000
0.85% 8,000,000
4.57% 2,000,000
4.57% 2,000,000
3.06% 8,000,000
48,000,000
Total Portfolio 48,000,000
Call Accounts/MMF (as at 30/9/18)
Global Treasury Fund (Goldman Sachs Money Market Fund) 349,106
Standard Life Investments (Money Market Fund) 1,201,000
Natwest SIBA 709,318
Santander 502
Bank of Scotland 5,011
HSBC Business Acc 0
Barclays 34,150
Total Cash flow 2,299,086
Total Portfolio and Cashflow 50,299,086

Government

Sovereign Debt rating

UK - Gov 'A’
UK - Gov 'A'

UK - Gov 'AA'
UK - Gov 'AA'
UK - Gov 'AA'
UK - Gov 'AA'
UK - Gov 'AA'
UK - Gov 'AA'
UK - Gov 'AA'
UK - Gov 'AA'

Rate

0.64%
0.67%
0.15%
0.05%
0.40%
0.00%
0.00%

APPENDIX 2

Options available

Duration

184 days
95 days

5 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +
2 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +



00¢

Dover District Council Borrowing - 2018/19

APPENDIX 3

Interest | Date Loan | Date Loan | Repayment | Loan Principal | Interest Principal Principal | Annual Lender Type of loan
Type Taken Matures Dates Number | Balance Rate | To Be Repaid | Balance Interest
Out 01-Apr-18 % 2018/19 31-Mar-19 | 2018/19
Fixed |02/10/1997 | 02/10/2057 | APR-OCT | 479961 | 1,000,000 6.75 1,000,000 67,500 |PWLB Principal due on Maturity
Fixed |28/05/1997 |28/05/2057 | MAY-NOV | 479542 | 2,000,000 7.38 2,000,000 147,500 |PWLB Principal due on Maturity
Fixed |23/08/1946|23/06/2026 [ JUNE-DEC | 131582 379 2.50 45 379 9|PWLB Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP)
Fixed |27/09/1946|27/06/2026 [ JUNE-DEC | 131583 71 2.50 8 4l 2|PWLB Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP)
Fixed |16/11/2001|30/09/2026 | SEPT-MAR | 486237 | 1,000,000 4.75 1,000,000 47,500|PWLB Principal due on Maturity
Variable | 16/12/2002 [ 16/12/2042 | JUNE-DEC N/A 3,000,000 4.75 3,000,000 142,500 | KA Finanz AG Bank Repayabile if called by Bank
Fixed |26/03/2012|26/03/2042 | SEPT-MAR | 499853 (78,514,340 3.18 2,222,582176,291,758| 2,479,225|PWLB Annuity
Fixed |28/09/2018(31/10/2018 0 0.80 3,000,000 0 2,170 Short term loan for cash flow purposes
85,514,790 5,222,635| 83,292,208 | 2,886,407 Sub-total
Fixed |01/05/2012|01/11/2027 [ MAY-NOV 78,386 0.00 8,710 69,676 0|Lawn Tennis Association |Interest free
85,593,176 5,231,344 | 83,361,884| 2,886,407




In-house as at 31/10/18

Current

Organisation Type of investment rating

In-house Investments - Portfolio:

Close Brothers Fixed term deposit
Plymouth City Council Fixed term deposit

In-house investments - Long Term

CCLA Property investment Fund

CCLA Property investment Fund

Investec Diversified Income Fund

Columbia Threadneedle Strategic Bond Fund
Payden and Rygel

Investec Diversified Income Fund

Investec Diversified Income Fund

CCLA Diversified Income Fund

Cashflow:

T0C

Issue Date

18/07/2018
06/09/2018

30/06/2017
31/07/2017
15/12/2017
15/12/2017
28/02/2018
01/08/2018
03/09/2018
20/09/2018

Maturity date Market yield %

18/01/2019
10/12/2018

Total Portfolio
Call Accounts/MMF (as at 31/10/18)

Global Treasury Fund (Goldman Sachs Money Market Fund)
Standard Life Investments (Money Market Fund)

Natwest SIBA

Santander

Bank of Scotland (BOS)

HSBC Business Acc

Barclays

Total Cash flow

Total Portfolio and Cashflow

0.800
0.700

4.360
4.370
4.570
4.420
0.850
4.570
4.570
3.060

Book cost

5,000,000
5,000,000

3,000,000
3,000,000
6,000,000
6,000,000
8,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
8,000,000

48,000,000

48,000,000

349,106
963,000
468,132
502
5,017

0
34,150

1,819,907

49,819,907

Government

UK - Gov 'AA’

UK - Gov 'A'

UK - Gov 'AA’

UK - Gov 'AA’

UK - Gov 'AA’

UK - Gov 'AA’

UK - Gov 'AA

UK - Gov 'AA’

UK - Gov 'AA’

UK - Gov 'AA

Rate

0.66%
0.69%
0.20%
0.05%
0.65%
0.00%
0.00%

APPENDIX 4

Options available

Duration

184 days
95 days

5 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +
2 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +
5 Years +



Agenda Item No 14

Subject:

Meeting and Date:

Report of:

Classification:

REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 2018 - SENIOR
MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019
Governance Committee — 13 December 2018

Council — 30 January 2019

Director of Governance (Monitoring Officer to 31 December
2018)

Solicitor to the Council (Monitoring Officer from 1 January
2019)

UNRESTRICTED

Purpose of the report:

Article 15 of the Constitution requires the Monitoring Officer to
conduct regular reviews of the Constitution. A report in June /July
2018 considered general and administrative amendments.
However, following the completion of the Senior Management
Restructure which has effect from 1 January 2019 it has been
necessary to undertake further changes.

Article 15, paragraph 15.02(a) requires that amendments to the
Constitution will only be approved by Council (or its committees)
after consideration of the proposal by the Governance Committee.

Article 15, paragraph 15.02 (d) enables proposed changes to the
Constitution relating to the amendment of the title of an officer to
be approved by the Monitoring Officer.

Part 3, Section 6, Sub section A Paragraph 12 of the Constitution
allows for the Scheme of Officer Delegations (Part 3, Section 6) to
be amended from time to time by the Council.

Recommendation:

Governance
Committee

(a) That it be recommend to Council that the proposed changes in
the Review of the Constitution — Senior Management
Restructure from 1 January 2019, specifically relating to
Article 12 — Officers, Part 3 Section 6, Sub Section C (Scheme
of Officer Delegations) that relate to Council functions, Part 7
Management Structure and Part 10 Proper Officer
Appointments be approved and incorporated into the Council's
Constitution, issue no. 22.

(b) That it be recommend to Council that the proposed changes in
the Review of the Constitution 2018, specifically relating to
Part 3, Section 6, Sub Section C (Scheme of Officer
Delegations) that relate to executive functions be approved.

(Note: The Leader of the Council will be asked separately to
approve any changes relating to executive functions but the
Council is asked to approve the Scheme of Officer
Delegations in its totality in the event that there has been an
erroneous misclassification of functions.)

202



Council: (a) That the proposed changes in the Review of the Constitution —

Senior Management Restructure from 1 January 2019,
specifically relating to Article 12 — Officers, Part 3 Section 6,
Sub Section C (Scheme of Officer Delegations) that relate to
Council functions, Part 7 Management Structure and Part 10
Proper Officer Appointments be approved and incorporated
into the Council’s Constitution, issue no. 22.

(b) That the proposed changes in the Review of the Constitution
2018, specifically relating to Part 3, Section 6, Sub Section C
(Scheme of Officer Delegations) that relate to executive
functions be approved.

(Note: The Leader of the Council will be asked separately to
approve any changes relating to executive functions but the
Council is asked to approve the Scheme of Officer
Delegations in its totality in the event that there has been an
erroneous misclassification of functions.)

1.2

1.3

Introduction and Background

Article 15 of the Council’s Constitution makes provision for the regular review of the
Constitution by the Monitoring Officer on an annual and ad-hoc basis. This report
forms the fourth report as part of the Review of the Constitution 2018 and deals
specifically with changes resultant from the Senior Management restructure, in
particular the removal of the Director of Governance post from 1 January 2019, the
redistribution of functions and the appointment of the Solicitor to the Council as the
Monitoring Officer from that date.

Since the introduction of the first version of the Constitution in 2002, the Council has
revised the Constitution twenty one times. The Review of the Constitution 2018 -
Senior Management Restructure from 1 January 2019, which has been undertaken
by the Director of Governance / Monitoring Officer in conjunction with the Solicitor to
the Council and the Democratic Services Manager, will be the twenty-second revision
resulting in the proposed draft version 22.

The focus for the Review of the Constitution 2018 - Senior Management Restructure
from 1 January 2019 has been as follows:

(a) Removal of reference to the Director of Governance and the re-distribution of
his functions.

(b) Where appropriate re-designating functions from the Director of Governance
to the Monitoring Officer

(c) Amendments to the scheme of officer delegations to reflect the new Head of
Service titles roles and responsibilities and reporting lines; and

(d) Other resultant job title changes within the Constitution.

Whilst undertaking this review of the Constitution, the opportunity has been taken to
make the following additional changes:

203



2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

(e) Inclusion of descriptors for the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and
Data Protection Officer (DPO) in Part 2, Article 12;

() Inclusion of an additional reason for granting a contract extension in Contract
Standing Orders in Part 4. This recognises that The Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 contain explicit provisions on variations to existing contracts
and that number of contracts now have the provision for contract extension.

Approval of Amendments to the Constitution

The changes to the Constitution come in three types — changes requiring Executive
approval, changes delegated to the Director of Governance/Monitoring Officer to
approve and changes requiring Council approval.

The details of the changes are set out below.

(a) Removal of reference to the Director of Governance and the re-distribution
of his functions.

The Council at its meeting held on 31 October 2018 approved:

(a) The reduction of Chief Officers from the Corporate Management Team to the
Chief Executive and two Strategic Directors with effect from 1 January 2019

(b) The re-distribution of functions between the Chief Officers who form the
Council’'s Corporate Management Team with effect from 1 January 2019.

(c) Designated Harvey Rudd as the Council’s Monitoring Officer with effect from
1 January 2019.

As a result of these changes from 1 January 2019, the Director of Governance
although still an employee of the Council to 31 March 2019, is no longer a Chief
Officer and no longer a member of the Corporate Management Team. The Solicitor
to the Council becomes the Council’s Monitoring Officer from 1 January 2019.

These changes have also resulted in some re-alignment of functions and
responsibilities of the Council’s Chief Officers and these have been reflected in Part
2, Article 12, Part 7 Management Structure and Part 10 Proper Officer Appointments.
In addition the Scheme of Officer Delegations in Part 3 Section 6, Sub Section C that
relate to Executive and Council functions have also been amended to reflect the re-
alignment and the change of reporting lines.

(b) Re-designation of functions from the Director of Governance to the
Monitoring Officer

There are numerous references to the Director of Governance in the current
Constitution. Many of these interchangeably refer to his role and responsibilities as
Monitoring Officer, so where appropriate that change has been made, referring to the
statutory role and hopefully future proofing somewhat, as unless there is a change of
legislation, the Monitoring Officer role will continue, whoever is fulfilling the role in the
future.

(c) Amendments to the Scheme of Officer Delegations to reflect the new Head
of Service titles roles and responsibilities and reporting lines

Changes to job titles are delegated to the Director of Governance/Monitoring Officer
to approve. However the Council’'s approval of the re-distribution of functions
between the Chief Officers who form the Council’'s Corporate Management Team
from 1 January 2019, has also required the reformatting of the Scheme of Officer
Delegations and the change of officer delegation in a small number of cases. These
relate to the Strategic Director Corporate Services, the Solicitor to the Council, or the

204



2.8

29

210

2.1

212

3.2

3.3

4.2

4.3

Head of Governance taking delegations previously assigned to the Director of
Governance. These changes do not grant new delegated powers, but redesignate
those already agreed by Council or the Executive.

Although the full Council is only responsible for delegations relating to Council
functions, it is asked to approve the scheme of officer delegations in its totality in the
event that there has been an erroneous misclassification of functions.

(d) Other resultant job title changes within the Constitution

Changes to job titles are delegated to the Director of Governance/Monitoring Officer
to approve.

The main name change that is not addressed elsewhere in the report, relate to the
Financial Procedure Rules (Part 4, Rules of Procedure) where the reference to the
Head of Finance has been amended to the Head of Finance and Housing.

e) Inclusion of descriptors for the Senior Information Risk Owner and Data
Protection Officer

The Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and Data Protection Officer (DPO) have
been appointed by the Executive and Council. Reference to their roles has been
added to Part 2, Article 12 — Officers of the Constitution.

f) Contract Standing Orders

The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 contain explicit provisions on variations to
existing contracts and a number of contracts now have the provision for contract
extension. As a result Paragraph 14 — Extension and Other Variations to Existing
Contracts has an additional reason added for granting a contract extension at 14.22
and 14.2.3.

Identification of Options

Option 1: To approve the changes proposed as part of the Review of the Constitution
2018 - Senior Management Restructure from 1 January 2019 as submitted.

Option 2: To not approve the changes as part of the Review of the Constitution 2018
- Senior Management Restructure from 1 January 2019 as submitted.

Option 3: To approve in part the proposed changes as part of the Review of the
Constitution 2018 - Senior Management Restructure from 1 January 2019.

Evaluation of Options

Option 1 is the preferred option as it enables the efficient operation of the authority to
continue.

Option 2 is not the preferred option as it will significantly impede the day-to-day
operation of the authority as the Constitution will no longer reflect the approved Chief
Officer structure and will not be able to operate as a definitive reference for officers.

Option 3 is not recommended as it will not be possible for the Governance
Committee or the Council to make any significant changes to the proposals at their
meeting. Should members be minded to pursue this option they would need to
instruct the Monitoring Officer as to their wishes and require him to report to future
meetings of the Governance Committee and the Council.

Resource Implications

There are no resource implications arising from the Review of the Constitution.

205



6. Appendices
Governance Committee:

Appendix 1 — Draft track change Constitution of the Council (Version 22) (electronic
version of the agenda only)

7. Background Papers
Draft Constitution of the Council (Version 22)

Local Government Act 2000 and the regulations made under that Act
Contact Officers: Rebecca Brough, Democratic Services Manager, ext. 2304

David Randall, Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer, ext. 2141
Harvey Rudd, Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer, ext. 2321

206



Agenda Item No 15

Subject:
Meeting and Date:
Report of:

Classification:

FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT OF A CHIEF OFFICER
Council — 30 January 2019
Louise May, Head of Governance

Unrestricted

Purpose of the report:

This report seeks approval of minor changes to the Chief Officer
(CMT) structure and the flexible retirement of a Chief Officer

Recommendation:

1. Council approves the reduction of the Corporate
Management Team from 3 FTE to 2.8 FTE

2. Council approves the flexible retirement request of the Chief
Executive with effect from 1 April 2019, pursuant to the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, Reg. 30(6)
and in accordance with the Council’'s Pension Discretion

Policy Statement

Following a request for flexible retirement from the Chief Executive, this report seeks
approval to reduce the Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT) from 3 FTE to
2.8 FTE. The Council is further asked to approve the flexible retirement request of
the Chief Executive. This is pursuant to the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013, reg. 30(6) and in accordance with the Council’'s Pension
Discretion Policy Statement. This request will result in no detrimental effect on the
overall service delivery and will result in a budget saving.

Article 12 of the Constitution, identifies the Council’s Chief Officers. Section 4 of
Local Government and Housing Act 1989, (which defines the functions of the Head of
Paid Service) is reflected in the Council’'s Constitution at Article 12.02. This requires
the Head of Paid Service to report to the full Council on the number and grade of
staff required by the authority to discharge the Council’s functions.

In addition, the Council should note that the Chief Executive is designated as the
Head of Paid Service. This is a statutory role with functions as described in Article
12.02 of the Council’s Constitution and section 4 Local Government and Housing Act

1. Summary
1.1
1.2
1.3
1989.
Introduction and Background
2.1

The Council’s Corporate Management Team is currently made up of 3 FTE. The
proposed changes would see a reduction in the CMT from 3 FTE to 2.8 FTE, with the
Chief Executive proposing to undertake his role on the basis of 30 hours per week (4
days a week).

207



2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Concept of Flexible Retirement

The concept of flexible retirement was introduced into the LGPS 2006. The intention
was to facilitate employers in retaining the skills of an existing employee (albeit that
might be on a reduced hours basis) whilst upskilling other employees to build greater
resilience. The LGPS rules permit flexible retirement where the scheme member
(with their employer’s consent) reduces their hours of employment of the job they
continue to hold, and/or move to a lower graded post.

Flexible Retirement Request of the Chief Executive

As outlined above, the Council is asked to approve the flexible retirement of the Chief
Executive. This request is in accordance with the Council Pension Discretion Policy
Statement, which sets out criteria to be taken into account when considering the
request. The Policy Statement requires that the Council will only approve requests
where:

e ltis in their interests to do so
e There will be no detrimental effect on the service

e The costs are affordable or where there are likely to be costs savings
achieved as a result of the proposal (see resources section below).

The Pension Discretion Statement also states that the request should typically
involve a reduction of at least 20% in salary (either through reduced hours or
responsibility). Employees can choose to draw all of their pension benefits or defer
payment of all or part of the part of their fund which has accrued since 1 April 2008.

In this case, the Chief Executive wishes work 30 hours per week, which is a
reduction from 5 to 4 days a week. This will result in a 20% reduction in salary. The
Chief Executive has requested only to draw his pre-2008 benefits and defer all of
benefits accrued since 1 April 2008. The costs to the Council associated with this are
minimal and are detailed below at paragraph 6.

As Council will be aware, a recent senior management restructure within the
establishment has taken place, following the agreed retirement of the Director of
Governance. Whilst this has seen a reduction in the Corporate Management Team,
there has been a strengthening of the structure at operational management level.
The proposed flexible retirement of the Chief Executive will offer further budget
savings but whilst retaining his expertise and experience to enable succession
planning and development of the next generation of CMT.

The Chief Executive accepts that his role is not one which is strictly carried outona 5

day a week basis in any event and that he will continue to be available as and when
is necessary, despite the formal reduction in his hours.

Head of Paid Service

As stated above, the Chief Executive is designated as the Council's Head of Paid
Service. The Council is legally required to designate an officer in this role by section
4 of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989. There is no legal requirement for the
Head of Paid Service to be employed on a full time basis and the proposed reduction

208



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

in hours of the Chief Executive will not result in any change to the way that he
discharges his functions as Head of Paid Service.

Identification of Options

The proposed flexible retirement of the Chief Executive can be seen as benéeficial,
allowing the Council to retain the skills of a highly skilled and valued employee (albeit
on a reduced hours basis) whilst building up the skills and experience of others within
the Council. It is also recognised that a benefit for the Chief Executive is a work/life
balance which is better suited to his personal circumstances.

In view of the Chief Executive’s intention to remain available as and when it is
necessary and the recent redistribution of Electoral Services to sit under the Head of
Governance (thus reducing his direct reports), it is not considered that there is any
need for further redistribution of his functions and responsibilities across the other
Directors at this time.

Therefore the options for the Council are:

(a) To approve the reduction of the Corporate Management Team from 3 FTE to
2.8 FTE and to approve the flexible retirement request made by the Chief
Executive. This is the preferred option.

(b) To refuse the request for flexible retirement made by the Chief Executive.
This is not the preferred option.

Evaluation of Options

As detailed above, the proposed flexible retirement of the Chief Executive will not
result in any detrimental effect on service delivery. Over a three year period the
proposal will result in a saving of approximately £100k, with costs as detailed in
paragraph 6.1 below, and would therefore fall within the “affordable” range as stated
in the Council’'s Pension Discretion statement. Furthermore, the flexible retirement of
the Chief Executive allows the Council to retain his skills whilst upskilling other
Council staff and therefore making provision for succession planning for the future.

Resource Implications

The actuarial strain to the Council of enabling the flexible retirement request is
forecast to be a one-off cost of £35k (as provided by the Kent pension scheme). The
reduction in hours will result in an annual saving (including on-costs, car allowances,
etc.) of £34k. The proposal will therefore result in a £67k saving over a 3 year
period.

Corporate Implications

Comment from the Section 151 Officer (linked to the MTFP): Finance has been
consulted on this report and has no further comments to add. (HL)

Comment from the Solicitor to the Council: The Head of Governance has been
consulted during the preparation of this report and has no further comment.

Comment from the Equalities Officer: This report does not specifically highlight any
equality implications however in discharging their duties members are required to

209



comply with the public sector equality duty as set out in Section 149 of the Equality
Act 2010 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15.

8. Appendices
Appendix 1: Pension Discretions Policy Statement

9. Background Papers
Constitution of this Council — Article 12 and Officer Employment Procedure Rules
Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Contact Officer: Louise May, ext 42328.

210


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15

Pension Discretions Policy Statement

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and

Amendment) Requlations 2014

1.

This policy statement is made in accordance with Paragraph 60 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (‘the 2013 Regulations') and
Paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 2 of The Local Government Pension Scheme
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 ("the 2014
Regulations"). It sets out how the Council will apply the discretionary provisions
available within those Regulations. The policy is applicable to employees, not to
Councillors. This policy will be reviewed annually. If the Council decides to change its
policy, it will publish a statement of the amended policy within one month of the date
of its decision.

The Council has separate Policy statements for exercising discretions pursuant to:

2.1 regulation 66 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 2008 which is
applicable to leavers between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014;

2.2 regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997
which is applicable to leavers between 1 April 1998 and 31 March 2008;

2.3 regulation 7 of the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment)
(Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006;

In formulating and reviewing its policy, the Council:

3.1 has regard to the extent to which the exercise of their discretionary powers,
unless properly limited, could lead to a serious loss of confidence in the
public service; and

3.2 is satisfied that the policy is workable, affordable and reasonable having
regard to the foreseeable costs.

Purpose of Policy

4. This policy aims to provide fairness and consistency in situations where the Council
is considering cases of flexible retirement and increasing pension benefits.
5. Flexible retirement — Requlation 30(6) of 2013 Regulations

5.1 The LGPS allows flexible retirement from age 55 with the payment of all or
part of accrued pension benefits in situations where the employer agrees to
the hours of work or the level of responsibility being reduced and to the
release of pension benefits. In most cases pension benefits will be reduced if
taken before normal retirement age.

5.2 Flexible retirement can benefit both the employee through enabling a gradual
adjustment to retirement and the Council through the ability to retain valuable
experience and knowledge and increase the opportunity for succession
planning.

5.3 The Council will consider all requests for flexible retirement in response to
written requests from eligible employees.

54 The Council will approve requests only where it is in their interest to do so,
where there will be no detrimental effect on the service and where the costs

MISC004079 / 163892 Page 1

211



are affordable or where there are likely to be costs savings achieved as a
result of the proposal:

. A request should typically involve a reduction of at least 20% in salary
either through reduced hours or level of responsibility.
. The employee's contract of employment will be amended by mutual

agreement to reflect the new hours or grade, as agreed, and
continuity of service will be preserved.

o Employees may draw their accrued pension benefits, subject to any
actuarial reduction, and continue to pay into the Pension Scheme with
a new fund until the age of 75.

o Employees can choose to draw all of their pension benefits or defer
payment of all or part of the part of their fund which has accrued since
1 April 2008.

. Any request for flexible retirement will be considered by the Director of

Governance together with the Director of Finance, Housing and
Community, in consultation with EK Human Resources.

6. Early payment of pension — Regulation 30(5) of the 2013 Regulations

6.1 For the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with regulation 30(5) of the 2013
Regulations, employees can retire from age 55 without employer consent and
receive immediate payment of their pension benefits. However the pension
benefits payable will be subject to an actuarial reduction to allow for early
payment unless Regulation 30(7) is applicable (redundancy or business
efficiency termination of employment) or a waiver has been agreed in
accordance with Regulation 30(8).

7. Discretion to 'switch on' of 85 Year Rule for 55 — 60 year olds — Paragraph
1(1)(c) Schedule 2 of 2014 Regulations

7.1 It is not the general policy of Dover District Council to 'switch on' the 85 year
rule under this regulation. However, consideration may be given in the
following circumstances:

. Where there is a demonstrable benefit to the authority;

° Where the request may facilitate further changes within the
organisation which could lead to savings in the future;

° Where the employee requests a waiver on compassionate grounds.

To be considered under compassionate grounds, the circumstances
must be exceptional and not reasonably expected to prevail
7.2 Any request under this regulation will be considered by the Director of
Governance together with the Director of Finance, Housing and Community,
in consultation with EK Human Resources.

8. Waiver of Actuarial Reduction — Regulation 30(8) of 2013 Regulations

8.1 It is not the general policy of Dover District Council to waive any actuarial
reductions required by regulations 30(5) or 30 (6) (early payment of benefits
or flexible retirement). However, consideration may be given in the following
circumstances:

. Where there is a demonstrable benefit to the authority;

. Where the employee requests a waiver on compassionate grounds.
To be considered under compassionate grounds, the circumstances
must be exceptional and not reasonably expected to prevail

MISC004079 / 163892 Page 2

212



. Any request under this regulation will be considered by the Director of
Governance together with the Director of Finance, Housing and
Community, in consultation with EK Human Resources.

9. Awarding additional Pension — Requlation 31 of 2013 Requlations

9.1 It is not Dover District Council's policy to make use of the provision to award
additional pension under this regulation. However, there may be exceptional
circumstances where there is a demonstrable benefit to the authority. The
maximum figure as at 1 April 2014 is £6,500 and increases annually in
accordance with the regulations.

9.2 Any consideration of such an award will be made by the Director of
Governance and the Director of Finance, Housing and Community, in
consultation with EK Human Resources.

10. Awarding additional pension contributions — Requlations 16(2)(e) and 16(4)(d)
of 2013 Regulations

10.1 It is not Dover District Council's policy to fund additional pension
contributions, except in circumstances where they are required to do so by
Regulations.

11. Contributions — Regulations 9(1) & (3) of 2013 Requlations

11.1 Dover District Council will make changes to employee contribution rates
throughout the year from the effective date of any change in employment or
material change to the rate of pensionable pay received.

12. Shared Cost AVCs — Requlation 17(1) of 2013 Regqulations

12.1 It is not the policy of Dover District Council to operate a shared cost AVC
scheme for employees.

13. Merging of Deferred Member Pension Accounts with Active Member Pension

Account Requlation 22(7) and 22(8) of 2013 Regulations

13.1 If a scheme member wishes to aggregate the most recent of their periods of
previous scheme membership with their current membership, it is the policy
of Dover District Council that the election must be made within 12 months of
the Pension Section being notified that the employee has again become an
active member.

14. Applications for Adjudication of Disagreements — Requlation 74 of 2013

Regulations

14.1 Each Scheme employer must appoint a person (“the adjudicator”) to consider
applications from any person whose rights or liabilities under the Scheme are
affected by:

(a) a decision under regulation 72 (first instance decisions); or
(b) any other act or omission by a Scheme employer or administering
authority,
and to make a decision on such applications.
MISC004079 / 163892 Page 3

213



14.2 Responsibility for determinations under this first stage of the Internal Disputes
Resolution Procedure (IDRP) rests with “the adjudicator” as named at 14.3
below by the Scheme employer

14.3 For Dover District Council, the appointed adjudicator is:

Name Mr Yunus Garja

Full Address Pension Section
Invicta House
County Square
Maidstone

Kent

ME14 1XX

15. Inward Transfers of Pension Rights — Requlation 100(6) of 2013 Regulations

15.1 If a scheme member wishes to transfer any pension benefits they have built
up in other schemes to the Local Government Pension Scheme, it is Dover
District Council's policy that this election must be made within 12 months of
the Pension Section being notified that the employee has become an active
member of the Kent Scheme.

16. Chief Officers

16.1 Any application by a Chief Officer of the Council (as defined within Article
12.01(b) of the Council’'s Constitution) for the exercise of a discretion under
this policy will be referred to General Purposes Committee for a decision.

17. Review of Policy

17.1  This Policy will be reviewed annually by the Director of Governance in
consultation with EK Human Resources.

17.2 Minor amendments to this policy, for example to reflect changes to legal
requirements, may be made by the Director of Governance. Substantial
changes will be referred to General Purposes Committee for approval.

MISC004079 / 163892 Page 4

214



Agenda Item No 16

COUNCIL - 30 January 2019

Questions Raised on Notice by Members

(@)

To Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of Committees

There were no questions received for Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of Committees.

To the Executive

To receive answers in respect of questions from Members of the Council to a
Member of the Executive asked in accordance with Rule 12 of the Council Procedure

Rules.

(1)

(2)

()

(4)

Councillor M R Eddy will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor K E
Morris:

“A number of constituents in the Mill Hill ward have raised with me the need to
reverse the decision of the former Home Secretary, Amber Rudd, not to hold
a public inquiry in to the events surrounding the picketing of the Orgreave
coking plant in 1984. Will the Leader of the Council write to the present Home
Secretary requesting that a public inquiry be established to examine the
events at Orgreave, in which some 200 Kent mine workers, mainly from this
district, were involved; the decisions that led up to those events; and the way
in which those events were presented in the aftermath of the events.”

Councillor P Walker will ask the Portfolio Holder for Access and
Licensing, Councillor N J Collor:

“Can the Portfolio Holder for Access and Licensing outline to the Council the
discussions held between the Council, the builders and/or operators of the
Dover District Leisure Centre, and Stagecoach regarding the provision of bus
services to and from the Centre, the town centres and other significant
settlements like Aylesham, Shepherdswell, Eythorne and Eastry?”

Councillor P Walker will ask the Portfolio Holder for Access and
Licensing, Councillor N J Collor:

“Can the Portfolio Holder for Access and Licensing inform the Council of the
success or otherwise of the trial run of 150 HGVs from Manston to Dover on
Monday 7 January and does he consider that the movement of the equivalent
of the cargo of two ferries is an adequate trial?”

Councillor M R Eddy will ask the Portfolio Holder for Property
Management and Environmental Health, Councillor T J Bartlett:

“Could the Portfolio Holder for Property Management and Environmental
Health update the Council on the progress being made to bring the triangular
open space in Freemens Way into use for the public benefit of the people of
the Mill Hill ward in particular and the people of Deal in general?”

215



()

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

Councillor M R Eddy will ask the Portfolio Holder for Environment,
Waste and Health, Councillor N S Kenton:

“What steps is the Portfolio Holder for Environment, Waste and Health taking
to ensure that this Council adopts zero-carbon policies across the functions of
the Council and among its suppliers?”

Councillor M R Eddy will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor K E
Morris:

“Given the fact that the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions has
radically reduced the roll-out of Universal Credit, can the Leader of Council
inform members of what action he, or other Portfolio Holders or officers of the
Council have taken to inform the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions of
the impact of the imposition of Universal Credit on the people of this district?”

Councillor P Walker will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor K E
Morris:

“A recent press report revealed that the rough sleeper count for 2018
recorded 20 of our fellow human beings sleeping on the streets, an
unenviable record figure, compared to last year (14) and previous years in
single figures. How does the Leader of the Council reconcile this with his
various statements that tackling homelessness was his top priority?”

Councillor A S Pollitt will ask the Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Homelessness, Councillor P M Beresford:

“It was reported in the BBC news on the 11th of January that four Councils in
East Kent, including DDC, will have to take on extra staff to combat the effects
of Universal Credit, could the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Homelessness
inform the Council how many staff will be need to be hired and what the cost
will be?”

Councillor P M Brivio will ask the Portfolio Holder for Access and
Licensing, Councillor N J Collor:

“Would the Portfolio Holder for Access and Licensing consider DDC
introducing Traffic Regulation Orders to prevent parking on pavements as
Canterbury City Council have done in areas that their authority cover?”

Councillor A M Napier will ask the Portfolio Holder for Environment,
Waste and Health, Councillor N S Kenton:

“Can the portfolio holder for Environment, Waste and Health tell us what
monitoring is currently being carried out on the air quality at the Port of
Dover?”

Councillor L A Keen will ask the Portfolio Holder for Access and
Licensing, Councillor N J Collor:

216



(12)

(13)

(14)

“What progress has been made on ensuring that public transport from
Aylesham and the rural villages to the new DDC Leisure Centre will be
available from day one of opening?”

Councillor L A Keen will ask the Portfolio Holder for Access and
Licensing, Councillor N J Collor:

“Network rail has included Aylesham on a list of stations to be considered for
disabled access provision. What action is DDC taking to ensure that
Aylesham Railway station is actually approved for these works to definitely be
carried out at this station, especially given the current building programme of
1400 houses?”

Councillor B Gardner will ask the Portfolio Holder for Property
Management and Environmental Health, Councillor T J Bartlett:

“Can the portfolio holder for Environmental Health and Property Management
please inform the council what concessions are going to be offered at the new
Leisure centre to residents of the district that currently receive concessions?”

Councillor B Gardner will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor K E
Morris:

“Following the regrettable announcement made by Marks and Spencer’s to
close their shop in Deal High St, can | ask the Leader of the Council what
steps he has taken to try to get M&S to reverse this decision, which may have
a massive effect on trading in Deal High St.”

217



Agenda Item No 17

COUNCIL - 30 January 2019

Motions on Notice by Members

(1) In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13, Councillor P Walker will
move:

“While this Council welcomes the aspirations of the NHS Plan, published on 7
January, it is concerned that those aspirations will be undermined by the
continuing problems of adequate staffing levels, pressures, and our communities'
needs. A current local example is the closure of the Eastry GP surgery and the
merger of the two Sandwich surgeries. Council calls on the Leader to write to the
Secretary of State for Health expressing Council's opposition to the closure of the
Eastry surgery, and any other existing surgery in this district, as such closures
undermine the aspirations of the NHS Plan.”

(2) In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13, Councillor P J Hawkins will
move:

“Other Councils are buying properties on new developments in our district to
house people on waiting lists. This Council agrees to purchase similar properties
within the district to house those on our waiting list and the homeless.”

(3) In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13, Councillor B Gardner will
move:

“This council is very concerned about the travel plan that is proposed for the new
DDC Leisure Centre at Whitfield. This is nothing like what was promised by the
previous leader of the council when the project was first mooted.”

218



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 12/12/2018 Council
	Minutes


	3 Declarations of Interest
	6 Questions from the Public
	8 REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING STATIONS
	Appendix 1 - Parliamentary electorate based on Proposed Wards and Polling Districts, 15/10/2018 Electoral Matters Committee, 22/01/2019 Electoral Matters Committee
	Appendix 2 - Proposed Polling Districts (web optimised), 15/10/2018 Electoral Matters Committee, 22/01/2019 Electoral Matters Committee
	Appendix 2- Cover and Contents
	Appendix 2 - Proposed Polling Districts
	AW3 - Walmer, St Saviour's
	AW4N - North Deal, Gladstone
	BC1 - Buckland North
	BC1W - Whitfield, Rokesley
	BC2 - Buckland South
	BME - Maxton and Elms Vale
	BR2 - St Radigunds, East
	BR3 - St Radigunds, Town
	BT1 - Town and Castle, Priory
	BTH - Tower Hamlets
	PWH1 - Whitfield North
	PWH2 - Whitfield South
	TWRE - Eastry Rural, Worth Village
	TWRS - Worth, Sandwich Bay


	Appendix 3 - Unchanged Polling Districts (web optimised)_Part1, 15/10/2018 Electoral Matters Committee, 22/01/2019 Electoral Matters Committee
	Appendix 3 - Unchanged Polling Districts (web optimised)_Part2, 15/10/2018 Electoral Matters Committee, 22/01/2019 Electoral Matters Committee
	Appendix 4 -  Responses received as part of the consultation, 22/01/2019 Electoral Matters Committee
	Appendix 5 - Proposed Tower Hamlets and Elvington Polling Districts, 22/01/2019 Electoral Matters Committee
	BTH1 and BTH2- Tower Hamlets West and Tower Hamlets East
	PEX1&PEX2 and PEX3

	Appendix 6 - Summary of new Polling Districts and Polling Stations, 22/01/2019 Electoral Matters Committee

	9 Review of Allocation of Seats
	Appendix 1 - DEC 2018 REVIEW OF ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS
	328054 - Appendix 2 Review of Allocation of Seats to Political Groups (FINAL)
	328053 - Appendix 3 Review of Allocation of Seats to Political Groups (FINAL)

	10 Calendar of Meetings 2019/20
	Appendix 1 - Calendar of Meetings 2019-20 DRAFT
	Appendix 2 - Term-Dates-2018-19
	Appendix 2 - Term-Dates-2019-20
	Appendix 2 - Party Conference Dates 2019-20

	11 Members Allowances Scheme 2019/20
	Appendix 1 - Draft Members Allowances Scheme 2019-20
	Appendix 2 - Recommendations of the EKJIRP (to follow)
	Appendix 3 - EKJIRP Recommended Levels
	Appendix 4 - Kent District Council Comparison

	12 Council Tax Base 2019-20
	13 TREASURY MANAGEMENT - QUARTER 2 REPORT 2018/19
	Treasury Management - Appendix 1
	Treasury Management - Appendices 2 3 and 4

	14 REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 2018 – SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019
	15 FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT OF A CHIEF OFFICER
	326672 - Appendix 1 - Draft Revised LGPS Discretion Statement Feb 2017

	16 Questions from Members
	17 Motions



